
 

 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

 
At: Aelodau’r  Cyngor Sir Dyddiad: 

 
Dydd Llun, 30 Medi 2013 
 

 Rhif Union: 
 

01824712589 

 ebost: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y CYNGOR SIR, DYDD MAWRTH, 8 HYDREF 2013 
am 10.00 am yn SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, NEUADD Y SIR, RHUTHUN LL15 1YN. 
 
Yn gywir iawn 
 
 
G Williams 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
RHAN 1 – ESTYNNIR GWAHODDIAD I’R WASG A’R CYHOEDD I DDOD I’R 
RHAN HON O’R CYFARFOD 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU   

 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD   

 Dylai Aelodau ddatgan unrhyw gysylltiadau personol neu sy’n rhagfarnu yn 
unrhyw fusnes a nodwyd i'w ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Pecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus



 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y’U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD   

 Hysbysiad o eitemau y dylid, ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod 
fel materion brys dan Adran 100B(4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 

 

4 DYDDIADUR Y CADEIRYDD   

 Nodi ymrwymiadau dinesig a gynhaliwyd gan Gadeirydd y Cyngor (copi 
ynghlwm).  

 

5 COFNODION   

 Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod y Cyngor Sir a gynhaliwyd 10 Medi 2013 (copi 
ynghlwm). 

 

6 MANTEISION CYMUNEDOL, CAFFAEL A’R STRATEGAETH UCHELGAIS 
ECONOMAIDD A CHYMUNEDOL   

 Derbyn cyflwyniad gan Caffael Strategol ar Fanteision Cymunedol a sut y 
maent yn cysylltu â Chaffael a’r Strategaeth Uchelgais Economaidd a 
Chymunedol. 

 

7 ADOLYGIAD PERFFORMIAD BLYNYDDOL 2012-13  (Tudalennau 5 - 10) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Pennaeth Busnes, Cynllunio a Pherfformiad (copi 
wedi’i atodi) ar Adroddiad Perfformiad Blynyddol Drafft y Cyngor ar gyfer 
2012-13.  

 

8 POLISI DIOGELU CORFFORAETHOL   

 Ystyried adroddiad gan Gyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: Moderneiddio a Lles 
(copi wedi’i amgáu) sy’n cynnig mabwysiadu Polisi Diogelu Corfforaethol a 
sefydlu Panel Diogelu Corfforaethol Aelodau/Swyddogion ar y cyd. 

 

9 RHAGLEN GWAITH I’R DYFODOL Y CYNGOR SIR   

 Ystyried Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cyngor (copi ynghlwm). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

 
AELODAETH 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Ian Armstrong 
Raymond Bartley 
Brian Blakeley 
Joan Butterfield 
Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones 
William Cowie 
Ann Davies 
James Davies 
Meirick Davies 
Richard Davies 
Stuart Davies 
Peter Duffy 
Peter Arnold Evans 
Hugh Evans 
Bobby Feeley 
Carys Guy 
Huw Hilditch-Roberts 
Martyn Holland 
Colin Hughes 
Rhys Hughes 
Hugh Irving 
Alice Jones 
Huw Jones 
Pat Jones 
 

Gwyneth Kensler 
Geraint Lloyd-Williams 
Margaret McCarroll 
Jason McLellan 
Barry Mellor 
Win Mullen-James 
Bob Murray 
Peter Owen 
Dewi Owens 
Merfyn Parry 
Paul Penlington 
Arwel Roberts 
Gareth Sandilands 
David Simmons 
Barbara Smith 
David Smith 
Bill Tasker 
Julian Thompson-Hill 
Joe Welch 
Cefyn Williams 
Cheryl Williams 
Eryl Williams 
Huw Williams 
 

 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
 
Y Wasg a’r Llyfrgelloedd 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned  



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Digwyddiadau wedi eu mynychu gan y Cadeirydd / Events attended by Chairman 
 

30.08.13 – 30.09.13 
 
Dyddiad / Date Digwyddiad / Event      Lleoliad / Location 

 
30.08.13  CCB Cyngor ar Bopeth, Sir Ddinbych   Dinbych    
   Denbighshire Citizen’s Advice Bureau AGM   Denbigh 
 
31.08.13  Sioe Awyr Y Rhyl 
   Rhyl Air Show 
 
06.09.13  Gwasanaeth ‘Worshipful Company of Watermen’ Service Rhuthun 
           Ruthin 
 
08.09.13  Gwasanaeth Dinesig Y Maer     Llanelwy 
   Mayor’s Civic Service      St Asaph 
 
12.09.13  Seremoni Dinasyddiaeth     Rhuthun 
   Citizenship Ceremony      Ruthin 
 
14.09.13  Seremoni Gwobrwyo Staff Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid  Dinbych 
   Youth Service Staff Award Ceremony   Denbigh 
 
16.09.13  Agoriad Swyddogol ‘Canolfan Ni’    Corwen 
   Official Opening ‘ Canolfan Ni’ 
 
17.09.13  Agoriad Swyddogol Llyfrgell Llanelwy 
   Official Opening St Asaph Library 
 
18.09.13  Croesawu ‘Tour of Britain’ i Ddinbych 
   Welcome ‘Tour of Britain’ to Denbigh 

 
18.09.13  Derbyniad Lletygarwch ‘Tour of Britain’   Llanberis 
   ‘Tour of Britain’ Hospitality Reception 
   Is-Gadeirydd wedi mynychu / 

Vice Chairman attended 
 
21.09.13  Clwb Rygbi Dinbych 
   Denbigh Rugby Club 
 
22.09.13  Gwasanaeth Dinesig Cadeirydd    Ynys Môn 
   Chairman’s Civic Service     Anglesey 
 
23.09.13  Ymweld â Hope House     Conwy 
   Visit Hope House 
 
26.09.13  Gweithdy Cerddorol i Ysgolion Arbennig   Llanelwy 
   Gŵyl Gerdd Ryngwladol Gogledd Cymru 
   Musical Workshop for Special Schools   St Asaph 
   North Wales International Music Festival 
 
26.09.13  Cyngerdd - Gŵyl Gerdd Ryngwladol Gogledd Cymru Llanelwy 
   Concert - North Wales International Music Festival  St Asaph 
 
29.09.13   Gwasanaeth Dinesig y Maer     Prestatyn 
   Mayor’s Civic Service 

Eitem Agenda 4

Tudalen 5



Tudalen 6

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

CYNGOR SIR 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod o’r Cyngor Sir a gynhaliwyd yn Siambr y Cyngor, Neuadd y Sir, 
Rhuthun LL15 1YN, Dydd Mawrth, 10 Medi 2013 am 10.00 am. 
 

YN BRESENNOL 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Ian Armstrong, Raymond Bartley (Cadeirydd), Brian Blakeley (Is-
Gadeirydd), Joan Butterfield, Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones, William Cowie, Ann Davies, 
James Davies, Meirick Davies, Richard Davies, Stuart Davies, Peter Duffy, 
Peter Arnold Evans, Hugh Evans, Bobby Feeley, Carys Guy, Huw Hilditch-Roberts, 
Colin Hughes, Rhys Hughes, Huw Jones, Pat Jones, Gwyneth Kensler, Geraint Lloyd-
Williams, Jason McLellan, Win Mullen-James, Bob Murray, Peter Owen, Dewi Owens, 
Arwel Roberts, Gareth Sandilands, David Simmons, Barbara Smith, David Smith, 
Julian Thompson-Hill, Joe Welch, Cefyn Williams, Cheryl Williams, Eryl Williams a/ac 
Huw Williams 
 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 
 

Y Prif Weithredwr (MM), Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: Uchelgais Economaidd a 
Chymunedol (RM), Uwch Beiriannydd, Rheoli Perygl Llifogydd (WH), Pennaeth 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd (GW), Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: 
Moderneiddio a Lles (SE), Pennaeth Cyllid ac Asedau (PMc), Rheolwr Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd (SP) a Gweinyddwr Pwyllgorau (SLW). 
 
Ymchwilwyr Llifogydd Annibynnol: 
Dr Jean Venables, Clive Onions a John Young.  
 

 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb oddi wrth y Cynghorwr(wyr) 
Martyn Holland, Hugh Irving, Alice Jones, Margaret McCarroll, Barry Mellor, 
Merfyn Parry, Paul Penlington a/ac Bill Tasker 
 

Croesawodd y Cadeirydd y Cynghorydd Peter Owen i gyfarfod y Cyngor yn dilyn salwch 
hir.  
 
Croesawodd y Cadeirydd y Cynghorydd Richard Davies hefyd a oedd wedi bod yn yr 
ysbyty am gyfnod byr. 
 
Yna rhoddodd y Cadeirydd deyrnged i ddau o bobl arbennig iawn a fu farw yn ddiweddar.  
Roedd Jane Kennedy wedi marw’n dawel yn yr ysbyty ar ddiwedd mis Gorffennaf.  Roedd 
llyfr cydymdeimlo wedi’i roi yn Ystafell yr Aelodau. A hefyd bu farw’r cyn-Gynghorydd 
Richard Jones yn ddiweddar.  Roedd meddyliau pawb gyda theuluoedd a chyfeillion Jane 
Kennedy a Richard Jones ar yr amser trist hwn. 
 
Cafwyd munud o dawelwch fel arwydd o barch. 
 
Atgoffodd y Cadeirydd yr aelodau y byddai arddangosfa yn Ystafell Gynadledda 1a a 2 

Eitem Agenda 5

Tudalen 7



gan Dave Evans, Rheolwr Prosiect, Swyddfa Rhaglen Gorfforaethol, o ran Ysgol 
Uwchradd newydd y Rhyl. 
  
Cyn dechrau’r cyfarfod, roedd yr Arweinydd, y Cynghorydd Hugh Evans, am longyfarch 
swyddogion, gwasanaethau a gwirfoddolwyr a oedd yn rhan o’r Eisteddfod Genedlaethol 
ddiweddar a fu’n llwyddiant mawr.  Roedd gwirfoddolwyr gan gynnwys swyddogion a 
phreswylwyr wedi gwneud cyfraniad mawr i sicrhau bod y digwyddiad wedi bod mor 
llwyddiannus.  
 
Roedd yr Arweinydd am fynegi diolch i bawb a oedd yn rhan o hyn yn arbennig:- 
 

(i) Hywyn Williams a oedd wedi mynychu’r digwyddiad bob dydd ac a oedd wedi 
gweithio tuag at y digwyddiad dros y ddwy flynedd ddiwethaf. 

(ii) A hefyd Gareth Watson a oedd wedi gosod y Pafiliwn a oedd wedi dangos Sir 
Ddinbych ar ei gorau. 

 
 
Byddai Hywyn a Gareth yn diolch i swyddogion ar ran y Cyngor. 
 
Rhoddwyd llongyfarchiadau i Robat Arwyn, cyfansoddwr y gerddoriaeth ar gyfer y 
cyngerdd agoriadol. 
 
Rhoddwyd llongyfarchiadau i’r Cynghorydd Meirick Lloyd Davies hefyd am ei wobr yn yr 
Eisteddfod am wasanaethau i’r iaith Gymraeg. 
 
 
Roedd Swyddogion yr Eisteddfod wedi bod yn canmol Cyngor Sir Ddinbych yn fawr o ran 
y modd yr oeddent wedi ateb yr her ar gyfer y digwyddiad.  Roedd wedi bod yn fodel y 
gallai Awdurdodau Lleol eraill ei ddilyn a’i fabwysiadu yn y dyfodol.  Cynigiwyd diolch i’r 
Cadeirydd a’i wraig am eu presenoldeb parhaus yn y digwyddiad.  Roedd yr economi leol 
wedi elwa o lwyddiant y digwyddiad hefyd. 
  
  
2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD  

 
Dim. 
 

3 MATERION BRYS  
 
Dim mater brys wedi’i godi. 
 
 

4 DYDDIADUR Y CADEIRYDD  
 
Roedd rhestr o ddigwyddiadau dinesig a gynhaliwyd ar gyfer y Cyngor gan y 
Cadeirydd a’r Is-Gadeirydd ar gyfer y cyfnod rhwng 28 Mehefin 2013 a 28 Awst 
2013 wedi’i dosbarthu cyn y cyfarfod. 
 
 

Tudalen 8



Dywedodd y Cadeirydd fod Eisteddfod Llangollen a’r Eisteddfod Genedlaethol wedi 
bod yn hynod o lwyddiannus.  Roedd y cyngherddau a gynhaliwyd yn yr Eisteddfod 
Genedlaethol wedi bod yn wych ac ym marn y Cadeirydd, hon oedd yr Eisteddfod 
orau erioed. 
 
Diolchodd y Cynghorydd Meirick Lloyd Davies i aelodau am eu llongyfarchiadau. 
 
Mynegodd y Cynghorydd Hugh Jones ei ddiolch i bawb a fu’n rhan o’r Eisteddfod a 
hoffai ychwanegu ei ddiolch i Ruth Williams o’r adran dwristiaeth am y blodau 
hyfryd a’r baneri a oedd wedi gwneud i’r ardal edrych yn wych i bobl leol ac i 
ymwelwyr. 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd y dylai’r Cyngor anfon eu dymuniadau gorau i Sir 
Gaerfyrddin ar gyfer yr Eisteddfod yn 2014. 
 
 

5 COFNODION  
 
Cyflwynwyd cofnodion cyfarfod y Cyngor a gynhaliwyd ar 9 Gorffennaf 2013. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod y Cyngor a gynhaliwyd ar 9 
Gorffennaf 2013 fel cofnod cywir.  
 
 

6 ADRODDIAD YMCHWILWYR I’R LLIFOGYDD YN GLASDIR, RHUTHUN  
 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd David Smith, Aelod Arweiniol y Parth Cyhoeddus, 
Adroddiad yr Ymchwilwyr ar y llifogydd yn Glasdir, Rhuthun (dosbarthwyd eisoes) i 
roi gwybod i aelodau am ganfyddiad yr ymchwiliad annibynnol. Roedd yr 
ymchwiliad annibynnol wedi’i gynnal gan Dr Jean Venables o Crane Environmental 
Ltd, gyda chefnogaeth Clive Onions, Clive Onions Ltd a John Young, Edenvale 
Young Associates Ltd. 
 
Roedd Dr Jean Venables wedi’i hargymell i Gyngor Sir Ddinbych gan Sefydliad y 
Peirianwyr. 
 
Rhoddodd Dr Jean Venables amlinelliad byr o’i gyrfa.  Roedd safonau wedi newid 
yn ddiweddar ac roedd technegau modelu wedi gwella.  Roedd yr ymchwiliad wedi 
edrych ar y sefyllfa yng ngoleuni’r cyfarwyddyd a oedd ar gael pan wnaed 
penderfyniadau.  Felly, ni fu’n syndod bod y lefel ar gyfer y bwnd ar sail cyfrifiadau 
presennol yn wahanol i’r bwnd a adeiladwyd yn wreiddiol.  Er bod y lefel yn 
wahanol bellach, nid oedd hyn yn golygu bod y lefel wreiddiol yn anghywir yng 
ngoleuni’r cyfarwyddyd a’r wybodaeth a oedd ar gael ar y pryd. 
 
Roedd Awdurdod Datblygu Cymru wedi adeiladu Ffordd Gyswllt y Gogledd yn 
Rhuthun (A525) gyda chylchfan i’r gogledd o Ruthun i roi mynediad i dir a oedd 
wedi’i neilltuo ar gyfer datblygiad.  Roedd y Ffordd Gyswllt yn croesi gorlifdir naturiol 
Afon Clwyd ar arglawdd. 
 

Tudalen 9



Roedd sicrwydd preswylwyr yn bwysig gan fod llifogydd yn achosi llawer o boen 
meddwl.   Roedd preswylwyr angen sicrwydd bod y perygl o lifogydd yn cael ei reoli 
gan amddiffynfeydd llifogydd digonol.  Mae angen i’r amddiffynfeydd hyn fodloni 
yswirwyr a gadael i breswylwyr gysgu’r nos. 
 
Roedd amryw ddatrysiadau peirianneg wedi’u harchwilio i adfer lefel yr 
amddiffyniad.  Barn y Tîm Ymchwilio oedd mai’r datrysiad a oedd yn cynnig y 
datrysiad cynharaf a mwyaf cost-effeithiol i ailosod yr amddiffynfeydd yn erbyn 
llifogydd o amgylch y datblygiad oedd codi uchder y bwnd.  Yn y cyfamser, gellid 
rhoi bagiau tywod ar ben y bwnd nes i’r gwaith ddechrau i godi’r uchder.   
 
Roedd awduron yr adroddiad annibynnol yn teimlo bod rhwystrau yn chwarae rhan 
sylweddol ac roedd y rhwystrau wedi’u nodi. Roedd rhwystrau wedi’u hachosi gan 
lystyfiant naturiol, malurion, gwastraff adeiladwyr a thoriadau gardd wedi’u golchi i 
lawr gan ddŵr y llifogydd. 
 
Roedd maint y llifogydd yn ardal Glasdir wedi’i ystyried yn fanylach i bennu’r rôl 
oedd gan y sgriniau ar y ceuffosydd dan y Ffordd Gyswllt, ac yn enwedig lefel y 
rhwystrau.   
 
Roedd lefel newydd arfaethedig y bwnd yn seiliedig ar ragdybiaeth o rwystr 95%. 
 
Cymharwyd canlyniadau’r llif â chyfarwyddyd a gydnabyddir i bennu cyfnod 
dychwelyd bras y llifogydd a barnwyd ei fod yn tueddu at 1 mewn 100 mlynedd (h.y. 
rhwng 1% a 0.5% o siawns o ddigwydd mewn unrhyw flwyddyn). 
 
Roedd y Tîm Ymchwilio wedi ystyried beth fyddai lefel arferol o amddiffyniad pe 
bai’r datblygiad hwn yn cael ei hybu yn awr, ac roeddent yn teimlo mai’r safon 
briodol fyddai lefel o amddiffyniad a ddarparwyd gan: 
 
1 mewn 100 mlynedd + Lwfans Newid yn yr Hinsawdd, gyda 95% o rwystr 
ceuffosydd a 600mm bwrdd rhydd.   
Roedd bwrdd rhydd o 600mm yn ofyniad safonol ar gyfer ardaloedd preswyl sy’n 
gyfagos i ardaloedd llifogydd sensitif. 
 
 
Roedd y Tîm Ymchwilio yn argymell y dylid sefydlu trefn ymchwilio a chynnal a 
chadw ffurfiol o bob strwythur amddiffyn yn erbyn llifogydd, ceuffosydd a gorlifdir 
gyda chyfrifoldebau clir.  Roedd Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru yn gosod offer rhybuddio 
yn erbyn llifogydd ychwanegol a byddent yn sefydlu system adrodd gyda’r Cyngor a 
Phreswylwyr.  Roedd yr un mor bwysig, er bod cyfrifoldeb dros y rhain gyda’r 
Awdurdodau, bod y preswylwyr yn ymwybodol o’r perygl o lifogydd, ac yn cydnabod 
bod angen iddynt adrodd yn syth am beryglon posibl, megis tipio anghyfreithlon ar y 
gorlifdir neu goed neu ganghennau wedi syrthio.  Argymhellwyd sefydlu wardeiniaid 
llifogydd i fod â llinell gyswllt uniongyrchol gydag aelod o staff. 
 
Roedd y Tîm Ymchwilio yn annog symud griliau o’r ceuffosydd a gosod pyst i atal 
malurion mawr. 
 

Tudalen 10



Yn yr adroddiad, dywedwyd y byddai’r gwaith yn costio tua £250,000.  Roedd 
Llywodraeth Cymru a Taylor Wimpey wedi addo cyllid. 
 
Dywedodd y Cynghorydd David Smith wrth aelodau ei fod yn dymuno ychwanegu 
pedwerydd argymhelliad at yr adroddiad.  Dyma’r argymhelliad:- 
 
(4) Bod y Cyngor yn nodi bod nifer o faterion o ran y llifogydd a fu ar 27 Tachwedd 
2012 yn dal i fod heb eu datrys yn ôl preswylwyr Glasdir a bod y Cyngor yn sicrhau 
bod swyddogion a chynghorwyr yn gweithio gyda phreswylwyr Glasdir i ddatrys y 
materion hynny. 
 
Yna, gofynnodd y Cadeirydd i aelodau gyflwyno cwestiynau, fesul tri. 
 
Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Hugh Hilditch-Roberts ar ran y preswylwyr, fod yr 
adroddiad wedi’i groesawu ond bod nifer o gwestiynau ar ôl i’w hateb.  Dyma’r 
cwestiynau:- 

(i) Pe bai’r Ffordd Gyswllt wedi bod yn strwythur pont, a oedd yn wir na fyddem 
yn cael yr adroddiad hwn heddiw? 

(ii) A oedd cynllun yr amddiffynfeydd gwreiddiol yn erbyn llifogydd ar fai? 
(iii) Roedd llawer o asiantaethau wedi bod yn rhan o gynllun gwreiddiol Glasdir 

ac a oedd yr asiantaethau hynny yn gyfrifol? 
(iv) Llwybr arall ar gyfer llif rhag ofn y bydd rhwystr?  Pam na ddigwyddodd hyn? 
(v) Pwy gynlluniodd y sgriniau gwastraff, a pham na chawsant eu gwirio am 

rwystrau? 
(vi) Pwy oedd berchen ar y system llifogydd? 
(vii) Pam nad oedd sôn am y dirlawnder ym mis Medi 2012 a allai fod wedi 

cyfrannu at y llifogydd ym mis Tachwedd 2012? 
 
Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Bobby Feeley y byddai’r preswylwyr yn teimlo mwy o 
sicrwydd pe baent yn cael gwybod pwy oedd yn atebol am y llifogydd i sicrhau na 
fyddai digwyddiad o’r fath yn digwydd eto yn y dyfodol.   

(i) Pam nad oedd cofnodion cynnal a chadw?  
(ii) Pam yr adeiladwyd y Ffordd Gyswllt uwchben lefel yr ystâd? 
(iii) Yng ngoleuni’r newid hinsawdd a dderbyniwyd, pam na chafodd yr 

amddiffynfeydd gwreiddiol yn erbyn llifogydd eu hailasesu a’u diweddaru? 
(iv) A oedd ateb arall i ddefnyddio bagiau tywod ar ben y bwnd?  Pe bai’r bagiau 

tywod yn dirlenwi, byddent yn ddiwerth. 
 
Holodd y Cynghorydd Eryl Williams faint o ddŵr oedd ei angen o’r afon i lenwi’r 
ardal a mynd dros y bwnd a pha mor hir yr oedd wedi’i gymryd i lenwi oherwydd 
bod y geuffos wedi’i rhwystro.  Mynegodd y Cynghorydd Williams ei bryder am faint 
o falurion coed a oedd yn syrthio i afonydd a sut byddant yn cael eu trin, oherwydd 
bod yr hen Asiantaeth yr Amgylchedd yn rhan o sefydliad mwy bellach. 
 
Ymatebodd Dr Jean Venables.  Nid oedd sôn am waith atal yn yr adroddiad.  Rheoli 
Perygl Llifogydd oedd yr allwedd.   
Roedd strwythur y Ffordd Gyswllt a adeiladwyd gan Awdurdod Datblygu Cymru 
wedi’i hadeiladu i’r safonau gofynnol ar y pryd.  Roedd y sgriniau gwastraff wedi’u 
cynllunio i atal pobl rhag mynd i’r ceuffosydd.  Roedd cymaint o falurion wedi’i 
achosi gan ddŵr y llifogydd fel y byddai sgrin o unrhyw gynllun wedi’i rhwystro.   

Tudalen 11



Roedd ymwybyddiaeth o ddigwyddiad mis Medi 2012 ac roedd profiad ar hyd a lled 
y wlad o ddalgylchoedd yn dirlenwi’n llwyr. 
 
O ran priodoli bai, nid oedd tystiolaeth o unrhyw benderfyniadau esgeulus.   
 
Nid oedd bagiau tywod ar y bwnd yn ateb dymunol ond roeddent yn cynnig 
amddiffyniad yn y cyfamser dros y gaeaf cyn i uchder y bwnd gael ei godi yng 
ngwanwyn 2014. 
 
Roedd llawer iawn o ddŵr ond nid ydym yn gwybod faint o amser a gymerodd i 
lenwi’r geuffos.  Roedd angen cadw cyrsiau dŵr yn glir rhag malurion ac roedd 
camau gweithredu ar waith i fonitro’r sefyllfa yn y dyfodol. 
 
Roedd datrysiadau dros dro ar waith nes i atebion parhaol gael eu cadarnhau erbyn 
gwanwyn 2014.   
 
Mynegodd y Cynghorydd Stuart Davies bryder ynghylch pwy sydd â chyfrifoldeb am 
lanhau afonydd. 
 
Cytunodd y Cynghorydd Rhys Hughes â phryderon y Cynghorydd Davies a 
mynegodd bryder am symud y griliau o’r ceuffosydd. 
 
Cadarnhaodd Dr Jean Venables fod cyfrifoldeb am lanhau afonydd yn broblem 
genedlaethol yng Nghymru a Lloegr.  Roedd yn hynod anodd glanhau prif afonydd 
a byddai angen dull amlasiantaeth. 
 
Pan fyddai griliau ceuffosydd yn cael eu symud, byddai colofnau polion yn cael eu 
hychwanegu i ddal eitemau mawr gan eu hatal rhag llifo trwodd a rhwystro’r 
ceuffosydd. 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Cynghorydd Meirick Lloyd Davies fod yr Adroddiad Annibynnol yn 
hynod o gynhwysfawr.  Awgrymodd y Cynghorydd Davies y gallai cloddio twll mawr 
o dan y Ffordd Gyswllt fod yn ddatrysiad i alluogi dŵr i lifo trwodd. 
 
Holodd y Cynghorydd Gwyneth Kensler am gost y gwaith a oedd ynghlwm yn 
enwedig oherwydd yr hinsawdd economaidd bresennol a gorfod gwneud toriadau. 
 
Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Colin Hughes o ran y gost £250,000 gan gynnwys 
cyfraniad gan Lywodraeth Cymru a Taylor Wimpey, y byddai cyfraniad gan 
bartneriaid o fantais i’r preswylwyr lleol gan roi tawelwch meddwl iddynt.   
 
Eglurodd y Cynghorydd Joan Butterfield y gofynnwyd i Gynghorau Tref ledled y sir 
fod ar wyliadwriaeth o lifogydd ac roedd Cyngor Tref y Rhyl wedi cyflwyno Warden 
a byddai hyfforddiant yn digwydd y mis yma.  Soniwyd hefyd yn un o’r cyfarfodydd a 
gynhaliwyd pam na ellid dal ffermwyr yn gyfrifol am afonydd ar eu tir. 
 
Dywedodd Dr Jean Venables fod Asiantaeth yr Amgylchedd yn Lloegr yn edrych ar 
dirfeddianwyr i gynnal a chadw afonydd ar eu tir.   

Tudalen 12



Byddai’n bwysig i Wardeiniaid adrodd yn ôl am rwystrau a thipio anghyfreithlon.  Ni 
fyddai’n bosibl dargyfeirio dŵr heb ganlyniadau andwyol i eraill i lawr yr afon felly 
mae angen cydbwysedd. 
 
Cadarnhaodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: Uchelgais Economaidd a Chymunedol 
wrth aelodau mai ar gyfer cynyddu uchder y bwnd oedd mwyafrif y gost.  Byddai 
rhwydwaith Wardeiniaid Llifogydd ar waith ar draws y sir. 
 
Cynhaliwyd pleidlais am yr argymhellion a gyflwynwyd a chariwyd y bleidlais o 37 o 
blaid i 1 yn erbyn. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y byddai Aelodau yn amodol ar yr uchod yn : 

(i) Nodi canfyddiadau’r ymchwiliad annibynnol 
(ii) Derbyn yr argymhellion a nodir yn Adroddiad yr Ymchwiliad 
(iii) Cyfarwyddo swyddogion y Cyngor i fwrw ymlaen â gweithredu’r argymhellion 

a nodwyd yn Adroddiad yr Ymchwiliad.  
(iv) Sicrhau bod y Cyngor yn nodi bod nifer o faterion o ran y llifogydd a fu ar 27 

Tachwedd 2012 yn dal i fod heb eu datrys yn ôl preswylwyr Glasdir a bod 
y Cyngor yn sicrhau bod swyddogion a chynghorwyr yn gweithio gyda 
phreswylwyr Glasdir i ddatrys y materion hynny. 

 
 

Ar y pwynt hwn (11.55 am) 
 
Ailddechreuodd y cyfarfod am 12.15 p.m. 
 
 
Cyn dechrau gweddill y cyfarfod, rhoddodd yr Arweinydd, y Cynghorydd Hugh Evans 
wybod i Aelodau mai Cyngor Sir Ddinbych oedd y Cyngor a berfformiodd orau yng 
Nghymru unwaith eto. Cyflawnwyd y llwyddiant hwn drwy sicrhau bod gwasanaethau’n 
cydweithio’n agosach a swyddogion ac aelodau’n cydweithio’n agosach.  Canolbwynt Sir 
Ddinbych ar berfformiad oedd y mwyaf dwys yng Nghymru.  Dymunai’r Arweinydd fynegi 
ei ddiolch i aelodau a swyddogion am eu rhan yn sicrhau bod Cyngor Sir Ddinbych yn un 
o’r cynghorau gorau yng Nghymru. 
 
 
7 Y NEWYDDION DIWEDDARAF AM Y GYLLIDEB  

 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Arweiniol Cyllid ac Asedau Adroddiad Diweddariad y Gyllideb 
(dosbarthwyd eisoes) i roi gwybodaeth i Aelodau o ran y sefyllfa ddiweddaraf o ran 
pennu cyllideb y Cyngor ar gyfer 2014/15.   
Roedd yr adroddiad yn canolbwyntio ar gymeradwyo cyfres gychwynnol o arbedion 
arfaethedig ar gyfer 2014/15. Daw'r arbedion arfaethedig hyn yn sgil proses Heriau 
Gwasanaeth sydd wedi ei chynnal yn ystod y ddwy flynedd ddiwethaf.  
 
Roedd CLlLC yn argymell, at ddibenion cynllunio, bod Awdurdodau Lleol yn pennu 
lleihad arian parod o -4% yn 2014/15.   
 
Yn ystod y tair blynedd ddiwethaf roedd Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ceisio dylanwadu 
ar benderfyniadau lleol drwy ‘ddiogelu’ cyllidebau addysg a gofal cymdeithasol.   

Tudalen 13



Roedd parhau i roi’r sicrwydd yma i rai gwasanaethau ar lefel genedlaethol wedi 
golygu y gall gostyngiadau ariannol posibl effeithio’n wahanol ar feysydd heb eu 
diogelu ac na fyddai gan y cyngor yr hyblygrwydd i reoli'r effaith.  
 
Hefyd, roedd data’r cyfrifiad wedi effeithio’n andwyol ar y cyngor, gan dynnu sylw at 
y ffaith fod gwir boblogaeth y cyngor yn is na’r amcangyfrif yn yr amcangyfrifon 
poblogaeth cenedlaethol.  Roedd effaith ariannol y newid yn debygol o fod tua 
£3.1miliwn ond roeddent yn dal i aros am eglurhad gan Llywodraeth Cymru am sut 
y byddai’r newid yn cael ei weithredu. 
 
Roedd gwasanaethau ar hyn o bryd yn modelu senarios cyllideb ac yn nodi 
arbedion posibl.  Byddai’r rhain yn cael eu cyflwyno i’r aelodau yn ystod gweithdai 
cyllideb ar 21 Hydref a 9 Rhagfyr.   Byddai adroddiad yn cael ei gyflwyno i’r Cyngor 
Sir ar 3 Rhagfyr lle gellid cytuno ar arbedion a gefnogir gan aelodau etholedig a 
gellid canolbwyntio rhagor o egni ar unrhyw arbedion sy’n weddill i’w cytuno cyn i’r 
cyngor gytuno ar y gyllideb derfynol ar 4 Chwefror 2013. 
 
Codwyd y materion canlynol yn dilyn trafodaethau: 
 

 
(i) Gofynnwyd i bwysau’r AHNE o £20,000 beidio â chael ei gynnwys yn 

Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad oherwydd bod Sir Ddinbych yn cyllido £130,000, 
Sir y Fflint y cyllido £111,000 a Wrecsam yn cyllido £5,000.  Byddai cais 
yn cael ei anfon at bartneriaid i gynyddu eu cyllid i wrthweithio’r £20,000.  
Cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd y diwygiad. 

(ii) Mae gan Sir Ddinbych boblogaeth symudol na fyddai ar y gofrestr etholiadol 
ac na fyddai wedi cwblhau ffurflen cyfrifiad.  Roedd hyn wedi bod yn 
broblem o’r blaen. 

(iii) Codwyd gofal dydd i’r henoed fel pryder a rhoddwyd enghreifftiau o ran 
anawsterau ag offer domestig yn Hafan Deg. 

(iv) Pe bai aelodau ar fyrddau sefydliadau fel y Ganolfan Grefftau, Ectarc ac ati, 
a fyddai hawl ganddynt i fod yn rhan o’r ddadl a phleidleisio ar y materion 
hynny? 

 
Yn gyntaf, ymatebodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd i’r 
pwynt a godwyd o ran aelodau a oedd ar fyrddau sefydliadau.  Pe bai aelod yn cael 
ei benodi gan y cyngor hwn, roedd yr aelod wedi’i eithrio rhag bod â chysylltiad sy'n 
rhagfarnu ond byddai’n rhaid iddo ddatgan cysylltiad personol, ac felly, byddai’n 
gallu cymryd rhan mewn trafodaethau a phleidleisio. 
 
Yna ymatebodd y Pennaeth Cyllid ac Asedau i’r cwestiynau eraill. 
 
Ni fyddai problem o ran symud y £20,000 o Atodiad 1. 
 
Roedd y cyfrifiad yn ddogfen ddata swyddogol.  Roedd wedi gwaethygu yn achos 
Sir Ddinbych gan ei fod wedi’i wahanu yn ôl grŵp oedran, poblogaeth oedran ysgol 
a phoblogaeth yr henoed.   
 
Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: Moderneiddio a Lles y byddai angen i 
wasanaethau newid.  Byddai Hafan Deg yn cael ei ddefnyddio i gynorthwyo pobl ag 

Tudalen 14



ail-alluogi.  Nid oedd penderfyniad wedi'i wneud o ran pa offer fyddai eu hangen yn 
Hafan Deg. 
 
Eglurodd y Prif Weithredwr wrth aelodau fod amseroedd anodd o’u blaenau er bod 
Cyngor Sir Ddinbych yn gyngor hynod lwyddiannus. 
 
Roedd y Cynllun Corfforaethol wedi’i osod cyn cael gwybod gan Lywodraeth Cymru 
am y toriadau ariannol o ran cyllid.  Roedd y Cynllun Corfforaethol yn uchelgeisiol 
ac roedd yn sôn am symud y Cyngor ymlaen.  Byddai diweddariad ar y Cynllun 
Corfforaethol yn cael ei gyflwyno i gyfarfod y Cyngor yn y dyfodol. 
 
Pwysleisiwyd wrth aelodau bwysigrwydd mynychu gweithdai’r gyllideb ym mis 
Hydref a Rhagfyr 2013 pan fyddai trafodaethau manwl yn digwydd am yr arbedion 
effeithlonrwydd yn y dyfodol. 
 
Cynhaliwyd pleidlais am yr argymhellion a gyflwynwyd a chariwyd y bleidlais o 33 o 
blaid i 1 yn erbyn. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y byddai Aelodau yn : 

(i) Nodi sefyllfa ddiweddaraf cyllideb 2014/15 
(ii) Cymeradwyo’r arbedion arfaethedig 
(iii) Symud pwysau’r AHNE o £20,000 fel a gytunwyd. 

 
 

8 DATGANIAD POLISI TÂL  
 
Cyflwynodd y Prif Weithredwr y Datganiad Polisi Tâl (dosbarthwyd eisoes) i 
aelodau i fodloni goblygiadau cyfreithiol y Cyngor o ran Deddf Lleoliaeth 2011.  
Gofynnwyd am gymeradwyaeth o ran y Datganiad Polisi Tâl a oedd wedi’i ddrafftio 
yn unol â gofynion 38 (1) Deddf Lleoliaeth 2011 a oedd yn cynnwys pob trefniant tâl 
presennol ar gyfer y grwpiau gweithlu yn y Cyngor, gan gynnwys Prif Swyddogion a 
gweithwyr ar y tâl isaf.  Yr unig ddiwygiad i’w wneud i’r adroddiad oedd dan 4.3.1 
oherwydd y ffaith fod pob aelod o staff, ar wahân i Brif Swyddogion, wedi cael 
codiad cyflog 1% a fyddai’n cael ei ôl-ddyddio i fis Ebrill 2013.  Byddai’n cael ei dalu 
yn nhaliad mis Medi. 
 
Cynhaliwyd pleidlais am yr argymhellion a gyflwynwyd a chariwyd y bleidlais yn 
unfrydol. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y byddai aelodau yn cymeradwyo’r Datganiad Polisi Tâl fel y’i 
diwygiwyd i sicrhau bod y Cyngor yn cydymffurfio â’i oblygiadau cyfreithiol dan 
Ddeddf Lleoliaeth 2011. 
 
 

9 YMATEB YMGYNGHORIAD I’R COMISIWN AR LYWODRAETHU A DARPARU 
GWASANAETH CYHOEDDUS  
 
Cyflwynodd y Prif Weithredwr yr Ymateb Ymgynghoriad i’r Comisiwn ar 
Lywodraethu a Darparu Gwasanaeth Cyhoeddus (dosbarthwyd eisoes).  
Gofynnwyd i’r Cyngor ddarparu tystiolaeth i’r Comisiwn ar chwe maes canolbwynt 

Tudalen 15



allweddol: Perfformiad; Maint a Gallu; Cymhlethdod; Llywodraethu, Darparu ac 
Archwilio; Diwylliant ac Arweinyddiaeth a Llywodraeth Cymru a Chynulliad 
Cenedlaethol Cymru.   
 
Roedd y Prif Weithredwr wedi paratoi ymateb drafft dan bob un o’r penawdau.  
Roedd y drafft wedi’i ddosbarthu i aelodau ac roedd angen penderfyniad o ran p’un 
a ddylid cyflwyno’r drafft, wedi’i ddiwygio’n briodol gan aelodau, fel ymateb ffurfiol y 
Cyngor i’r galwad am dystiolaeth. 
 
Yn ogystal â’r ymateb drafft, roedd y Prif Weithredwr wedi cyflwyno papur, 
“Arweinyddiaeth yng Nghyngor Sir Ddinbych” a oedd yn cynrychioli ei farn ei hun o 
ran sut yr oedd arweinyddiaeth a pherfformiad wedi gwella yn Sir Ddinbych ac yn 
cynnig hwn fel tystiolaeth i’r Comisiwn.  Roedd hwn wedi’i ddosbarth i Aelodau. 
 
O ran Llywodraeth Leol, roedd y Comisiwn yn ystyried a ddylid newid trefniadau 
sefydliadol presennol gan fod y Comisiwn wedi dod i’r casgliad nad oedd y 22 
cyngor unedol presennol yn gynaliadwy. 
 
Roedd yn ymddangos mai’r opsiynau mwyaf credadwy oedd : 
 
Opsiwn 1 : mae 22 yn iawn, nid ydym o blaid newid y nifer hwn. 
Opsiwn 2 : dylai dau gyngor ddisodli’r chwe chyngor yng Ngogledd Cymru. 
Opsiwn 3 : rydym yn credu y byddai llai o gynghorau yn well ond nid oes gennym 
nifer mewn golwg. 
Opsiwn 4 : rydym yn credu y gellir lleihau nifer y cynghorau yng Ngogledd Cymru i 
dri a gallai nifer o gynghorau llai yn Ne Cymru uno hefyd. 
Opsiwn 5 : nid oes gennym farn. 
 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth hir, codwyd y pwyntiau canlynol : 
 

(i) Cadarnhaodd y Cynghorydd Joe Welch ar ran y Grŵp Annibynnol fod y grŵp 
wedi cynnal trafodaeth ar y mater yn ddiweddar.  Roedd cost yr ad-drefnu 
yn peri pryder.  Byddai’r tarfu ar wasanaethau yn ystod yr ad-drefnu yn 
broblem.  Byddai’r Grŵp Annibynnol yn dewis naill ai Opsiwn 1, 3 neu 4.  
Byddai’n rhaid i unrhyw newidiadau hirdymor fod o fudd i breswylwyr Sir 
Ddinbych. 

(ii) Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Joan Butterfield fod mwyafrif aelodau Llafur wedi 
ymateb fel unigolion. Byddai’r Grŵp Llafur yn anfon ymateb Grŵp a 
fyddai’n cael ei gopïo i bob aelod. 

(iii) Mynegodd y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson Hill bryder am yr effaith ar 
wasanaethau, cost ad-drefnu a’r ffaith fod perfformiad yn lleihau’n 
sylweddol yn ystod ad-drefnu.  Nid y cynghorau mwy oedd y gorau o 
reidrwydd. 

 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd, y Cynghorydd Hugh Evans ei fod yn anodd iawn gan fod 
Sir Ddinbych mewn sefyllfa dda iawn ar hyn o bryd.  Gallai Sir Ddinbych 
ddylanwadu ar y penderfyniad a wnaed gan y Comisiwn.  Byddai rhagor o 
gyfrifoldeb ar gynghorwyr sy’n gweithio mewn ardal fwy.   Roedd Sir Ddinbych 
mewn sefyllfa i ddylanwadu ar benderfyniad y Comisiwn. 
  

Tudalen 16



Rhoddodd y Prif Weithredwr grynodeb o’r drafodaeth.   
 
Cynhaliwyd pleidlais o ran pwy fyddai o blaid Cyngor Sir Ddinbych yn aros fel 
awdurdod unigol, ac roedd 25 o blaid a 2 yn erbyn.   
 
Dywedodd sawl aelod eu bod yn gwrthwynebu lleihau nifer y cynghorau yng 
Ngogledd Cymru i un neu ddau Gyngor yn y dyfodol. 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr y byddai’n drafftio ymateb a’i ddosbarth i Arweinwyr 
Grwpiau. 
 
Cynhaliwyd pleidlais o ran yr argymhellion a gyflwynwyd ac fe’i cariwyd o 26 o blaid 
ac 1 yn erbyn. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

(i) Cyflwyno’r ymateb arfaethedig, fel y’i diwygiwyd yng Nghyfarfod y Cyngor, i’r 
Comisiwn fel tystiolaeth Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 

(ii) Awdurdodi’r Prif Weithredwr i ysgrifennu at y Comisiwn i nodi barn y Cyngor 
ar nifer yr awdurdodau lleol yn y dyfodol mewn ymgynghoriad ag 
Arweinwyr Grwpiau. 
 

 
10 RHAGLEN GWAITH I’R DYFODOL Y CYNGOR SIR  

 
Cyflwynodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd Raglen Gwaith 
i'r Dyfodol y Cyngor (dosbarthwyd eisoes).   
 
Roedd posibilrwydd y byddai eitem ychwanegol yn y cyfarfod ar 8 Hydref 2013 - 
Deddf Delwyr Metel Sgrap 2013 ond nid oedd wedi’i gadarnhau.  Byddai’r mater yn 
cael ei gyflwyno yn y Cabinet. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y dylid cymeradwyo a nodi Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol y 
Cyngor, yn amodol ar yr uchod.  
 
 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 2.15 p.m. 
 
 

Tudalen 17



Tudalen 18

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

Adroddiad i’r:    Cyngor Sir 

Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   8 Hydref 2013 

Aelod/Swyddog Arweiniol:  Cyng Barbara Smith / Alan Smith 

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  Tony Ward 

Teitl:      Adolygiad Perfformiad Blynyddol 2012-13  

 

 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  

1.1 Mae’n ofynnol i’r cyngor gyhoeddi adroddiad blynyddol o’i berfformiad erbyn 

31 Hydref bob blwyddyn. Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn ymwneud ag Adroddiad 

Perfformiad Blynyddol drafft y cyngor ar gyfer 2012-13.   

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  

2.1 Mae angen penderfyniad i gymeradwyo’r Adolygiad Perfformiad Blynyddol 

drafft 2012-13, sy’n amgaeedig fel Atodiad 1 i’r adroddiad hwn. 

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

3.1 Fe argymhellir, yn amodol ar unrhyw newidiadau y cytunir arnynt, bod 

Aelodau’n cymeradwyo’r Adolygiad Perfformiad Blynyddol drafft ar gyfer 2012-

13 i ganiatáu ei gyfieithu a’i gyhoeddi cyn 31 Hydref 2013. 

4. Manylion am yr Adroddiad. 

4.1 Mae Cynllun Corfforaethol y Cyngor 2012-17 yn gosod y cyfeiriad strategol ar 

gyfer y cyngor a’i flaenoriaethau ar gyfer y cyfnod o bum mlynedd. Mae 

manylion am beth mae’r cyngor yn bwriadu ei wneud bob blwyddyn i helpu i 

gyflawni’r blaenoriaethau hyn yn cael eu nodi mewn cynlluniau gwasanaeth 

blynyddol a’r Ddogfen Ddarpariaeth Flynyddol ar gyfer y Cynllun Corfforaethol. 

Mae gan y cyngor nifer o amcanion cydraddoldeb yn ei Gynllun Cydraddoldeb 

Strategol hefyd, a chyfres o Gytundebau Canlyniadau gyda Llywodraeth 

Cymru. 

4.2 Mae’r adroddiad perfformiad blynyddol hwn yn rhoi gwerthusiad ôl-weithredol 

o lwyddiant y cyngor wrth gyflawni yn erbyn y cynlluniau hyn yn ystod 2012-

13, ac felly a yw’r cyngor wedi cyflawni ei rwymedigaeth yn llwyddiannus i 

wneud trefniadau i sicrhau gwelliant parhaus. 

5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau 

Corfforaethol? 

Eitem Agenda 7

Tudalen 19



5.1 Mae’r Adolygiad Perfformiad Blynyddol yn cynnwys gwerthusiad o lwyddiant y 

cyngor i ddarparu yn erbyn ei flaenoriaethau corfforaethol.  

 
6. Beth fydd yn ei gostio a sut bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 

6.1 Yr unig gostau sy’n gysylltiedig â’r adroddiad hwn yw’r rhai sy’n ymwneud ag 

argraffu’r adroddiad iddo fod ar gael mewn mannau derbynfa’r cyngor, 

llyfrgelloedd, siopau un stop ac ati. Gwneir hyn yn fewnol, gyda’r costau’n cael 

eu llyncu gan Gynllunio Busnes a Pherfformiad.  

7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb a 

gynhaliwyd am y penderfyniad? Dylid cynnwys yr Asesiad o Effaith ar 

Gydraddoldeb a gwblhawyd fel atodiad i’r adroddiad. 

7.1 Nid oes angen Asesiad Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb (AEC) ar gyfer yr adroddiad 

hwn. Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn rhoi gwerthusiad ôl-weithredol o berfformiad y 

cyngor, ac nid yw’r penderfyniad i gymeradwyo’r adroddiad yn cael unrhyw 

effaith bosibl ar bobl sy’n rhannu nodweddion gwarchodedig. Cynhaliwyd AEC 

ar y Cynllun Corfforaethol ei hun, a chafodd ei gyflwyno i’r Cyngor Sir pan 

gymeradwywyd y cynllun ym mis Hydref 2012. Mae’r templed AEC wedi’i 

gwblhau ynghlwm yn Atodiad II. 

8. Pa ymgynghoriadau a gynhaliwyd gydag Archwilio ac eraill?  

8.1 Mae’r adroddiad wedi cael ei ddatblygu gan y Tîm Gwella Corfforaethol, mewn 

ymgynghoriad â gwasanaethau eraill y cyngor. Mae’r wybodaeth am 

berfformiad a geir yn y ddogfen wedi cael ei darparu gan y gwasanaethau, ac 

wedi’i thynnu o system rheoli perfformiad Ffynnon. Mae ymgynghoriad wedi’i 

gynnal gyda’r Uwch Dîm Arweinyddiaeth (SLT) a’r Pwyllgor Archwilio 

Perfformiad ar 19 Medi 2013 cyn cael ei gyflwyno i’r Cyngor Sir i’w 

gymeradwyo. 

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 

9.1 Nid oes unrhyw oblygiadau ariannol sylweddol yn deillio o’r adroddiad hwn. 

10. Pa risgiau sy’n bodoli ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 

lleihau? 

10.1 “Mae’r risg o adroddiad(au) negyddol sylweddol gan reoleiddwyr allanol” ar 

hyn o bryd yn risg a nodwyd ar y Gofrestr Risg Corfforaethol. Byddai methu â 

chyhoeddi’r Adolygiad Blynyddol erbyn y dyddiad cau 31 Hydref yn debygol o 

arwain at argymhellion statudol gan Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru, gyda 

goblygiadau sylweddol i enw da’r Cyngor. 

11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 

Tudalen 20



11.1 Mae’r Cynllun Corfforaethol a’r Adolygiad Perfformiad Blynyddol yn elfennau 

allweddol o Raglen Cymru ar gyfer Gwella (2010), a ategir gan ofynion 

statudol Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1999 a Mesur Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) 

2009. 

Tudalen 21



Tudalen 22

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Adolygiad Perfformiad Blynyddol 2012/13   

      
 
 

Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 23



 

1 

Adolygiad Perfformiad Blynyddol 2012/13 
 

Cyswllt: 
 

Tony Ward, Cynllunio Busnes a Pherfformiad 

Diweddarwyd: 4 Medi 2013 
 

  
 
1. Pa fath o gynnig / penderfyniad sy’n cael ei asesu? 
 

Arall 

 
 

2. Beth yw pwrpas y cynnig / penderfyniad hwn, a pha newid (i 
staff neu’r gymuned) fydd yn digwydd yn sgil ei weithredu? 

 

Gofynnir am benderfyniad i gymeradwyo Adolygiad Perfformiad Blynyddol 2012-
13. Ni fydd y penderfyniad hwn yn arwain at unrhyw newid i staff na’r gymuned 
ehangach. 

 

3. A oes angen cynnal asesiad o effaith ar gydraddoldeb ar y 
cynnig / penderfyniad hwn?  Os nad oes, eglurwch pam. 

 Nodwch: Os bydd y cynnig yn cael effaith ar bobl (staff neu’r gymuned) yna 
bydd rhaid cynnal asesiad o effaith ar gydraddoldeb 

 

Nac oes Fel yr eglurwyd yn Adran 2, ni fydd y penderfyniad yn arwain 
at unrhyw newid i staff na’r gymuned ehangach, felly ni all 
gael effaith anghymesur ar bobl sy’n rhannu nodweddion 
penodol a ddiogelir. 

 
 

4. Rhowch grynodeb o’r camau a gymerwyd, a'r wybodaeth a 
ddefnyddiwyd, i gynnal yr asesiad hwn, gan gynnwys unrhyw 
ymgysylltu a fu 
(Gweler adran 1 yn y pecyn gwaith i gael cyfarwyddyd) 

 

Amherthnasol 

 
 

5. A fydd y cynnig / penderfyniad hwn yn cael effaith bositif ar 
unrhyw un o’r nodweddion a ddiogelwyd (oed; anabledd; ail 
aseinio rhyw; priodas a phartneriaeth sifil; beichiogrwydd a 
mamolaeth; hil; crefydd neu gred; rhyw; a thueddfryd rhywiol)?  
(Gweler adran 1 yn y pecyn gwaith i gael disgrifiad o’r nodweddion a ddiogelir) 

 

Amherthnasol 

 
 

Tudalen 24



 

2 

6. A fydd y cynnig / penderfyniad hwn yn cael effaith anghymesur 
ar unrhyw un o’r nodweddion a ddiogelwyd (oed; anabledd; ail 
aseinio rhyw; priodas a phartneriaeth sifil; beichiogrwydd a 
mamolaeth; hil; crefydd neu gred; rhyw; a thueddfryd rhywiol)?  

 

Amherthnasol 

 

7. A yw’r cynnig / penderfyniad wedi’i ddiwygio i ddileu neu 
leihau unrhyw effaith negyddol bosibl?  Os nac ydyw, eglurwch 
pam. 

 

Nac ydi Amherthnasol 

 

8. A ydych chi wedi nodi unrhyw gamau pellach i fynd i’r afael ag 
unrhyw effaith(iau) negyddol bosibl ac / neu eu monitro? 

 
Nac ydw Amherthnasol 

 

Gweithred(oedd) Perchennog Erbyn pryd? 

Amherthnasol             

                  

                  

                  

                  

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Datganiad 
 
Gwnaed pob ymdrech resymol i ddileu neu leihau unrhyw effaith anghymesur bosibl ar 
bobl sy’n rhannu nodweddion a ddiogelir. Caiff union effaith y cynnig / penderfyniad ei 
adolygu ar y cam priodol 
 

Dyddiad 
adolygu: 

Amherthnasol 

 

Enw’r Swyddog Arweiniol ar gyfer yr Asesiad o Effaith ar 
Gydraddoldeb 

Dyddiad 

Tony Ward 04.09.2013 
 
 

Nodwch y bydd angen i chi gyhoeddi canlyniad yr asesiad o effaith ar 
gydraddoldeb os byddwch yn nodi effaith debygol sylweddol. 

Tudalen 25



Tudalen 26

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

ANNUAL 

PERFORMANCE 

REPORT 

2012/13 

 

DENBIGHSHIRE 

COUNTY 

COUNCIL 
 

This report looks at council performance 

in terms of the delivery of the outcomes 

identified within the Corporate Plan, 

Strategic Equality Plan, Outcome 

Agreement, and the Statutory 

Performance Framework 

 

Tudalen 27



 

  

Tudalen 28



This document may be available in other formats on request 

Os ydych angen gwybodaeth bellach, gofynnwch os gwelwch yn dda i rhywun yr 

ydych yn gwybod sydd yn siarad Cymraeg neu Saesneg i ffonio 01824 706161 

If you need further information, please ask someone you know who speaks English 

or Welsh to telephone 01824 706161 

Jeżeli potrzebują państwo dalszych informacji, proszę poprosić kogoś, kto mówi po 

angilesku lub walijsku żeby zadzwonił pod numer 01824 706161 

 

 
 

 
 

Se você precisar de nova informação, por favor pergunte alguém você sabe quem 

diz o galês o'r inglês para telefonar 01824 706161 

 

��� �� ���� ، ���� �� ا�������ت اذا آ�
 	���� ا�� �� ��� ا�*� ( ا)'&�%��� أو ا������� �"��ث  ��ف �� ا�

01824706161 

 

如果您需要更多信息，请向你认识的人谁讲英语或威尔士电话：01824706161 

 

To make comments and suggestions or for further information please contact: 

By EMAIL: corporate.improvement@denbighshire.gov.uk 

By TELEPHONE: 01824 706161 

By POST: Corporate Improvement Team 

Denbighshire County Council, 

County Hall, 

Wynnstay Road, 

Ruthin, LL15 1YN 

 

01824706161 

01824 706161 

Tudalen 29



CONTENTS 

 Page 

FOREWORD 1 

INTRODUCTION 2 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 4 

PERFORMANCE REVIEW 6 

1.1 CORPORATE PLAN 7 

1.2 STRATEGIC EQUALITY PLAN 34 

1.3 OUTCOME AGREEMENT 54 

1.4 NATIONAL STRATEGIC INDICATORS 55 

1.5 EXTERNAL INSPECTION AND REGULATION WORK 56 

1.6 COLLABORATION 59 

 

Tudalen 30



FOREWORD 

1 

Each year we publish a report to review our performance and to evaluate how 

successful we have been in delivering real benefits for our communities.  This report 

is a review of our performance during the 2012/13 financial year. 

It was during last year that the council agreed a new five-year Corporate Plan for 

2012 - 2017, with 2012/13 representing the first year of that plan.  Although it is 

without question the most ambitious Corporate Plan the council has ever had, it is 

also achievable.  The plan sets out our priorities for the five-year period, and this 

report evaluates our progress so far.  We know that some of our priorities will take 

several years to deliver, and we realise that the full benefits of our Corporate Plan 

will be realised beyond 2017.  In particular, the priorities focussing on the economy 

and education have a timescale beyond the five years of our Corporate Plan.  

However, it is important for us to be able to demonstrate the progress we have made 

at the end of each year, and this report aims to do that. 

I am pleased to be able to say that we made significant progress with some of our 

priorities during 2012/13, and we were able to lay the foundations for success for 

those (like developing the local economy) that have a longer-term focus.   

In addition to our Corporate Plan, the council also has a Strategic Equality Plan, and 

we will use this report to evaluate our progress in delivering our equality objectives.  

We want to include these to show that equality work is not seen as a separate 

activity, and that we are working hard to ensure that equalities becomes part of our 

day-to-day business.  Many of our equality objectives are linked to our priorities, and 

our next Corporate Plan in 2017 will include equality objectives and remove the need 

for a separate Strategic Equality Plan. 

I am proud to say that Denbighshire has consistently been the highest performing 

council in Wales in recent years, according to the indicators used by the Welsh 

Government to evaluate local government performance.  In 2012/13, we performed 

in the top quarter of councils in Wales for 17 of 30 statutory indicators, which is more 

than any other council.  Furthermore, we had fewer indicators in the bottom half of 

councils than any other council in Wales (8 out of 30), and we were the best council 

in Wales on issues such as preventing homelessness and recycling.  Our aim is not 

only to maintain our status as a high performing Welsh council, but also to deliver 

further improvements and become an excellent council that compares favourably 

with the best authorities outside of Wales.   

 

 

Dr Mohammed Mehmet, Chief Executive 

Tudalen 31



INTRODUCTION 

2 

This report provides an overall assessment of the performance of Denbighshire 

County Council during 2012/13, and contains sections on the following elements of 

our work: 

1. The council’s Corporate Plan 2012-17, and progress in delivering our corporate 

priorities; 

2. The council’s Strategic Equalty Plan, and progress in delviering our equality 

objectives; 

3. The council’s progress in delivering on our Outcome Agreements with the Welsh 

Government (designed to demonstrate how we contribute to national priorities); 

4. The council’s performance in relation to the National Strategic Indicators (used 

by the Welsh Government to evaluate local government performance in Wales); 

5. The conclusions from audit and inspection work from our external regulators; 

6. Progress on major collaborative projects with other councils and agencies. 

 

HOW WE UNDERSTAND OUR PERFORMANCE 

The following contains information that will help you to understand the analysis of our 

progress, particularly in relation to our priorities. 

Each priority has one or more "outcomes", which describe the benefits we aim to 

deliver for our communities.  We use a selection of "indicators" to help us understand 

whether we are making progress with delivering these outcomes.  Indicators do not 

directly measure the performance of the council, as most indicators are outside of 

our full control and tell us about the external environment.  However, indicators are 

useful and important because they help us to understand whether outcomes for our 

communities are getting better or worse.  

Each outcome also has a selection of "performance measures" which measure the 

success of the council’s work in realtion to that outcome.  Each indicator and 

performance measure is given a status that describes the current position.  The 

status tells us how good the current position is, and the colours below represent the 

following definitions:  

Status Definition 

Green The current position is excellent 

Yellow The current position is good  

Orange The current position is acceptable  

Red The current position is a priority for improvement 

 

These colours do not show whether we have met a particular “target” because, 

unlike most other councils, we do not set specific targets for indicators and 

performance measures.  This is because targets tend to be based on achieving 

Tudalen 32



INTRODUCTION 

3 

minor annual improvements, but this type of system does not tell us how well we are 

performing comparatively.  Using a traditional approach, it is possible to meet a 

target (and show this as green) even if the comparative position is still very poor.   

Our system means that we  only report something as “green” if the current position 

for an indicator or performance measure is genuinely “excellent”.  Where possible, 

we use comparisons with other councils to say how good the position is in 

Denbighshire.  Being “green” or “excellent” usually means we are in the top quarter 

of councils in Wales, and “red” usually means we are in the bottom half of councils in 

Wales, which would be a “priority for improvement”.  However, where being in the 

top quarter of councils in Wales cannot be classed as “excellent”, we use a different 

threshold.  For educational attainment, we only call something “excellent” if we are 

the best in Wales, because educational attainment in Wales is currently lower than in 

other parts of the UK.  For sickness absence, we compare our position with the UK 

private sector because we feel that sickness absence in Welsh councils is higher 

than we would expect it to be in Denbighshire.   

Each outcome also has "improvement activities", which are projects and actions 

designed to contribute to the delivery of the outcome.  We monitor the delivery of 

these activities by providing a "delivery confidence".  The same four colours are used 

to mean the following: 

Status Delivery Confidence Definition 

Green 
Successful delivery appears highly likely and there are no major outstanding 

issues that at this stage appear to threaten delivery significantly 

Yellow 
Successful delivery appears probable but significant issues already exists 

requiring management attention. 

Orange 
Successful delivery is in doubt with major risks or issues apparent in a 

number of key areas. 

Red Successful delivery appears to be unachievable. 

 

We use a wide range of information to understand the progress being made by the 

council.  As well as using traditional measures of our performance (which measure 

how much of something we do, or how well we do it), we also analyse population 

indicators that tell us whether people in our communities are any better off than they 

used to be.  It is also important for us to know how people feel about the outcomes 

we hope to deliver, so we undertake a number of surveys to evaluate whether 

people are feeling more or less positive about things that affect their lives.   

Monitoring our improvement activities is important because these are the things that 

we hope will make a positive difference to our communities in the future.  Finally, we 

evaluate what our external regulators say about us.  We have brought all of these 

things together to produce a balanced report  of our performance in 2012/13.

Tudalen 33



FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

4 

The Financial Position 

The council sets a revenue budget each year. This revenue budget covers the costs 

of the services the council provides, and is paid for by service users, Welsh 

Government Grants, Council Tax, and Business Rate payers. For 2012/13, the 

revenue budget was £260 million. 

In 2010/11, in order to meet the reduced budget settlements forecast as part of the 

UK Government spending cuts to address the national debt, we began the process 

of identifying where we could make financial savings. The council set a four-year 

savings programme to deliver approximately £18 million by the end of 2014/15. The 

saving target for 2012/13 was £3.4 million and this saving was delivered. We made a 

pledge to meet the required savings while protecting frontline services, through a 

combination of reviewing management structures; developing new ways of working; 

and supporting early retirement and voluntary redundancy from council employees. 2 

All services underwent a Service Challenge to identify areas for savings and to 

explain how we could achieve these while protecting frontline services. We used this 

information as the basis to develop a Medium Term Financial Plan, which set out 

how the council will make these savings. The Medium Term Financial Plan is being 

revised in 2013/14 to take account of potential reductions to the council’s budget 

settlement. Targets for future years’ savings will become clearer once formal 

notification of future settlements is received. 

We will have to take care and manage demands for services while the amount of 

money available to pay for them is reduced. Reductions in the amount the council 

spends each year will continue to be required, and some very tough decisions will 

have to be taken to ensure we continue to operate within our means. 

In 2012/13, we invested an additonal £1 million in our priorities, allocated as follows: 

Area £’000 

Modernising Education 200 

Highways 100 

Town Plans/Regeneration 100 

Information & Communication Technology 300 

Foryd Harbour 100 

Demographic Change/Extra Care Housing 200 

Total 1,000 

By the end of the year, the council had spent £1.5 million less than it budgeted for on 

services and corporate budgets, including making a budgeted contribution to 

balances of £300k. The year-end position made it possible to make a net 

contribution to reserves and balances (including schools) of £3.1 million.  

Tudalen 34



FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

5 

 

During 2012/13, the council agreed an ambitious Corporate Plan which aims to 

deliver investment of over £120 million in schools, social care facilities and roads in 

the coming five to seven years. External funding will contribute to the overall cost of 

investment in schools and roads, but the Plan relies upon internal resources to fund 

borrowing and to provide cash. Such a significant investment will help improve key 

services but does not come without risk, and therefore measures are in place to 

continually assess the delivery and affordability of the Plan. During 2012/13 we 

contributed additional cash resources of £2.7 million to help fund the Corporate Plan.  

Capital investment in council assets amounted to over £38 million in 2012/13, which 

included £6.4 million spent on improvements to the council’s housing stock. Indeed, 

expenditure on Housing and Regeneration-related projects was the most significant 

area of capital investment in 2012/13. The graph below also shows that significant 

investment has been made to maintain and improve the council’s road network and 

other infrastructure, as well as investment in other service areas. 

Tudalen 35



1.0 PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

6 

The rest of this report provides a review of progress during 2012/13, and it is split 

into the following sections:  

 

The Corporate Plan 

There are a total of 14 outcomes within our Corporate Plan, with each of our seven 

corporate priorities having one or more outcome.  This report reviews each outcome 

and provides an evidence-based assessment  of the current position. 

 

Strategic Equality Plan 

There are a total of six equality objectives that were agreed between north Wales 

public bodies.  Each equality objective has one or more "action areas" (or 

outcomes).  This report  reviews the progress made in each of  the "action areas" 

where the council felt it could make a contribution. 

 

Outcome Agreement 

Like all councils in Wales, we developed a set of ten outcomes within our Outcome 

Agreement with the Welsh Government.  The Outcome Agreement sets out how we 

will work towards improving outcomes for local people within the context of the 

Welsh Government's national priorities.  This report reviews the council’s progress in 

delivering on its Outcome Agreement. 

 

National Strategic Indicators 

There are a total of 30 statutory indicators, known as the National Strategic 

Indicators (NSIs).  The NSIs are used to measure performance of local authorities at 

a national level, and this report provides an overall assessment of the performance 

of Denbighshire County Council.  

 

External Regulation And Inspection Work 

Like all councils in Wales, the work of Denbighshire County Council is scrutinised by 

external regulators to ensure that we use public money efficiently and effectively to 

deliver benefits for our communities.  The Wales Audit Office has an annual 

programme of audit and assessment work that it undertakes in the council, and the 

conclusions from this work are brought together in an Annual Improvement Report.  

Other regulators undertake work relating to specific service areas.  The main ones 

are Her Majesty’s Inspectorate for Education and Training in Wales (Estyn) and the 

Care and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales (CSSIW).  This report summarises 

the conclusions made about the council by our external regulators during 2012/13.  

 

Collaboration 

Sometimes it is possible to reduce costs or improve services for the community by 

working in collaboration with other councils or agencies.  The report reviews 

progress with the major collaborative projects we are involved with.  

 

Tudalen 36



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

7 

PRIORITY: Developing the local economy 

Our approach to the “developing the local economy” corporate priority has been 

slightly different to the other priorities in our Corporate Plan.  During 2012/13, the 

main focus for this priority was to develop an Economic and Community Ambition 

Strategy.  The development of this strategy was required to provide us with a clearly 

defined approach to address this significant area of work.   

During the first year of the Corporate Plan (2012/13), much work has also been done 

to address the knowledge and information gaps that limited our understanding of the 

local economy.  We have now got to the stage where we have a draft proposal for 

the structure of this priority, and a draft set of indicators for each of the six outcomes 

under the priority (as set out on pages 7-17 of this report).  This structure is included 

in this report to provide an idea of how this priority is developing.  However, it should 

be noted that this is subject to change - following the agreement of the Economic 

and Community Ambition Strategy – and also, as our understanding of data 

availability becomes clearer for each of the proposed indicators. 

The performance management framework will therefore be finalised during 2013/14. 

We will then have a much clearer understanding of the health of the local economy, 

and we will be able to start delivering a co-ordinated programme of works aimed at 

influencing the key outcome indicators. 

 

PRIORITY: Developing the local economy 

OUTCOME 1: The infrastructure that connects the county internally, to the wider 

region and beyond, will enable individuals and businesses based in Denbighshire to 

compete effectively in wider markets for jobs and trade 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

The overall position for this outcome will take more time to become clear because there are 

too many unknown factors to be able to make a full assessment.  In particular, a number of 

indicators rely on the results of a business survey that is due to take place towards the end 

of 2013/14.  This survey will provide the information needed to evaluate this outcome fully.  

However, of the information that is currently available, we do know that the position with 

broadband and 3G in Denbighshire is poor, with both achieving very low Ofcom rankings. 

 

TRANSPORT 

Indicators Status 

% of people who report travel difficulties as a barrier to employment New for 2013/14 

% of businesses who report travel difficulties as a barrier to employment New for 2013/14 

% of businesses who report selling goods and services to a wider area New for 2013/14 

 

Tudalen 37



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

8 

DIGITAL AND MOBILE 

Indicators Status 

Ofcom five point ranking for overall broadband performance 4
1
 

Ofcom rank for premises that receive a 3G signal from all operators 5
1
 

Ofcom rank for premises that receive a 4G signal from all operators n/a 

% of businesses who report carrying out activity in e-commerce New for 2013/14 

 

LAND AND PREMISES 

Indicators Status 

% of employment land sites in use Tbc 

% of employment land sites ready to be developed Tbc 

% of all available employment land with business premises in use Tbc 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The successful delivery of the main improvement activity appears highly likely, offering 

confidence that we are contributing effectively to the outcome.  The North Wales Economic 

Ambition Board has now been formally agreed by all six north Wales local authorities, and it 

has identified three priorities: Advanced Manufacturing (led by Flintshire), Energy & 

Environment (led by Anglesey), and Inward Investment (led by Wrexham).   

Denbighshire is leading on the development of an integrated Infrastructure Investment 

Plan and a Skills Development Plan.  The delivery confidence "yellow" indicates 

confidence in the successful delivery of the project, with resolvable issues that do not 

present a cost/schedule overrun. 

Infrastructure Investment Plan 

Understanding the economic benefit for investment in Rail Electrification in North Wales has 

been identified as an early priority for the Infrastructure Investment Plan.  Denbighshire will 

contribute to this via the development of an economic case for investment in Rail 

Electrification.  The data collection to support the economic case is underway. 

Skills Development Plan 

The Welsh Government shortened the timetable for the Skills Development Plan.  A 

workshop with all North Wales local authorities was held in June 2013, which looked at the 

baseline information. 

Improvement Activity Status 

The North Wales Regional Economic Ambition Board Yellow 

  

                                            

1
 Each area is ranked on how it scores on four broadband metrics, on a scale of 1 to 5, with 1 the highest or 

fastest, and 5 the lowest or slowest. 

Tudalen 38



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

9 

PRIORITY: Developing the local economy 

OUTCOME 2: Denbighshire will have a workforce with the skills required for 

business growth 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

Again, the overall position for this outcome will take more time to become fully clear because 

there are still some unknown factors until we undertake the business survey towards the end 

of 2013/14.  However, of the information that is available, we do know that Denbighshire had 

a higher- than-average proportion of working age people claiming Job Seeker’s Allowance 

(JSA) as of 31st March 2013.  This was also true of 16 -24 year olds in Denbighshire, 

although recent data shows a reduction in JSA Claimants in each group, which is a positive 

development. 

Denbighshire also has a smaller proportion than most other council areas in Wales of the 

working age population with qualifications at level 2 and above, although the position for 

those with qualifications of level 4 and above is more positive (classed as “acceptable”).  

However, the position is “excellent” for the proportion of the working age population with no 

qualifications at all. 

Therefore the information provides some positives and some negatives, although most of the 

indicators are currently classed as being a “priority for improvement” (where data exists).  

This is not a surprise to us, and this is why the outcome was included in our Corporate Plan 

in the first place, i.e. because we would like the position to improve.  Clearly these 

improvements are very difficult to achieve, and it may take several years to show significant 

improvement.  However, we made the decision when developing our Corporate Plan that 

being difficult to achieve is not a good enough reason to stop us from trying. 

 

SKILLS FOR WORK AND LIFE 

Indicators Status 

% of the working age population with no qualifications 9.3 

% of the working age population with qualifications of level 2 and above 69.8 

% of the working age population with qualifications of level 4 and above 28.8 

 

CONNECTING PEOPLE WITH JOBS 

Indicators Status 

% of year 11 school leavers not in employment, education, or training 3.6 

% of the working age population claiming Job Seeker’s Allowance 4.2 

% of the population aged 16 to 24 claiming Job Seeker’s Allowance 7.2 

 

ADVANCED SKILLS FOR GROWTH 

Indicators Status 

% of businesses reporting unfilled vacancies due to unsuitable applicants New for 2013/14 

% of businesses reporting difficulty recruiting staff with the right skills New for 2013/14 

Tudalen 39



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

10 

ENTERPRISE AND ENTREPRENUERSHIP 

Indicators Status 

% of the labour supply in Denbighshire who are self employed 10.8 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The successful delivery of the improvement activities appears highly likely, offering 

confidence about the council's contribution to this outcome.  At this stage the council 

identifies no major outstanding issues that pose a threat to delivery, with the exception of the 

facilitated discussions between Rhyl City Strategy and the Honey Club.  The successful 

delivery of this project was in some doubt due to issues with the compulsory purchase order 

of the adjoining property.  However, urgent action was taken and recent developments show 

that the objections to the compulsory purchase order have been withdrawn.  This has 

quickened progress, with notices of cancellation received from the Planning Inspector, 

erected on site, and placed in the local press. 

Improvement Activity Status 

Closing the skills gap in Denbighshire
2
 Green 

Facilitate discussion between Rhyl City Strategy and Honey Club Orange 

  

                                            

2
 This council is working with businesses, the Sector Skills Council, and Careers Wales to identify skills gaps. It 

will then work with schools, careers advisors, and colleges to develop advice and courses for young people. 

Tudalen 40



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

11 

PRIORITY: Developing the local economy 

OUTCOME 3: Businesses will develop and grow in Denbighshire 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

There are still significant data gaps that limit our ability to determine the current position of 

this outcome.  All of the indicators are new and will be reported during 2013/14, with several 

of them relying on the business survey that will take place towards the end of 2013/14.   

 

BUSINESS SUPPORT 

Indicators Status 

No. of businesses that access business advice & support services New for 2013/14 

% of businesses that receive support and achieve the planned goals New for 2013/14 

 

LOCAL BUSINESS CONNECTIONS 

Indicators Status 

% of businesses who report that they are part of a business network  

a. Local New for 2013/14 

b. Regional New for 2013/14 

c. National New for 2013/14 

% of businesses who report some benefit from their business network  

a. Local New for 2013/14 

b. Regional New for 2013/14 

c. National New for 2013/14 

 

DCC PROCUREMENT AND LOCAL IMPACT 

Indicators Status 

£ value of procurement contracts awarded to local businesses Tbc 

£ value of local procurement as a % of total procurement Tbc 

% of agreed community and social benefit clauses that are:  

a. fully achieved Tbc 

b. partially achieved Tbc 

c. not achieved Tbc 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The successful delivery of improvement activities appears highly likely, offering confidence 

about the council's contribution to this outcome.  At this stage, the council identifies no major 

outstanding issues that pose a threat to delivery. 

Tudalen 41



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

12 

The delivery of the Local Economic Ambition Strategy has been incorporated into the overall 

Economic and Community Ambition (ECA) Programme.  A series of workshops is now 

complete, and the draft strategy and action plan is on track and was considered by council in 

July 2013. 

Nearly all management posts following the restructure of Economic Development and 

Regeneration are now in place. The process now moves on to the teams to support the 

management posts. 

Improvement Activity  Status 

Bee and Station Hotel
3
 Green 

Fund capital projects to micro rural enterprises
4
 Green 

Develop a Local Economic Ambition Strategy Green 

Restructure support for Economic Development & Regeneration Green 

  

                                            

3
 This is the work to redevelop the derelict Bee & Station Hotel in Rhyl into quality business accommodation. 

4
 The council will publicise funding opportunities for capital projects to micro rural enterprises under the Rural 

Development Plan's rural Denbighshire business creation and development project. 

Tudalen 42



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

13 

PRIORITY: Developing the local economy 

OUTCOME 4: Denbighshire’s existing economic strengths and new potential will be 

maximised 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

There are still significant data gaps that limit our ability to fully determine the current position 

of this outcome.  No agreement has yet been reached on what would be “excellent”, “good” 

etc. for these indicators, and these thresholds will be set once the Economic and Community 

Ambition Strategy has been approved.  However, clearly the ambition is to see significant 

improvements (increases) for all the indicators listed below.   

 

TOURISM 

Indicators Status 

Total revenue derived from tourism (£m) 314 

No. of residents employed in accommodation & food services 4059 

No. of businesses in accommodation & food services 350 

 

GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES 

Indicators Status 

No. of businesses in production sector 205 

No. of residents employed in manufacturing services 3300 

No. of residents employed in energy & water sector 600 

 

SOCIAL ENTERPRISE 

Indicators Status 

The count of births of new social enterprises Tbc 

The one year survival rate for new social enterprises Tbc 

The three year survival rate for new social enterprises Tbc 

The number of jobs created within the social enterprise sector Tbc 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The projects identified as the council's contribution to this outcome are progressing well.  

Some management attention is required, but the issues appear to be resolvable and 

should not present a problem that threatens delivery. 

Improvement Activity Status 

Develop the tourism sector by delivering new and improved mountain bike trail initiatives: 

a. Llyn Brenig Area Yellow 

Tudalen 43



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

14 

b. Llantyslio Mountain Yellow 

c. Moel Famau Yellow 

Develop the tourism sector by delivering six web-based digital trails Green 

The Regional Economic Ambition Board will work on three key priorities:  

a. Attracting Inward Investment Yellow 

b. Energy & Environment Sector Yellow 

c. Advanced Manufacturing Sector Yellow 

  

Tudalen 44



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

15 

PRIORITY: Developing the local economy 

OUTCOME 5: Towns and rural communities will be revitalised 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

There are still significant data gaps that limit our ability to fully determine the current position 

of this outcome.  Some of the indicators for this outcome are based on the Residents’ 

Survey.  The overall evaluation will therefore need to be completed following the analysis of 

these results, which will be distributed before the report is presented to Council on 8th 

October 2013. Data not yet available. 

The position for vacant town centre premises is currently better than the UK average, but no 

decision has been made as to what benchmarks we will use to determine whether the 

current position in Denbighshire is excellent; good, acceptable, etc.  

For the indicators relating to the rural economy, further work is required to define the rural 

population.  Once this is established, we will be able to provide data for those indicators.  

 

TOWN AND AREA PLANS 

Indicators Status 

% of activities in town & areas plans with a delivery confidence of GREEN New for 2013/14 

 

TOWN CENTRES AND HIGH STREETS OF THE FUTURE 

Indicators Status 

% of vacant town centre premises 11.1 

% of residents reporting overall satisfaction with their town centre Residents’ Survey 

% of town residents reporting overall satisfaction with their local area Residents’ Survey 

% of town centre businesses reporting confidence in future prospects New for 2013/14 

 

RURAL DENBIGHSHIRE 

Indicators Status 

% of the rural working age population claiming Job Seekers Allowance Tbc 

No. of rural LSOA in Denbighshire with a median income below £XXX p/w Tbc 

% of rural residents reporting overall satisfaction with their local area Residents’ Survey 

% of rural businesses reporting confidence in their future prospects Residents’ Survey 

 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The work to deliver this outcome is progressing as planned; there are no outstanding issues 

threatening delivery. 

Improvement Activity Status 

Tudalen 45



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

16 

Year 1 projects within Town Plans will be delivered with our support Green 

Finance plans for projects will be developed for subsequent years Green 

PRIORITY: Developing the local economy 

OUTCOME 6: Deprivation in parts of Rhyl and upper Denbigh will be reduced 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

The Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) is the official measure of deprivation in 

small areas in Wales.  Wales is divided into 1,896 Lower-Layer Super Output Areas (LSOA), 

each having about 1,500 people.  Deprivation ranks are worked out for each of these areas: 

the most deprived LSOA is ranked 1, and the least deprived 1,896. One area has a higher 

deprivation rank than another if the proportion of people living there that are classed as 

deprived is higher.  The WIMD was last updated in 2011, and the next update will be in 

2014.  In 2011, 10% of LSOAs in Denbighshire were among the 10% most deprived LSOAs 

in Wales.  This would appear to a proportionate position, although our ambition would be to 

reduce that proportion during the period of our Corporate Plan.  The WIMD tends to be 

updated every three years, so we can expect an update in 2017. This will enable us to 

evaluate whether we have been successful in reducing deprivation in the most deprived 

areas of the county.   

 

TACKLING DEPRIVATION AND POVERTY 

Indicators Status 

% of LSOA that fall into the 10% most deprived in Wales 10 

No. of LSOA with a JSA claimant count greater than Wales average 9 

No. of LSOA with a median household income below 60% Wales median 32 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

Overall, the successful delivery of the majority of improvement activities appears likely, 

offering a reasonable level of confidence about the council's contribution to this outcome.  

However, at this stage there are three projects with an Orange status.  This means that 

successful delivery of those projects is in doubt, with major risks or issues apparent in a 

number of key areas.  The council is actively managing those risks and we remain hopeful 

about delivering those projects successfully. 

The issues with the Rhyl Harbour Development do not relate to delivery of the project itself.  

We remain confident that the facility will be delivered in a way that enables the harbour 

business to grow and become a genuine attraction for the town.  The current concern relates 

specifically to the number of new jobs to be created by June 2016, which is a requirement of 

the grant funding, given that the business will need time to develop.  The issue with the West 

Rhyl Housing Improvement Project relates to compulsory purchase orders delaying the 

project.  As mentioned earlier in the report, the issues with the development of the Honey 

Club Hotel related to objections to the compulsory purchase order, but these have recently 

been withdrawn enabling demolition works to commence on site. 

Tudalen 46



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

17 

Improvement Activity Status 

Parental support for deprived 0-4 year olds Green 

Delivery of Welfare Rights Support in Denbighshire Green 

Delivery of additional Welfare Rights Support in Denbighshire Green 

North Denbighshire Cluster bid for Communities First Scheme Green 

Rhyl Harbour development Orange 

Honey Club Hotel development in Rhyl Orange 

West Rhyl Housing Improvement Project Orange 

  

Tudalen 47



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

18 

PRIORITY: Improving performance in education and the quality of our school 

buildings 
OUTCOME 7: Students achieve their potential 
 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

We are using a higher benchmark for excellence for the educational attainment indicators 

than just a Wales comparison.  This is because attainment levels in Wales tend to be lower 

than other parts of the UK, and we do not feel that being in the top quarter of authorities in 

Wales can genuinely be classed as “excellent”.  We therefore only class these indicators as 

“green / excellent” if Denbighshire is the best in Wales.  Being in the top quarter of councils 

in Wales is classed as “yellow / good”, and being in the top half of councils in Wales is 

classed as “orange / acceptable”.  Being in the bottom half of councils in Wales would still be 

classed as “red / priority for improvement”.    

The overall position for this outcome is positive, with attainment rates improving for all 

measures at key stages 2 and 4 last year.  Denbighshire has a higher proportion of pupils 

achieving the level 2 threshold or vocational equivalents than any other council in Wales, 

and we are in the top quarter of councils for the average capped points score for pupils at 

key stage 4.  However, three indicators are currently causing concern.  First, the proportion 

of pupils leaving without an approved qualification is comparatively high, and a reduction to 

below 0.25% looks necessary for our position to become "acceptable" in future years.  

Second, the proportion of pupils achieving the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2 is 

comparatively low, although it should be noted that the actual position in Denbighshire 

improved by 1.2% in 2012/13, and our position is only 0.1% away from being “acceptable”.  

Finally, the number of fixed-term exclusions is comparatively high, having increased from 

533 in 2011/12 to 650 in 2012/13.  However, two fewer exclusions would have resulted in 

the position being classed as “acceptable” compared to the national position. It should also 

be noted that the average number of school days lost per fixed-term exclusion in 

Denbighshire was among the lowest in Wales during 2012/13.  Attendance rates in our 

primary schools (“good”) and secondary schools (“excellent”) is very pleasing, as attendance 

is obviously linked to attainment levels.   

Indicators Status 

% of all pupils that leave without an approved qualification 0.82 

% of pupils who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2 83.5 

% of pupils who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 4 53.1 

Average Capped Points Score for pupils at Key Stage 4 339
 

% of pupils achieving the level 2 threshold, inc English/Welsh & maths 54.7
 

% of pupils achieving the level 2 threshold or vocational equivalents 82.7
 

% of pupil attendance in primary schools 94.5 

% of pupil attendance in secondary schools 92.9 

Average number of school days lost per fixed-term exclusion 2.1 

Number of fixed-term exclusions 650 

 

Tudalen 48



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

19 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The successful delivery of improvement activities appears highly likely, offering confidence 

about the council's contribution to this outcome.  At this stage the council identifies no major 

outstanding issues that pose a threat to delivery.   

Overall, the service is confident it has the systems in place to support students to achieve 

their potential.  Three of the performance measures are currently classed as a “priority for 

improvement”, but this simply reflects the reason why they were included in the Corporate 

Plan in the first place (i.e. we want to improve from the current position).  For example, we 

have a strategy for reducing our reliance on mobile classrooms, and this is linked to future 

planned improvements to our school buildings.  Improvements that rely on capital projects 

will obviously take time to implement, and we would therefore not expect these to be “good” 

or “excellent” at this stage.  

Performance Measures Status 

No. of surplus places as a % of total primary school places 16.6 

No. of surplus places as a % of total secondary school places 16.6 

No. of deficit places as a % of total primary school places 1.24 

No. of deficit places as a % of total secondary school places 0.00 

No. of primary school places provided by mobile classrooms 616 

No. of secondary school places provided by mobile classrooms 584 

Improvement Activity Status 

Support and challenge governing bodies to secure strong leadership Yellow 

Work with education services in North Wales (RESIS
5
) Green 

Works to improve Ysgol Dyffryn Ial Green 

Works to improve Ysgol y Llys Green 

Works to improve Ysgol Dewi Sant Green 

Works to improve Ysgol Twm O’r Nant Yellow 

Works to create an area school in Cynwyd Green 

Replace gymnasium used by Denbigh High School Green 

Consultation on the Ruthin Area primary education review Green 

Potensial Project to work with young people at risk of NEET Green 

Welsh in Education Strategic Plan Green 

Pilot a system for collecting data on incidences of bullying in schools Green 

  

                                            

5 Regional School Improvement Service 

Tudalen 49



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

20 

PRIORITY: Improving our roads 
OUTCOME 8: Residents and visitors to Denbighshire have access to a safe and 

well-managed road network 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

This outcome will be successful if Denbighshire has a safe and well-managed road network, 

and the quality of the roads is the biggest influencing factor in this.  To make comparisons 

more meaningful, we compare our position for the road condition indicators with a group of 

similar rural local authority areas in Wales (those with a comparable road network), rather 

than all of Wales.   

Overall the current position for this outcome is positive, because the quality of our road 

network has improved.  Roads in Denbighshire generally improved at a faster rate than in 

our family group of similar councils in Wales, which means that we saw an actual and a 

relative improvement in 2012/13.    

We achieved improvements in all the road condition indicators in 2012/13.  The overall 

position improved significantly, with the percentage of A, B & C roads in poor condition 

reducing from 11.2% in 2011/12 to 10.1% in 2012/13.  The position also improved for each 

type of road, with the biggest improvement being seen in our A roads, where the percentage 

in overall poor condition reduced from 7.2% in 2011/12 to 5.6% in 2012/13. The position for 

rural C roads (which make up the majority of our road network) is now considered to be 

comparatively “good”, as is the overall position for A, B & C roads combined. This means 

that we have fewer roads classed as being in a poor condition than most similar councils in 

Wales.   

Our ambition is to continue to improvement the condition of our roads so that by 2017 less 

than 5% of A and B roads and less than 10% of C roads will be in overall poor condition.  

This will be a significant challenge, but we believe that this would enable us to say that our 

road network is “excellent”. 

Some of the indicators for this outcome are based on the survey of City, Town & Community 

Council Members and the Residents’ Survey.  The overall evaluation will therefore need to 

be completed following the analysis of these results, which will be distributed before the 

report is presented to Council on 8th October 2013. Data not yet available. 

The number of successful claims made against the council where the claim related to the 

condition of the road network reduced to two during 2012/13, which also indicates that the 

condition of our roads is improving.   

Survey Indicators Status 

Residents Survey, % satisfaction with:  

Maintaining main roads in good condition Tbc 

Maintaining streets in towns & villages in good condition Tbc 

Maintaining rural roads in good condition Tbc 

City, Town & Community Councillor Survey, % satisfaction with:  

Maintaining main roads in good condition New for 2013/14 

Maintaining streets in towns & villages in good condition New for 2013/14 

Tudalen 50



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

21 

Maintaining rural roads in good condition New for 2013/14 

Indicators Status 

% of A, B & C roads that are in overall poor condition 10.1 

% of principal A roads that are in overall poor condition 5.6 

% of non-principal/classified B roads in overall poor condition 9.3 

% of non-principal/classified C roads in overall poor condition 13.9 

No. of successful claims concerning road condition during the year 2 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The successful delivery of the improvement activities identified for 2012/13 appears highly 

likely, offering confidence about the council's contribution to this outcome. There were no 

identified issues that pose a threat to the delivery of these activities, with the exception of the 

work to formalise plans for dropped kerbs.  The project is red because it did not progress as 

originally intended during 2012/13.  However, the council remains committed to delivering 

this activity because it relates to one of our Strategic Equality Objectives as well as this 

outcome in the Corporate Plan.  Work is now progressing on this activity, and we are 

currently working to complete and implement a strategy that identifies the priority routes 

where we would want to ensure that a drop-kerb route is in place.     

The position with the performance measures for this outcome is also generally positive, 

which shows that our work is contributing effectively to the successful delivery of the 

outcome.  Our position is "excellent" for the percentage of damaged roads and pavements 

made safe within target time, and the percentage of category C (street works) inspections 

carried out before the guarantee period ends.  93% of our annual structural maintenance 

expenditure spent on planned structural maintenance was achieved in 2012/13, which we 

regard as “acceptable”. However, only 86% of our planned highways capital maintenance 

programme was achieved in 2012/13, which we regard as a “priority for improvement”.  We 

are currently waiting for data for the measure about the percentage of damaged roads and 

pavements made safe within target time. The remaining measures (for the percentage of 

road condition defects resolved within timescale, and the percentage of key routes where a 

drop-kerb route is in place) we will begin reporting on in 2013/14. 

Performance Measures Status 

% structural maintenance spend spent on planned structural maintenance 93.0 

% timeliness of category C (Final) Street Works inspections 29.0 

% of damaged roads and pavements made safe within target time New for 2013/14 

% of road condition defects (CRM queries) resolved within timescale New for 2013/14 

% of key routes where a drop-kerb route is in place New for 2013/14 

% of planned Highways Capital Maintenance Programme achieved 86 

Improvement Activity Status 

Focus capital maintenance on roads important to communities Green 

Resurfacing works Green 

Tudalen 51



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

22 

Surface dressing works Green 

Major reconstruction of the B4391 in the Berwyn mountains Green 

Review preparations for Highways Winter Maintenance Green 

Formalise plans for dropped kerbs Red 

  

Tudalen 52



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

23 

PRIORITY: Vulnerable people are protected and are able to live as independently 

as possible 

OUTCOME 9: Vulnerable people are able to live as independently as possible 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

Achieving this outcome will mean that the council is successfully supporting vulnerable 

people to live as independently as possible.  The latest information shows that the current 

position for this outcome is positive, with improvements made or sustained in a number of 

key areas.  Specifically, there has been an increase in the proportion of the adult population 

in Denbighshire who can live independently, which has now reached a point where it can be 

described as “excellent”.  

To date, our main focus has been on developing short-term support that enables people to 

live independently and reduces the need for long-term care/support.  This reablement 

approach is starting to show success in Denbighshire.  To continue improvements we will be 

focussing on reducing dependency for people already in receipt of services.  This will require 

continued investment in developing appropriate community-based activities and support 

networks that promote and support people to live independent lives.  The approach is in line 

with the new Social Services and Wellbeing Bill.  However, it will inevitably mean some 

tough decisions about how we remodel existing services, which will require close working 

with communities and elected Members. 

Despite improvements, Denbighshire still has a higher rate of people who cannot live 

independently (living in a care home setting) than most Welsh authorities.  Part of our 

strategy for changing this position is to reduce the need for new admissions into care homes.  

The data relating to new placements shows that there was a clear reduction in the total 

number of older people requiring residential care support in 2012/13 compared to the 

previous year.  Historically, Denbighshire has always had a higher rate of people living in a 

care home setting than most Welsh authorities, and this will take time to change.  Our 

ambition is to continue reducing the percentage of the adult population who cannot live 

independently so that we can reach an “acceptable” position by 2017.  

Indicators Status 

% of the adult population who live independently 97.1 

% of the adult population who cannot live independently 0.70 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The successful delivery of improvement activities appears highly likely, offering confidence 

with the council's contribution.  At this stage the council identifies no major outstanding 

issues that pose a threat to delivery.  The position with all of the performance measures is 

“excellent”, which shows that we are working effectively to do the things we can do to have 

an influence on the outcome.  For example, Disabled Facilities Grants are used to provide 

adaptations in people’s homes to support their independence, and we have significantly 

reduced the time it takes to deliver those adaptations in recent years, to the point where we 

are now the third best in Wales for this measure.  

Tudalen 53



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

24 

In addition, a count of the service users in receipt of assistive technology is included 

for information.  This provides a focus on the range of assistive technologies that are 

not accounted for in the national performance measurement framework. 

Performance Measures Status 

% of people who live independently with modern supportive options 62.0 

% of people who live independently with traditional care options 38.0 

Rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons 1.09 

% of adult clients who do not need social care service after reablement 72.0 

Average number of days taken to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant 176 

Change in number of local authority adult placements in care homes -57 

No. of service users in receipt of assistive technology 395 

Improvement Activity Status 

New Work Connections Project Green 

Commissioning to deliver short-term support Green 

We will research Individual Service Funds Green 

  

Tudalen 54



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

25 

PRIORITY: Vulnerable people are protected and are able to live as independently 

as possible 

OUTCOME 10: Vulnerable people are protected 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

The success of this outcome will mean that Denbighshire is in a better position regarding the 

protection of vulnerable people.  The available information offers the conclusion that the 

current position for this outcome is positive, with improvements made or sustained in a 

number of areas.  This allows the council to be confident that vulnerable people are being 

protected effectively.  The main indicator for this outcome is the percentage of child referrals 

that were re-referrals within 12 months.  A high percentage indicates that issues may not be 

dealt with effectively following the initial referral.  The position in Denbighshire is “good” 

compared to other councils in Wales. 

Indicators Status 

% of child referrals that were re-referrals within 12 months 19.5 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The successful delivery of the identified improvement activities appears highly likely, with no 

major outstanding issues that pose a threat to delivery, (except with the work to provide 

targeted support to families facing challenges or complex needs).  A comprehensive 

mapping activity has been undertaken to profile children with disabilities and their families in 

order to understand the challenges and issues they face.  Work is now underway to translate 

the findings of this activity into a clear commissioning strategy to target support to families 

facing challenges or complex needs.  In addition, work is also underway to expand the 

Family Support Service from a five-day week to a seven-day week waking hour’s service. 

The council is generally performing very well in its work relating to this outcome, with only 

one performance measure identified as a priority for improvement.  This particular measure 

is showing gradual improvement and is almost at the point where we can consider the 

position to be “acceptable”.  The position for the other measures are classed as “excellent” 

or “good”, with performance at - or close to - 100% in most cases. 

Performance Measures Status 

% of adult protection referrals completed & the risk has been managed 96.9 

% of child protection reviews carried out within statutory timescales 98.9 

% of core group meetings within 10 days of child protection conference 90.4 

% of open cases on child protection register with allocated social worker 100 

Improvement Activity Status 

Referrals & on-going cases to identify vulnerable children & families Green 

Targeted support to families facing challenges or complex needs Orange 

Training Events: All Wales Adult Protection Policy and Procedures Green 

Training Events: Child Protection Green 

Tudalen 55



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

26 

PRIORITY: Clean and tidy streets 

OUTCOME 11: To produce an attractive environment for residents and visitors alike 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

Most of the indicators for this outcome are based on the survey of City, Town & Community 

Council Members and the Residents’ Survey.  The overall evaluation will therefore need to 

be completed following the analysis of these results, which will be distributed before the 

report is presented to Council on 8th October 2013. Data not yet available. 

 The 2013 version of our Residents’ Survey included a number of new questions about the 

general cleanliness of streets, and specifically about dog fouling (which was identified as a 

major issue for residents during the development of our Corporate Plan).  

The Cleanliness Index (which represents the overall standard of cleanliness of relevant 

highways and land within Denbighshire) is “excellent” compared to other councils in Wales.  

The scale runs from zero to 100, and a higher score indicates better cleanliness. 

The data identifies an issue with fly tipping, which is highlighted as a “priority for 

improvement”.  Although it has reduced slightly over the past two years, instances of fly 

tipping in the county appear to be high in the context of Wales.  However, we believe that we 

may be reporting this indicator differently from other councils because we include incidents 

that we identify ourselves through our street cleaning activities in addition to incidents 

reported by the public. This indicator may therefore not work as a comparison, and in future 

we will take a local view as to what “excellence” would look like.  Our ambition as behaviour 

in the community changes is to continue the recent reduction in the rate of fly-tipping.  

Survey Indicators 2013 

Residents’ Survey, % satisfaction with:  

The cleanliness of the streets (local area) New for 2013/14 

The cleanliness of the streets – dog fouling (local area)  New for 2013/14 

The cleanliness of the streets (nearest town) New for 2013/14 

The cleanliness of the streets –  dog fouling (nearest town) New for 2013/14 

City, Town & Community Council Survey, % satisfaction with:  

The cleanliness of the streets (C,T&CC area) New for 2013/14 

% of C,T&CC who report improvement with dog fouling New for 2013/14 

Indicators 2012/13 

The Cleanliness Index 82.8 

The rate of reported fly tipping incidents reported per 1,000 population 22.8 

Clean Streets Survey – Improvement Areas New for 2013/14 

 

Tudalen 56



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

27 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The successful delivery of improvement activities appears highly likely, and there appear to 

be no major outstanding issues that pose a threat to delivery.  A similar conclusion can be 

drawn from the majority of the performance measures, which are mainly positive (“good” or 

“excellent”).  The only exception is with the timely clearing of reported fly tipping incidents, 

which is identified as a “priority for improvement”.  The data for the past three years shows a 

decline in performance, from 100% in 2009-10 to 84% in 2012-13.  However, as with the 

indicator about fly tipping, there are again some issues with the quality of the data for this 

measure.  Our Customer Relationship Management System (CRM) actually makes our 

performance appear worse than it is because we can only currently measure how long it 

takes from when the incident is recorded to when it is closed on the system (rather than 

when the incident was actually cleared, which can often be several days earlier).  We are 

therefore hoping to find a way to improve the recording of this data so that this measure 

reflects our performance more accurately. 

There are two new performance measures that we have started monitoring during 2013/14.  

These will be reported in next year’s Annual Performance Review, and will improve our 

overall understanding of the position for this outcome.   

Performance Measures 2012/13 

% reported fly tipping incidents cleared within five working days 84.0 

% of untidy land incidents resolved within 12 weeks 56.0 

Average Response time to litter notifications (including dog fouling) New for 2013/14 

The rate of fixed penalty notices (all types) issued per 1,000 population 18.5 

The rate of fixed penalty notices (dog fouling) issued per 1,000 population 0.27 

Enforcement by the council on untidiness in council house gardens New for 2013/14 

Improvement Activity 2012/13 

More enforcement officers on the streets Green 

We will increase publicity on the issue of dog fouling Green 

We will provide sufficient waste bins Green 

We will review our street cleansing methods Green 

We will work proactively to improve cleanliness of neighbourhoods Green 

  

Tudalen 57



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

28 

PRIORITY: Ensuring access to good quality housing 

OUTCOME 12: The housing market in Denbighshire will offer a range of types and 

forms of housing in sufficient quantity to meet the needs of individuals and families 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

Last year we commissioned some research to help us understand levels of housing need in 

Denbighshire, and Glyndwr University provided figures for the projected housing requirement 

until 2015/16.  We analysed the projected data and set the following thresholds to determine 

the status of these outcome indicators:  

Excellent Over 75% of required housing provided 

Good 50 – 75% of required housing provided 

Acceptable 25 – 50% of required housing provided 

Improvement Priority Less than 25% of required housing provided 

Using these thresholds, the current position for this outcome is mixed.  Some data quality 

issues exist for the three housing supply indicators (both within Denbighshire and from 

external sources, e.g. National House Building Council), which may affect the accuracy of 

the data.  However, based on the available data the main area of concern is with the 

availability of private affordable housing in Denbighshire, which is identified as a "priority for 

improvement" with less than 25% of the required housing being provided in 2012-13. The 

position is more positive for the availability of market housing (“acceptable”) and social 

housing (“good”).  Also positive is the council’s excellent record in terms of preventing 

homelessness, which is one of the most extreme forms of social exclusion.  Action by the 

council prevented homelessness for at least six months for 100% of potentially homeless 

households in 2012-13.  We were the only local authority in Wales to achieve this for 100% 

of potentially homeless households.  The Wales average was 62.6% for this indicator, and it 

was as low as 1% in some parts of Wales.  

Indicators 2012/13 

The current supply of social housing 44 

The current supply of affordable housing 13 

The current supply of market housing 149 

% potentially homeless households with homelessness prevented 100 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The successful delivery of improvement activities appears highly likely, offering confidence 

about the council's contribution to this outcome.  At this stage the council identifies no major 

outstanding issues that pose a threat to delivery.  The main issues currently relate to the 

performance measures, where several are identified as a “priority for improvement”. 

The proportion of householder planning applications determined within eight weeks reduced 

from 90% in 2011/12 to 82% in 2012/13, meaning that this is now considered to be a “priority 

for improvement”.  We hope to improve this position during 2013/14, although we would not 

Tudalen 58



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

29 

want to compromise the quality of the service we provide in order to do so.  It is expected 

that the measure of the supply of available housing land will improve during 2013/14, as this 

is linked to the Local Development Plan (LDP), and a new LDP which identifies potential new 

housing development land has now been adopted by the council.  In terms of the 

HouseMark measure, 14 core Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) have been identified to 

benchmark with other similar local authorities across the UK.  The council currently has three 

(21%) within the top quartile, but our ambition is to have all 14 in the top quartile by 2017. 

An additional measure for information is included to provide an understanding of the 

proportion of additional affordable housing that is granted planning permission.  It only looks 

at the additional applications that are newly submitted during the year.  The aim is to have 

more affordable housing units granted planning permission and also built in Denbighshire; 

however, granted planning permission does not ensure that the housing will be built. 

Performance Measures 2012/13 

% HMO with a full licence 33.5 

% private sector dwellings returned to occupation 22.3 

% householder planning applications determined within eight weeks 81.8 

Supply of housing land by joint housing land availability study 3.50 

% council properties achieving Welsh Housing Quality Standard 93.0 

% of core KPI benchmarked in HouseMark that are in the top quartile 21.0 

% additional affordable housing units granted planning permission 16.0 

 

Improvement Activity 2012/13 

Updated on: 31.03.2013 

Explore housing options for people at threat of becoming homeless
6
 Green 

Family support to deal with Welfare Reform Act
7
 Green 

Improve the Housing Options website Green 

Continue to licensing HMOs Green 

External refurbishment of 25 properties in Rhyl
8
 Green 

  

                                            

6
 The council will explore options such as affordable housing and private renting with people who are under 

threat of becoming homeless. 
7
 The council will seek to identify individual residents who will be adversely affected by the Welfare Reform 

Act, and contact them to discuss specific options for dealing with the effects. 
8
 The council will undertake external refurbishment of 25 properties at Millbank Road and Norman Drive, Rhyl, 

including front boundary walls, in addition to the replacement of windows for two listed buildings in Russell 

Road, Rhyl. 

Tudalen 59



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

30 

PRIORITY: Modernising the council to deliver efficiencies and improve services 

for our customers 

OUTCOME 13: Services will continue to develop and improve 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

Success for this outcome will mean that the council will continue to improve services for its 

customers, and that this will be reflected by positive feedback (from residents and external 

regulators); by the delivery of successful council projects; and by the successful delivery of 

our Outcome Agreement with the Welsh Government.  Some of the indicators for this 

outcome are based on the survey of City, Town & Community Council Members and the 

Residents’ Survey.  The overall evaluation will therefore need to be completed following the 

analysis of these results, which will be distributed before the report is presented to Council 

on 8th October 2013. Data not yet available. 

The Wales Audit Office (WAO) undertakes comprehensive assessments of the council’s 

ability to deliver improvements for the benefit of residents, and the non-existence of any 

statutory recommendations from the WAO is a good indication that the council has delivered 

improvements.  The council did not receive any statutory recommendations from the WAO 

during 2012/13, which is a positive position.  

The indicator relating to the anticipated benefits from projects is new, but this is an important 

area that will be closely monitored as we proceed through our Corporate Plan. 

Survey Indicators 2013 

Resident's Survey, % satisfaction with:  

The council is efficient and well-run tbc 

The council acts on the concerns of residents tbc 

Indicators 2012/13 

% of project outputs expected to achieve their anticipated benefits New for 2013/14 

No. of statutory recommendations made by the Wales Audit Office 0 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The council has a clear contribution to make to the success of this outcome because several 

elements are within the direct control of the council, with many activities based on improving 

systems that are currently in place (e.g. complaints, the website, etc.) in order to improve 

services for our customers. 

The council has significantly improved the proportion of complaints responded to within our 

published timescales, from 78% in 2011/12 to 95% in 2012/13.  This position is now 

considered to be “acceptable”, but our ambition is to continue to improve in future years. 

The proportion of the Outcome Agreement grant received from the Welsh Government is an 

indication of the council’s ability to deliver improvements linked to national priorities, and we 

again received 100% of the grant in 2012/13 for our performance in 2011/12.  Chapter 1.3 

provides further information about our Outcome Agreement performance in 2012/13, but we 

again expect to receive 100% of the grant once our self-assessment has been evaluated by 

Tudalen 60



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

31 

the Welsh Government.  

The only major issue we have in relation to the improvement activities is with the transfer of 

assets.  Due to staffing changes in the council, this was not pursued to the extent initially 

expected during 2012/13.  However, we do expect that this will be taken forward during 

2013/14 now that dedicated resource has been identified. 

Performance Measures 2012/13 

% of Outcome Agreement grant awarded to Denbighshire 100 

% of complaints responded to within corporate timescales 95 

% of eligible modernisation projects with a post-implementation review New for 2013/14 

The number of complaints received 660 

Improvement Activity 2012/13 

Customer Service Standards
9
 Green 

System to improve customer communication
10
 Yellow 

Customer feedback
11
 Yellow 

Self analysis from improvement tools
12
 Green 

We will introduce "The Hwb" Green 

We will develop a new website for the council Green 

Town & Community Councils: Charter
13
 Green 

Town & Community Councils: (co) managed assets
14
 Orange 

Map services for childcare provision and 11-25 year olds Yellow 

  

                                            

9
 To develop Customer Service Standards and publish them so our customers know what level of service they 

can expect from us. 
10

 To implement a system that will enable customers to share their ideas with the council and improve their 

local area. 
11

 To use feedback as a learning mechanism and improve services. 
12

 To analyse learning from improvement tools, sharing experiences and skills across the council. 
13

 The Charter between the council and Town & Community Councils (T&CCs) will be further developed, 

launched, and promoted among staff. 
14

 The council will ask all T&CCs if they would like to take up any opportunities for managing (or co-managing) 

community assets and services. 

Tudalen 61



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

32 

PRIORITY: Modernising the council to deliver efficiencies and improve services 

for our customers 

OUTCOME 14: More flexible and effective workforce supported by cost efficient 

infrastructure 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

The overall position for this outcome is reasonably positive; although much more work is 

needed before we will be satisfied that the outcome has been delivered.  This is not a 

concern to us at this stage because the outcome was included in the Corporate Plan 

because we knew this was an area for improvement, and we always knew that it would take 

time to deliver the necessary changes.  The recent improvements in our sickness absence 

record continued in 2012/13, with the average number of days lost per full time employee 

(FTE) down to 8.6 days.  This actually places us in a very good position in relation to other 

councils in Wales, but we only view the position as “acceptable” because we compare our 

position with the average for the private sector the UK, where sickness absence levels are 

much lower.  We will continue to focus on reducing sickness absence levels because we feel 

that further improvements are achievable.  Levels of sickness absence ranged from three 

days per FTE to 14 days per FTE within different council services, so clearly there is still 

room to improve in some areas.  

There were some very positive results from the most recent staff survey, which give us 

confidence in terms of developing a flexible and efficient workforce.  97% of staff felt that 

they have the skills to do their job effectively (which is considered to be “excellent”) and 94% 

felt that they were clear about what was expected of them (which is considered to be 

“good”).  Although these results are positive, we will not become complacent about those 

figures. There is, of course, always room for improvement. 

Despite the positive results, there remain some areas of concern: one being the accessibility 

of information and information technology required to work efficiently.  This is identified as a 

“priority for improvement”, with almost one in five staff feeling that they don’t currently have 

access to the tools to enable them to work efficiently.   

Indicators 2012/13 

No. of working days/shifts lost to sickness absence per FTE 8.60 

Staff Survey, % of positive responses to:  

I know what is expected of me 94 

I have the skills to do my job effectively 97 

I can access the information & I.T. that I need to work efficiently 82 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The council has a big role to play in the delivery of this outcome because many elements are 

within the direct control of the council, with activities designed to have a positive effect on 

both the performance measures and outcome indicators.  

A number of the performance measures are new (developed specifically to measure our 

contribution to this outcome), and data collection will therefore begin in 2013/14.  This makes 

Tudalen 62



1.1 The Corporate Plan 

33 

it impossible to make a full assessment of the council’s contribution to this outcome at this 

stage. However, from what is known there are no reported issues regarding the delivery of 

the planned activities.  The completion of the work-styles task (aimed at analysing the 

technology required to make each specific council role more flexible and efficient) was 

delayed due to a redefinition of the scope of the project.  Originally, the scope was to 

establish the current work styles of staff, but this later changed to explore the potential for 

flexible work styles across the council.   

Although it has no status (because excellent thresholds have not yet been established), the 

office space measure offers encouraging results, as the amount of space occupied by the 

council reduced from 261,538 to 223,234 in 2012/13 (based on the amount - m2 - of heated 

floor in the entire non-domestic public building stock in the current year).  However, carbon 

emissions are now at the highest point during the past eight years, so that is clearly an area 

for improvement.  Business miles not only represent an expense for the council, they also 

represent ‘down time’ where people could have been working rather than travelling.  

Technology such as videoconferencing will help change our behaviour and reduce mileage.  

Some benchmarking against other authorities has been done, and a discussion as to where 

to set the thresholds is needed.  The improvement activities were designed to lay the 

platform for us to begin to reduce our operational costs, so it is encouraging to know that 

they are largely progressing according to plan in terms of time and cost. 

Performance Measures Status 

% of performance appraisals due that were completed 92.0 

Carbon emissions per m
2
 of office space (kg/m

2
) 50.3 

The amount of heated floor in the entire non-domestic public building stock 

(m2) 

223,234 

Average number of business miles recorded per FTE 945 

% of mobile staff that have remote access to their work I.T. systems New for 2013/14 

% of proposed savings through the Modernisation programme achieved New for 2013/14 

No. of key tasks prioritised for channel shift taking place via the web New for 2013/14 

Improvement Activity Status 

Expansion of wireless provision in council buildings Green 

Continued removal of all desktop printers Green 

Develop "work-styles" for all council roles and equip to deliver roles
15
 Yellow 

Develop new Service Performance Challenge process
16
 Green 

Analysis from Office Rationalisation
17
 Green 

                                            

15
 The development of work-styles for all council roles (e.g. office-based, mobile and home-based) and equip 

them with the technology to make them flexible and efficient. 
16

 Improve our use of benchmarking information to support Service Performance Challenges. 
17

 To analyse lessons learnt from office rationalisation, hot-desking, electronic document management, and 

pilots in mobile working technology as a foundation for rolling out flexible working across the council. 

Tudalen 63



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

34 

OUTCOME 1: Reduce Health Inequalities 

 

KEY PROTECTED GROUPS 

Older people, younger people, women and disabled people will particularly benefit 

from our planned actions to support this objective. 

 

RATIONALE 

Regional research and information from engagement suggests different outcomes 

experienced by protected groups across a range of health issues.  The council 

believes it can best contribute in the fields of promoting healthy lifestyles and 

promoting dignity in care for older people. 

 

OUTCOME ACTION AREA 1:1 

Increase the number of people choosing healthy lifestyles in under-represented 

groups 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

Success of this outcome will mean that a greater number of people in under-represented 

groups will participate in healthy lifestyle activities.  The available information offers a 

conclusion that the current position for this outcome is extremely positive, with all indicators 

achieving the goal of increased participation rates for people with protected characteristics.  

Indicators 2012/13 

Attendance (7-16 year olds) in Sport and Physical Activity opportunities 91,708 

Attendance at leisure activities by disabled people 13,981 

No. of female Denbighshire Leisure Card Users 4,683 

No. of older people (aged 60 and over) participating in physical activity 1,607 

No. of visits (aged 16 and under) who participate in the Free Swim Initiative 43,386 

No. of visits (aged 60 and over) who participate via the Free Swim Initiative 27,383 

No. of people completing the Training Young Sports Leaders course 192 

No. of young people (aged 11-16) engaged in Physical Activity 1,000 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The successful delivery of the identified improvement activities appears highly likely, offering 

confidence about the council's contribution to the outcome.  At this stage, the council 

identifies no major outstanding issues that pose a threat to the delivery of those activities.  

Publicity and engagement activities have positively influenced the numbers of people with 

targeted protected characteristics attending leisure centres this year.  The engagement 

activities were targeted at parents and carers to encourage increased participation by young, 

older people and disabled people.  The involvement of local disability groups has also 

provided feedback on the current programme, and established what they would like to see at 

our leisure centres see in the future. 

Tudalen 64



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

35 

Improvement Activity 2012/13 

Targeted promotion of exercise and active leisure opportunities Green 

Deliver exercise and active leisure programmes to target groups Green 

 

OUTCOME ACTION AREA 1:3 

Improve the care of older people, ensuring they are treated with dignity and respect 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

The success of this outcome will mean that older people will be treated with dignity and 

respect.  The available information offers a conclusion that the current position for this 

outcome is positive, with all indicators achieving an “excellent” status. 

Indicator Status 

% of clients with a care plan that was reviewed during the year 94.5 

Rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons (aged 75+) 1.09 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The successful delivery of improvement activities appears highly likely, offering confidence 

about the council's contribution to this outcome.  The council did identify some issues with 

the planned activities that required management attention and, although slow to start, the 

work to embed and deliver the Dignity in Care Action Plan has gained momentum and is 

progressing well. Work has progressed well to involve service users in the development of 

their own care plans, and to ensure that care plans are reviewed in a timely fashion. This 

work will continue during 2013/14.  The council is also using a Safeguarding Framework to 

ensure that a minimum standard of service is provided when dealing with vulnerable people.  

Improvement Activity Status 

Deliver Regional Dignity in Care Action Plan Yellow 

Involve service users in the development of their own care plans Green 

Ensure that care plans are reviewed in a timely fashion  Green 

Ensure that safeguards are in place to protect vulnerable older people Yellow 

Tudalen 65



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

36 

OUTCOME 2: Reduce unequal outcomes in Education to maximise individual 

potential 

 

KEY PROTECTED GROUPS 

All protected groups will benefit from our work to tackle identity based bullying and 

boys will particularly benefit from our work on educational attainment. 

 

RATIONALE 

Regional and local research, and information from engagement has demonstrated a 

gap in educational attainment between Boys and Girls throughout key stages and 

other examinations.  Regional research has also demonstrated the need to tackle 

identity based bullying in schools throughout Wales. 

 

OUTCOME ACTION AREA 2:1 

The educational attainment gap between different groups will be reduced 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

Overall, the educational attainment gaps between boys and girls did not reduce during 

2012/1318 but, in most cases, the gap didn’t become wider either.  However, the positive 

development is that attainment levels for boys have increased across the board.  Clearly we 

would not want to see a reduction in attainment levels for girls in order to reduce the gap; we 

would want to see the gap narrowing within the context of overall improvements in 

educational attainment.   That is exactly what we are seeing for some indicators but, more 

often than not, the gap remains largely the same in the context of increased attainment.  

Attainment overall at the Level 2 threshold or vocational equivalents has risen in excess of 

20% since 2010/11, and the gender gap has also narrowed from 16% in 2010/11 to 12% 

2012/13. 

However, when considering performance at the level 2 threshold or vocational equivalents 

and including English/Welsh and Maths, the gender gap has actually widened by a further 

4.3%.  Again, it is important to remember that attainment overall has risen, so the actual 

position for boys has got better rather than worse.   

The overall capped point score continues the trend of overall improvement for boys and girls, 

but again the gender gap has not reduced.  The gap in 2012/13 was 33 points compared to 

32 points in 2011/12.   

From the evidence available it is apparent that having English as an Additional Language 

(EAL) does not significantly hinder our students in terms of attainment. Although the 

percentage of EAL students achieving the level 2 threshold or vocational equivalents is 

slightly lower than the performance of non-EAL students, non-EAL students are 

                                            

18 The 2012/13 financial year reported on in this report relates of the 2011/12 academic year.  

Tudalen 66



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

37 

outperformed across all other indicators in Denbighshire (actually becoming a Priority for 

Improvement in relation to achieving the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2). While this is 

positive in terms of equalities, it’s a trend that is consistent nationally and does not 

necessarily equate to “excellent” performance within Denbighshire.  

Girls (86.5%) outperform boys, EAL and non-EAL students at Key Stage 2 in 2012/13, with 

boys performing least well of all these groups (80.6%).  The gender gap actually closed 

slightly for this indicator too, from 6.8% in 2011/12 to 5.9% in 2012/13, and all within a 

context of overall improvement for boys and girls.  Although not a significant gap, 

Denbighshire’s performance across all categories only achieved an Acceptable status when 

benchmarked nationally.  

At Key Stage 4, girls again outperformed boys (48% of boys achieving the Core Subject 

Indicator compared to 58% of girls). Since 2010/11, girls have seen an improving trend in 

performance, while improvement for boys has been less consistent. This has led to a 

fluctuating gender gap in terms of attainment at level 4 (in favour of girls), with the gap in 

each year as follows: 2009/10 = 10.8%; 2010/11 = 3.8%; 2011/12 = 10%. 

The status attributed to boys’ and girls’ performance for the indicators below are based on 

projecting the performance of pupils in other council areas because actual data for all 

councils in Wales is not currently available.  The projection method looks back at the trend 

over the last five years to predict future attainment levels.  The actual status will be updated 

once all-Wales data becomes available.  The only exception is for Key Stage 2 results, 

which are based on actual comparisons with other council areas in Wales. 

 

Indicator 2012/13 

% of boys achieving level 2 threshold or vocational equivalents 77 

% of girls achieving level 2 threshold or vocational equivalents 89 

% of EAL achieving level 2 threshold or vocational equivalents 82.8 

% of Non-EAL achieving level 2 threshold or vocational equivalents 85.6 

% of boys achieving level 2 threshold, inc. English/Welsh & maths 50 

% of girls achieving level 2 threshold, inc. English/Welsh & maths 60 

% of EAL achieving level 2 threshold, inc. English/Welsh & maths 69.0 

% of non-EAL achieving level 2 threshold, inc. English/Welsh & maths 56.2 

Average capped points score for boys at Key Stage 4 323 

Average capped points score for girls at Key Stage 4 356 

Average capped points score for EAL at Key Stage 4 353 

Average capped points score for non-EAL at Key Stage 4 349 

% of boys who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2 80.6 

% of girls who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2 86.5 

% of EAL who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2 85.2 

% of Non-EAL who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2 83.5 

Tudalen 67



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

38 

% of boys who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 4 48 

% of girls who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 4 58 

% of EAL who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 4 69.0 

% of Non-EAL who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 4 54.5 

OUTCOME ACTION AREA 2:2 

Identity-based bullying in schools reduces 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

The indicator that we want to track has been identified for this outcome, but we recognised 

that we did not have a reliable, effective data source during 2012/13.  Hence, a key part of 

our contribution for this year was to develop a means of data collection.  Some further work 

is also needed to understand what we would expect to see with this indicator.  Any project to 

proactively tackle identity-based bullying will inevitably involve encouraging people to report 

such incidents more.  This may show that the number of incidents initially increases as 

pupils (hopefully) become more confident about reporting.  We would then expect this to 

stabilise and then reduce as measures to tackle identify-based bullying have an impact.  

Indicator 2012/13 

The number of reported occurrences of identity based bullying in schools New for 2013/14 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

A database has now been developed to capture the reporting requirement for a range of 

educational services, to include incidents of bullying and harassment.  The inclusion service 

(areas such as educational social work, behaviour support, and educational psychologist 

teams) has access to the "One Database" so that users are able to run their own reports and 

view pupil level data.  This will enable us to analyse management information on bullying, 

and take necessary steps to reduce the number of occurrences. 

Improvement Activity 2012/13 

Education Information Reporting Project Green 

  

Tudalen 68



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

39 

OUTCOME 3: Reduce inequalities in Employment and Pay 

 

KEY PROTECTED GROUPS 

All protected groups will benefit from our work to identify and address pay 

differences,  and women will particularly benefit from our work on gender pay 

difference. 

 

RATIONALE 

Statutory duties, regional and local research, and information from engagement have 

all demonstrated the need to identify and address employment and pay differences 

between men and women, and between people who share a protected characteristic 

and those who do not. 

 

OUTCOME ACTION AREA 3.1 

Inequalities within recruitment, retention, training and promotion processes are 

identified and addressed 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

As the Strategic Equality Plan was developed it became apparent that the Trent system did 

not hold the Equal Opportunities information necessary to enable us to report on the 

experience of people with the protected characteristics within these processes.  Hence, an 

action was created to develop this capacity for 2013/14.  This action has been completed, 

and we will therefore be able to report against these indicators in our 2013/14 Annual 

Performance Review.  To enable better consideration of all of our customers’ needs, it was 

agreed that all HR policies should have an Equality Impact Assessment.  In 2012/13, we 

only achieved this for 68% of the HR policies published on our intranet, which means that 

this has been identified as a “priority for improvement”.  We expect to increase this to 100% 

during 2013/14. 

Our staff survey responses were compared to see whether there is any evidence to suggest 

that people who share particular protected characteristics have a different experience of 

working for Denbighshire County Council.  Importantly, no difference was found in the 

working experience of staff based on: gender, ethnicity, language, pregnancy, sexuality, or 

religion.  However, members of staff who considered themselves to be disabled were 

slightly less likely to feel in control of their work, and more likely to feel that they have 

experienced discrimination, harassment or bullying from their line managers and/or 

colleagues.  They were also more likely to report feeling stressed because of 

relationships with colleagues.    

The information from the staff survey will be considered by the council (initially by the 

Corporate Equality Group) to determine what actions could be taken to tackle the 

differences that exist in reponses from disabled members of staff.  

Indicator Status 

% of HR policies on the intranet that have been Equality Impact Assessed 68.0 

The proportion of the workforce with one (or more) of the protected New for 2013/14 

Tudalen 69



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

40 

characteristics 

The proportion of the workforce with one (or more) of the protected 
characteristics that has accessed training  

New for 2013/14 

The proportion of the workforce with none of the protected characteristics 
that has accessed training 

New for 2013/14 

The proportion of the workforce with one (or more) of the protected 
characteristics that has accessed promotion 

New for 2013/14 

The proportion of the workforce with none of the protected characteristics 
that has accessed promotion 

New for 2013/14 

The proportion of women in the workforce that have accessed training  New for 2013/14 

The proportion of men in the workforce that have accessed training  New for 2013/14 

The proportion of women in the workforce that have accessed promotion New for 2013/14 

The proportion of men in the workforce that have accessed promotion New for 2013/14 

The proportion of people (overall) agreeing with the statement: My 
relationships with my current colleagues are not causing me to feel too 
much stress 

90% 

The proportion of disabled people agreeing with the statement: My 
relationships with my current colleagues are not causing me to feel too 
much stress 

71% 

The proportion of people (overall) agreeing with the statement: I have not 
experienced discrimination by my managers 

93% 

The proportion of disabled people agreeing with the statement: I have not 
experienced discrimination by my managers 

76% 

The proportion of people (overall) agreeing with the statement: I have not 
experienced harassment / bullying from council employees / managers 

88% 

The proportion of disabled people agreeing with the statement: I have not 
experienced harassment / bullying from council employees / managers 

70% 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

In recognition of the fact that improved management information relating to protected 

characteristics was required, our direct contribution to this outcome during 2012/13 was 

mainly to amend our systems so that we will be able to report against the additional 

indicators in 2013/14.  These activities have all progressed well, and no problems are 

envisaged with reporting in 2013/14.  We will then be able to identify any inequalities that 

exist, and consider how they can be addressed.  

Improvement Activity Status 

Transfer Equal Opportunities form to iTrent Green 

Develop a deployment plan for Equal Opportunities form Green 

Promote the Equal Opportunities form Green 

Analyse staff survey by protected characteristics Green 

  

Tudalen 70



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

41 

OUTCOME  ACTION AREA 3.2 

Any pay gaps between different protected characteristics are identified and 

addressed 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

The Indicators reflect the percentage value of any pay gaps, showing as a -% if females are 

paid less than males and a +% if females are paid more than males. 

The pay difference between male and female employees at the mean FTE salary across all 

terms and conditions was -7.98% (where women earn less than men), which we recognise is 

higher that the acceptable range recommended by the Equality and Human Rights 

Commission (EHRC)19.  This FTE salary calculation includes the full-time equivalent salary 

of those that work part-time, and the large gender pay gap reflects the fact that more women 

than men work in part-time roles that tend to be lower paid.  

However, the gender pay gap for the majority group of employees on NJC terms and 

conditions has reduced by 2.3% to -3.33% since the implementation of Single Status in 

2008, and is much closer to the acceptable range recommended by the EHRC.   

When we look at the gender pay gap between actual full time employees, the position is 

again much closer (at -2.07%), which is below the threshold where the EHRC suggests we 

should be concerned.  The pay gap for part time employees is more favourable to women. 

We have also audited the pay gap between disabled and non-disabled employees, and 

Black Minority Ethic and White employees.  However, the high proportion of employees who 

have declined to specify their disability status and ethnicity is skewing the overall figures, 

and has therefore not been reported on this year. 

Indicator Status 

The mean pay gap (full time equivalent salary) at 31 March -7.98 

The mean pay gap (full time equivalent salary) at 31 March - only includes 

those staff on NJC terms and conditions. 

-3.33 

Gender pay gap between full time employees using the mean annual 

salary for 2012. 

-2.07 

Gender pay gap between part time employees using the mean annual 

salary for 2012. 

+9.81 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

Each year we produce, and publish, a report on pay gaps between employees who share 

protected characteristics, and those who do not. This report will be presented to the council’s 

Corporate Equality Group, who will recommend any priorities for the council in terms of 

addressing any pay gaps.  This is due to take place during 2013/14. 

Improvement Activity Status 

Produce a report on pay gaps Green 

                                            

19 The EHRC suggests that pay gaps between 3% and 5% maybe symptomatic of discrimination and 

that gaps of 5% or above should be investigated further. 

Tudalen 71



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

42 

OUTCOME 4: Reduce inequalities in Personal Safety 

 

KEY PROTECTED GROUPS 

All protected groups will benefit from our work to tackle hate crime, and women will 

particularly benefit from our work to tackle domestic violence. 

 

RATIONALE 

Regional research and information from engagement have all demonstrated the 

need to tackle domestic violence and hate crime. 

 

OUTCOME ACTION AREA 4.1 

The reporting of hate crime and harassment increases, and steps are taken to 

reduce hate crime and harassment 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

There are still significant data gaps which limit our ability to fully determine the current 

position of this outcome.  We anticipate that this data will become available before the report 

is presented to Council on 8th October 2013.  

Indicator Status 

No. of hate crime and harassment crimes recorded by North Wales Police tbc 

No. of hate crime and harassment reports involving local authority tenants 1 (harassment) 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The Denbighshire Community Safety Partnership (CSP) is working to encourage hate crime 

reporting to the police.  However, it is recognised that some people will be reluctant to 

approach the police, so they are then encouraged to report through the charity 'Safer Wales’.  

Safer Wales is a unique scheme built in partnership with the police forces of Wales for the 

people of Wales.  It enables victims, witnesses or other parties to report all hate incidents 

and hate crimes in confidence.  We are promoting our support via Safer Wales by including 

a link to Denbighshire County Council’s Housing Services, but will add further links to areas 

such as the Family Information Service during 2013/14. 

Improvement Activity Status 

Community Safety Partnership: encourage reporting of hate crime Yellow 

  

Tudalen 72



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

43 

ACTION AREA 4.2 

The reporting of domestic abuse increases and steps are taken to reduce domestic 

abuse 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

The reported rates of all types of domestic crime are little changed compared to 2011/12.  

The initial paradox is that it would be an improvement to see an increase in these figures 

because of the widely held view that domestic violence is heavily under-reported.  There are 

many unofficial occurrences, so victims may not be able to access the support services that 

are available to them.  It is difficult to come to any firm conclusions about the success of this 

outcome by looking at the change in data between 2011/12 and 2012/13.  We will probably 

require several years’ worth of data to be able to say whether the indicators are moving in 

the right direction.   

There has been little change in Denbighshire in 2012/13 in the number of crimes identified 

as “domestic” based on the offender / victim relationship.  Most crimes are violent (78.5%) 

but a large number of these are without injury. The Rhyl wards have the highest level of 

domestic crime, and last year these offences were more frequent between April and August, 

peaking in May. Offenders are mostly likely to be male aged 20-29 and victims are most 

likely to be female aged 20-29.  

All domestic non crimes are classed as domestic abuse with no powers of arrest, of which 

there were 1,596 in 2012/13, an increase of 5.8% on 2011/12. 

The number of referrals to the Multi Agency Risk Assessment Committee (MARAC) has 

decreased in Denbighshire by over 19% since 2011/12. This may be because the police 

have been running a pilot in Denbighshire where they have been targeting the lower level 

cases (those that wouldn’t be referred to MARAC). This may have had an impact on the 

number of high level MARAC cases. 

There has been a small reduction (3.4%) in the number of violent domestic crimes reported 

in 2012/13.  There has been a significant decline in assaults without injury and threats to kill, 

while there has been a small increase in harassment and public fear, alarm or distress. 

There has been little change in the number of incidents in the busiest wards, with most 

incidents occurring in the Rhyl wards.   May to July 2012 was the peak period for violent 

domestic crimes.  

Denbighshire Independent Domestic Violence Advisers (IDVAs) figures are 23.3% lower 

than in 2011/12.  However, sickness issues and some problems with data collection (from 

Feb 2013) will account for low figures. There was also a period during June / July 2012 

where there was no IDVA in place.  

The CAADA20 DASH 21RIC 22training is risk assessment training for frontline staff to identify 

signs of domestic and sexual abuse. The target was to train a minimum of 80 staff from a 

                                            

20 CAADA = Co-ordinated Action Against Domestic Abuse – a national charity supporting a strong 

multi-agency response to domestic abuse 

Tudalen 73



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

44 

variety of agencies every 12 months, and considerably more were trained during 2012/13, as 

was the case during 2011/12.  

Indicator Status 

No. of calls to the domestic abuse helpline tbc 

No. of domestic crimes recorded by North Wales Police 738 

No. of domestic incidents (non crimes) recorded by North Wales Police 1,596 

No. of repeat victims of domestic abuse tbc 

No. of reports of domestic abuse involving local authority tenants 8 

The number of referrals to MARAC
23
 161 

No. of violent domestic crimes recorded by North Wales Police 576 

No. of cases dealt with by the Independent Domestic Violence Advisor 182 

Increase agencies / staff trained to use CAADA DASH RIC 128 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The council works with partners to contribute to this outcome, and many of the activities 

listed below have been delivered with the support of the Strategic Partnership Board via The 

BIG Plan.  Domestic abuse is an issue that demands a multi-agency approach to tackle it. 

The strategy has been two-pronged: 1) offer support for victims of domestic abuse directly 

(and help people to spot the signs of abuse), and 2) raise awareness of issues as a 

preventative technique.  Most of this activity has been progressing as expected, which 

provides confidence that we are contributing effectively to the successful delivery of this 

outcome.  

The Domestic Abuse Forum meets quarterly and oversees the delivery of a one-day Basic 

Domestic Abuse Awareness training course approximately 3- 4 times per year.  The forum 

also provides the opportunity for practitioners to share good practice. 

CAADA DASH RIC is a risk assessment process used to support the staff of frontline 

services in identifying all forms of abuse to enable intervention at the earliest stage.  The 

Community Safety Partnership Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Coordinator has been 

responsible for organising and delivering training for this risk assessment process to 

hundreds of members of staff within health and social care services in Conwy and 

Denbighshire. 

The Independent Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVA’s) role is to support victims of domestic 

violence through the criminal justice system from the point at which an arrest has been made 

up until the court proceedings have ended. The IDVA will keep victims updated about court 

                                                                                                                                        

21
 DASH = Domestic Abuse, Stalking and 'Honour'-based Violence 

22
 RIC = Risk Identification Checklist 

23
 MARAC is the Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference 

Tudalen 74



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

45 

dates, and court and bail application outcomes, and offer general support.  There are two 

IDVAs in operation across Conwy and Denbighshire. 

During 2012-13, the Conwy & Denbighshire’s Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) 

aimed to work with the MARAC Steering Group to map current provision for domestic abuse, 

and develop a model for future provision.  Unfortunately, limited progress was made during 

the year, mainly due to confusion over the relationships between different domestic violence 

projects and initiatives, and their governance.  A local action plan will now be developed 

during 2013-14.  

Towns and cities across Great Britain took part in the White Ribbon Relay, a national relay 

between 23rd June and 26th July 2012 to raise awareness of the relationship between 

violence against women and girls and major sporting events, such as Euro 2012 and the 

Olympic Games. Conwy and Denbighshire were chosen to represent North Wales and 

organized a marathon relay to carry the torch by road from St Asaph to Cheshire.  More than 

50 volunteers and various agencies were involved. 

Funded through the Families First Programme in Denbighshire, the Family Resilience 

Project is run through a Consortium comprising of five partners. The Consortium provides 

support to families where areas of concern have arisen (e.g. domestic violence), to help 

prevent issues from escalating further and to encourage the families themselves to be 

empowered to address areas of concern. In this way, families are more independent, self-

reliant and have positive future aspirations. Of those completing the DART (Domestic Abuse: 

Recovering Together) Programme: 54% of parents felt the DART programme helped them; 

54% parents felt it helped their child; 54% of children felt it helped them; and 54% of children 

felt it helped their mum. 

Improvement Activity Status 

Establish a Domestic Abuse Forum Green 

CAADA DASH  RIC Agency Training Green 

Independent Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVA) in place Green 

LSCB & MARAC: map and model current provision for domestic abuse Orange 

White Ribbon Relay Green 

Families First funded Family Resilience project Green 

 

  

Tudalen 75



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

46 

OUTCOME 5: Reduce inequalities in Representation and Voice 

 

KEY PROTECTED GROUPS 

All protected groups will benefit from our work to identify underrepresented groups. 

 

RATIONALE 

National research and information from engagement have all demonstrated that 

some protected groups remain underrepresented on decision making bodies.  This 

may also be true for decision making bodies in Denbighshire. 

 

ACTION AREA 5.1 

Decision making bodies become more representative of the communities they serve 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

The profile of current County Councillors in Denbighshire shows that the council is 

not representative of the community it serves.  This is a position that is reflected 

nationally rather than it being unique to Denbighshire County Council.  However, it 

seems that some areas are more severely under-represented in Denbighshire than 

in other parts of Wales.  This will be something that the council will consider in terms 

of how it might address the balance in the next local government elections in 2017.   

Sex 

Among county councillors, 28% are female nationally, whilst 19% are female in 

Denbighshire.  Overall, 52% of the 18+ population are female in Denbighshire, so 

there is evidence of under representation. 

Ethnicity 

The majority of candidates in Denbighshire identify with the White – Welsh / Scottish 

/ English / Northern Irish or British ethnicities (over 95%) - although the precise 

numbers cannot be published for data protection purposes.  Across Wales we can 

see a trend of under representation of ethnic minorities.  However in Denbighshire 

the numbers do not allow for any firm conclusions.  

Religion  

Nationally, 83% of the sample of elected Councillors said they were Christian in 

comparison to 70%  of unelected candidates (from 2012 local elections).  In 

Denbighshire, 92% of elected Councillors were Christian compared with 55% of 

unelected candidates.  Of all candidates, 86% were Christian.  The 2011 census 

reported 64.1% of Denbighshire’s population as Christian, so we can see 

proportionately lower participation and representation from non-Christian groups. 

Sexual Orientation  

Nationally, 2% of elected Councillors identified as lesbian, gay or bisexual (LGB) in 

comparison to 5% of unelected candidates.  In Denbighshire, the majority of 

candidates were heterosexual/straight (over 95%), although the precise numbers 

Tudalen 76



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

47 

cannot be published for data protection purposes.  It is difficult to reach any firm 

conclusions from the data.  

Disability  

Nationally, 14% of elected Councillors considered themselves to be disabled.  

Denbighshire County Council is in line with this national position, with 14% of all 

candidates and 12% of elected Councillors considering themselves to be disabled.  

However, according to the 2011 Census 23.47% of Denbighshire’s population has 

an activity limiting condition, which suggests this is an area of under-representation. 

Age 
Nationally, the majority of elected Councillors are over the age of 60; 57% of County 

Councillors and 61% of Community Councillors. In Denbighshire, 71% of County 

Councillors and 62% of Town and Community Councillors answering the survey 

were over 60. In each case the over 60s are over-represented relative to the 

proportion of people over 60 in the relevant populations.  The 2011 Census found 

that 21% of Denbighshire’s population to be 65+. 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

A survey of all county council election candidates was undertaken, and the results 

sent to the Welsh Government in September 2012. In common with the picture 

across Wales, some protected groups appear to be under-represented in terms of 

participation as candidates in County Council and Town & Community Council 

elections.  The Council has a responsibility to promote participation under the local 

government (Wales) measure 2011. 

In the run up to the local government elections 2012 potential candidates were 

advised that Denbighshire County Council (DCC) would be instigating a more flexible 

way of working for its elected members. Existing members were canvassed via e-

mail, online surveys, focus groups and presentations (to the Member Area Groups 

(MAGs) with regard to their thoughts and opinions on council meetings (frequency, 

timings, locations) and the use of technology as a tool to improve engagement. 

Although limited in number, initial responses to the canvassing were either strongly 

in favour of or strongly opposed to change. 

The majority of elected Members wished to retain the status quo with reference to 

meetings: to be held at County Hall, Ruthin, during office hours. However some 

Members find the schedule and location inflexible. Improved scheduling (taking into 

account meeting attendees and timings and appropriate attendance) was seen as 

possible areas for improvement. The council is investigating the use of technology to 

remove barriers to participation in meetings. 

Improvement Activity Status 

A survey of all candidates at the May 2012 local government elections Green 

Project to raise awareness of opportunities to become a County Councillor Green 

OUTCOME ACTION AREA 5.2 

Tudalen 77



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

48 

Consultation and Engagement is improved through strengthening links between the 

Public Sector and local and national groups representing people from all protected 

groups. 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

No indicators or performance measures were identified for 2012/13.  This is an area in need 

of development, and we will be working with other members of the Regional Equality 

Network to develop some meaningful indicators for this regional equality objective during 

2013/14. 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The council’s new Community Engagement Strategy has been developed and delivered to 

all stakeholders.  It includes information relating to the need to engage with those who share 

protected characteristics, with a specific focus on children and young people. Further advice 

is also provided in the accompanying Engagement Toolkit.  This will be developed during 

2013/14 to include further information on how to effectively engage with people who share 

protected characteristics.    

The North Wales Public Sector Equality Network (of which the council is a member) has an 

action for 2013/14 to produce a number of guidance documents to help public sector 

authorities show due regard to equality legislation.  These include: 

• 10 Top tips on Equality Impact Assessments and Due Regard 

• 10 Top tips on organising accessible events 

“Your Agenda” is a piece of work developed by the council to improve engagement with 

people (and local groups who support people) who share protected characteristics.  The 

local groups will be contacted at the beginning of each calendar year, and the results of our 

engagement activities will be combined with local and national research to develop and 

review “intelligence” reports on each protected characteristic.  These intelligence reports are 

used by the council to support the Equality Impact Assessment of proposals we are 

developing and decisions we are taking. 

Improvement Activity Status 

Updated on: 31.03.2013 

Implement new Community Engagement Strategy Green 

Development of “Your Agenda” project Green 

 

  

Tudalen 78



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

49 

OUTCOME 6: Reduce inequalities in access to information, services, buildings and 

the environment 

 

KEY PROTECTED GROUPS 

Disabled people, older people and people from minority ethnic groups will particularly 

benefit from our work to improve accessibility. 

 

RATIONALE 

Regional and local research and information from engagement has demonstrated 

the need to ensure that our services are accessible and that we promote 

accessibility in the wider environment. 

 

OUTCOME ACTION AREA 6.1 

Access to information and communications and the customer experience improve 
 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

Some of the indicators for this outcome are based on the Residents’ Survey.  The overall 

evaluation will therefore need to be completed following the analysis of these results, which 

will be distributed before the report is presented to Council on 8th October 2013. Data not yet 

available. 

Indicator Status 

% of customers who are satisfied with the way customer care dealt with 

their most recent inquiry (resident’s survey by protected characteristic) 

tbc 

% of customers that feel well informed overall about the services the council 

provides (resident’s survey by protected characteristic) 

tbc 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

The main area of activity contributing to this outcome in 2012/13 was the development of a 

new website, whose navigation will be fully accessible using web-readers, and could make a 

big difference to the accessibility of information and communication. Though not live in 

2012/13, most of the work to construct the website in the new software was undertaken 

during 2012/13, ahead of its launch in August 2013. 

The current Corporate Communication Strategy was developed in 2011, and will be a 

continuously developing document.   It will be reviewed again during 2013/14 and presented 

to the Corporate Equality Group to ensure that it provides sufficient information about how to 

communicate effectively with people who share protected characteristics.  

The Equalities section of the council’s internal intranet features a section on “Interpretation 

and Communication”, with one of the most popular resources being the “Frequently Asked 

Questions” on interpretation and translation.   

Online payments of general invoices and bailiff charges were enabled during 2012/13, thus 

improving the range of ways to pay by removing the need to visit a council office.   

Tudalen 79



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

50 

The Assisted Bin Collection application form has been simplified and is now easier for older 

and disabled people to complete.  At present the form is available in hardcopy only, but the 

proposal for 2013/2014 is to enable access and completion on the new website. 

The project to develop and publish dashboard reports on progress of the councils’ Strategic 

Equality Plans was put on hold because we discovered that the nationally procured software 

package used in most councils in Wales (Ffynnon) did not enable us to develop and 

maintain these dashboards without investing a disproportionate amount of time and effort. 

We are now waiting until we have access to new software before we continue with this 

activity, and this is likely to be during 2014/15.  

Improvement Activity Status 

Revise the Corporate Communication Strategy Yellow 

Update equalities section of the intranet to advise staff Green 

New, accessible website Green 

Improve range of "ways to pay" Green 

Simplify the Assisted Bin Collection application form Green 

Develop & publish dashboards to report progress of Strategic Equality Plan Red 

 

OUTCOME ACTION AREA 6.1 

Physical access to services, transport, the built environment and open spaces 

improve 

  

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

A survey was undertaken in 2012/13 on the 19 meeting rooms available to council staff. 

From the property surveys, technical reports have been produced using the Institute of 

Public Finance disability survey questionnaire.  Elements covered include: Approach and 

Car Parking; Routes and Street Furniture within Site; Entrances (Main) including Reception; 

Horizontal Movement & Assembly; Vertical Movement & Internal Level Change; Internal 

Doors, and WC provision generally.   The results show that levels of physical accessibility 

vary, particularly when access is dependent on use of lifts (which often can’t be used as 

evacuation lifts) and there is need to provide refuge areas. Work is being done to ensure 

hearing loops are available at all venues.   

The council is also working to ensure no access audits will be more than two years old, and 

would expect to maintain a 100% completion rate once the initial work is complete.  

However, access audits have revealed emerging problems that current budgets cannot 

easily address, compromising our level of compliance.  The key source of accessibility 

problems in relation to civic public buildings is with Prestatyn Library.  These problems will 

be addressed in the development of the new library. 

Indicator Status 

No. of meeting rooms reasonably accessible to all 15.0 

% of council buildings with completed access audits less than two years old 85.0 

Tudalen 80



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

51 

% of council-owned public buildings that are physically accessible 50.0 

% of leisure, library and youth facilities that are physically accessible 90.0 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

Work has begun to improve accessibility to council services, but progress has perhaps been 

slower than we would have anticipated.  However, the activities are still relevant and the 

council has pledged to address any outstanding issues during 2013/14.  

The review of bus services in the county was completed. The proportion of service buses 

that are accessible in the county is 94%, which will rise to 96% in 2013/14. There was no 

funding for bus stop improvements apart from the strategic routes in 2012/13, and we’re 

currently unsure as to whether TAITH will contribute funding in 2013/14. 

The Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance 'Access for All' assists developers in 

access and design elements of planning proposals.  Planning Officers will not validate a 

planning application unless it includes a Design and Access Statement.  They may also 

refuse a planning application on the basis that the Design and Access Statement does not 

contain sufficient information and data.  Planning Officers have developed standard planning 

conditions relating to access issues which, if relevant, could be imposed on a planning 

permission. 

Work to develop a strategy for dropped kerbs at key locations was not started in 2012/13 as 

initially anticipated.  However, work is now progressing on this activity, and we are currently 

working to complete and implement a strategy that identifies the priority routes where we 

would want to ensure that a drop-kerb route is in place.     

A review of the travel time to key sites in the county was complete. Other than Rhyl, 

Prestatyn & Llangollen, no other DCC centre could achieve a 30 minutes journey to a major 

A & E by bus, owing to the distance. 

We pledged to appraise the options available for siting a Changing Places facility.  At March 

2013, appropriate sites had been identified, and the size and service requirements of the unit 

had been confirmed.  The remainder of the work will be completed in 2013/14. 

Improvement Activity Status 

Improve accessibility of buses, promote take-up of bus passes Green 

Improve information on planning processes and access statements Green 

Formalise plans for dropped kerbs Red 

Bus journey review from town centre to A&E hospitals Green 

Review accessibility of buses Green 

Provide information on facilities available at council buildings Yellow 

Options appraisal: where to site a Changing Places facility Yellow 

 

  

Tudalen 81



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

52 

OUTCOME 7: Managing identified equality and fairness issues as part of our 

Business Planning and Performance Management Framework 

KEY PROTECTED GROUPS 

People with any one (or more) of the protected characteristics will benefit from this 

Outcome, as we fully integrate Equality into our existing Business and Community 

Planning activities. 

 

RATIONALE 

Fully integrating Equality into our existing Business Planning and Performance 

Management Framework will help to ensure that equality issues are adequately 

considered, and that any areas of weakness are identified and addressed.  

 

OUTCOME ACTION AREA 1.1 

Integrate Equality into our existing business and community planning activities 

 

Summary of the current position for the outcome 

During 2012/13 there was an emphasis on implementing our Strategic Equality Plan and 

embedding good practise throughout the organisation.  Part of the work for 2012/13 was to 

develop suitable indicators  to enable reporting during 2013/14.  

Indicator Status 

The percentage of proposals presented to Council or Cabinet that have an 

Equality Impact Assessment 

New for 2013/14 

The number of people accessing the Respect Booklet New for 2013/14 

 

Summary of the council's contribution to the outcome 

Our focus during 2012/13 was on embedding the Equality Framework and associated good 

practise.  We have done this by ensuring the work to support our equality objectives sits 

within our Service Plans, rather than it sitting separately in a stand-alone document.  We 

have also designed a new Equality Impact Assessment Toolkit to support decision making. 

We have made it a requirement that all papers going to Cabinet, Council or for delegated 

decision are supported by an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA), and the new template with 

supporting guidance is available on the council’s intranet.   

To support the culture change required to ensure that EqIA is used consistently throughout 

the council, the Corporate Improvement Team Manager has delivered a workshop for the 

management team of each council service.  This covered such things as why we need to do 

EqIA; when we should do EqIA; how to do EqIA; and what help is available.  These 

workshops began in 2012/13, and were concluded early in 2013/14.  

A Respect Booklet was produced and made available via the intranet in 2012/13.  It is 

compulsory for all staff to read the booklet, so a mechanism for counting the number of 

people that have accessed and read it was also developed in 2012/13, enabling us to 

measure compliance during 2013/14. 

Tudalen 82



1.2 Strategic Equality Plan 

53 

Improvement Activity Status 

Incorporate actions relating to the Equality objectives into service plans Green 

Design a new Equality Impact Assessment Toolkit Green 

Meet with each service management toolkit to ensure understanding of the 

Equality agenda and how to respond to it 

Green 

Make the Respect booklet available via the intranet Green 

Develop a means of counting how many people have accessed the 

Respect booklet 

Green 

Tudalen 83



1.3 Outcome Agreement 

54 

The council, like all councils in Wales, has developed a set of ten Outcome 

Agreements with the Welsh Government.  The Outcome Agreements set out how we 

will work towards improving outcomes for local people within the context of the 

Welsh Government's national priorities.  By their nature, the delivery of most citizen 

centred outcomes requires the involvement of multiple organisations for successful 

delivery.  As a result, Outcome Agreements must have a strong collaborative 

element, as well as evidence of partnership working in order to have the greatest 

impact. 

PREDICTED OVERALL SCORE (2012/13) SELF-ASSESSMENT (2012/13) 

27 out of 30 Excellent 

Our self-assessment suggests the potential for the maximum loss of three points due 

to some missed targets.  We expect to receive confirmation shortly of the 

assessment from the Welsh Government, but we remain confident of satisfying the 

requirement for the full Outcome Agreement grant for 2012/13, as any score 

between 25 and 30 will result in the full payment of the grant. 

OUTCOME SELF-ASSESSMENT PREDICTED SCORE 

Quality of Life Fully successful 3 out of 3 

Good Social Care Fully successful 3 out of 3 

Reduce Poverty Fully successful 3 out of 3 

Children's Well-Being Partially successful 2 out of 3 

Education and Skills Partially successful 2 out of 3 

Community Safety Fully successful 3 out of 3 

Low Waste Society Partially successful 2 out of 3 

Environmental Protection Fully successful 3 out of 3 

Culture and Heritage Fully successful 3 out of 3 

Value for Money Fully successful 3 out of 3 

Tudalen 84



1.4 National Strategic Indicators 

55 

Denbighshire's performance in the statutory indicators is excellent, with 17 in the top 

quartile (which is more than any other council) and fewer in the bottom half than any 

other councils in Wales (8 out of 30). 

 

YEAR 2012/13 
   

     

NSI CODE Denbighshire Quartile Improvement 

1 SCA019 96.91 2 ↑ 

2 SCC004 8.13 2 ↓ 

3 SCC041a 100.00 1 ↑ 

4 SCC011 52.88 1 ↑ 

5 SCA001 1.09 1 ↓ 

6 SCA002a 53.44 4 ↓ 

6 SCA002b 21.61 3 ↑ 

7 SCC002 6.12 1 ↑ 

8 SCC037 261.13 2 ↑ 

9 SCC033d 100.00 1 n/a 

9 SCC033e 88.89 3 n/a 

9 SCC033f 77.78 1 n/a 

10 HHA013 100.00 1 ↑ 

11 PSR002 176.00 1 ↑ 

12 PLA006 27.67 3 n/a 

13 PSR004 22.75 1 ↑ 

14 EDU003 83.50 3 ↑ 

15 EDU006ii 18.68 1 ↓ 

16 EDU017 54.72 2 n/a 

17 EDU002i 0.82 4 ↓ 

17 EDU002ii 0.00 1 ↔ 

18 EDU011 504.87 1 ↑ 

19 EDU015a 100.00 1 ↔ 

19 EDU015b 100.00 1 ↔ 

20 WMT009b 58.02 1 n/a 

21 WMT004b 37.44 1 n/a 

22 STS006 88.19 3 ↑ 

23 THS007 88.05 2 ↑ 

24 LCS002 5739.68 4 n/a 

25 LCL001 6825.34 1 ↓ 

 

Tudalen 85



1.5 External Regulation and Inspection Work 

56 

Like all councils in Wales, our work is scrutinised by external regulators to ensure 

that we use public money efficiently and effectively to deliver benefits for our 

communities.  The Wales Audit Office (WAO) has an annual programme of audit and 

assessment work which it undertakes in the council, and the conclusions from all this 

work are brought together in an Annual Improvement Report.  Other regulators 

undertake further work relating to specific service areas, and the main ones are Her 

Majesty’s Inspectorate for Education and Training in Wales (Estyn) and the Care and 

Social Services Inspectorate for Wales (CSSIW).  A summary of the main 

conclusions from recent external audit and assessment work is provided below. 

 

WALES AUDIT OFFICE 

Each year, the Wales Audit Office reports on how well each council is planning for 

improvement and delivering their services.  The latest Annual Improvement Report 

for Denbighshire was issued in May 2013, and contained no new recommendations 

for improvement.  Overall, the report concluded that the council is making good 

progress in delivering its improvement programme but that there is scope to improve 

the quality of some of the performance measures and evidence that the council uses 

to judge its effectiveness.  The report also contained the following conclusions: 

1. The council made good progress in delivering improvement in its priority areas: 

• Performance continues to improve in most aspects of the council’s work to 

adapt service delivery to address demographic change. 

• There has been progress in supporting regeneration projects in Rhyl but, in 

challenging economic times, progress has been slow in supporting economic 

growth across Denbighshire as a whole. 

• The council provides good quality education services for children and young 

people and prospects for further improvement are good. 

• The council’s programme to improve roads is progressing but, following the 

2012 floods, an independent investigation will determine whether actions are 

needed to ensure flood risk in the county is appropriately managed in the 

future. 

• The council continues to make good progress with its planned actions to 

improve the way it works.  

2. The council’s corporate performance management arrangements support reliable 

self-evaluation but there is scope to improve the quality of some of the evidence 

the council uses to judge its effectiveness. 

3. The council’s arrangements to support improvement are good. In particular:  

• The council has discharged its improvement reporting duties under the 

Measure. 

Tudalen 86



1.5 External Regulation and Inspection Work 

57 

• The council has complied with its responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010 

and its Welsh Language Scheme. 

• The council continues to make good progress in addressing the proposals for 

improvement identified in our previous assessments. 

HER MAJESTY'S INSPECORATE FOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING IN WALES 

(Estyn) 

Every few years, Her Majesty’s Inspectorate for Education and Training in Wales 

(Estyn) undertake an inspection of each council’s education services for children and 

young people.  The conclusions from these inspections are presented in a report, 

and the most recent report for Denbighshire was published in February 2012.  The 

report contained the following conclusions: 

• The council provides good quality education services for children and young 

people and prospects for further improvement are good. 

• Although deprivation measures in Denbighshire had increased at a faster rate 

than across Wales in the three years preceding the inspection, educational 

performance had also improved at a faster rate than across Wales in both key 

stages 2 and 4. 

• Particular groups of learners, including vulnerable groups and those with 

additional learning needs, are generally attaining their expected levels.  Learners 

are making good progress in gaining skills in first and second language Welsh, 

and generally achieve good standards in both subjects. 

• The percentage of learners leaving primary school with functional literacy 

improved in 2011, and was better than the average across Wales. 

• The percentage of Year 11 learners not in education, training or employment has 

decreased steadily in recent years and was better than the average for Wales. 

• Support for school improvement had improved significantly since the previous 

inspection, and that the council has very good arrangements to support and 

challenge schools. 

• Systematic weakness in school leadership and management is addressed 

effectively to make sure that schools improve quickly enough. 

• Overall value for money in education services was good.  The budgets per pupil 

for both primary and secondary education were just below the Wales average, 

but attainment at most key stages was above average. 

• The council is well placed to deliver its plans for 21st century schools, and has 

made good progress in delivering its Modernising Education programme. 

  

Tudalen 87



1.5 External Regulation and Inspection Work 

58 

CARE AND SOCIAL SERVICES INSPECTORATE WALES (CSSIW) 

An annual review of Council Social Services performance is undertaken by the Care 

and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales (the CSSIW).  The CSSIW annual report 

provides an overall evaluation of performance and identifies areas of progress and 

areas for development.  The most recent CSSIW report about Denbighshire was 

published in October 2012, and it contained the following overall conclusions: 

• There was positive change and improvement in Adult Services, but the 

assessment of the needs of carers remained an area for improvement.  

• The council has made progress in developing a wide range of services and 

mainstream local community facilities to encourage independence. A reablement 

service has been successfully implemented.  Two-thirds of people referred to it 

do not require a further service and the majority of people surveyed provide 

positive feedback of their experience.  The council is seeking ways to extend the 

reablement service model to people provided with services by the independent 

sector. 

• The council had succeeded in providing alternatives to residential care through 

an increased provision of extra care housing, and the further development of 

existing sheltered housing and community living schemes. 

• Many services are provided in partnership with health, the independent or 

voluntary sector.  Other positive developments include the extension of telecare 

to 450 additional people and delivering over 80% of equipment that helps to 

maintain people’s mobility and independence within five working days. 

• The council has introduced specific measures to increase the involvement of 

users of social services in their planning and delivery. 

• A number of initiatives have been used to improve services to carers, and all 

carers who are assessed are provided with a service.  However, only 

approximately one third of carers were offered or provided with an assessment or 

review.  A waiting list for assessments was developed in 2011/12 and increased 

funding has been made available to address increased demand.  This is an area 

that the CSSIW identified as requiring improved performance. 

Tudalen 88



1.6 Collaboration 

59 

Working in Collaboration 

We do not always work on our own to provide benefits for the community.  

Sometimes it is possible to reduce costs or improve services by working in 

collaboration with other councils or agencies.  In December 2011, the Welsh 

Government and the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) signed the 

COMPACT, which was an agreement setting out a number of potential collaborative 

ventures.  Each council in Wales was then asked to sign up to delivering the 

COMPACT.  In January 2012, Denbighshire County Council agreed to play a role in 

implementing the full range of collaborations set out in the COMPACT provided that: 

a) there are demonstrable service improvements for Denbighshire residents, or b) 

there are resource savings and the proposed new service models provide a service 

to Denbighshire residents that is at least as good as the service it proposes to 

replace.   

In summary, the COMPACT has three contracts:  

1. The Education Implementation Contract 

2. The Social Services Implementation Contract 

3. The Other Services Implementation Contract 

Although there are fewer commitments in Contracts 1 and 2, these are in fact where 

more significant change is expected to take place. Many of the commitments in 

Contract 3 are smaller scale or commitments to review (rather than change) things. 

The current position is as follows: 

The more significant commitments in the COMPACT have broadly been delivered, 

and Denbighshire County Council has played a constructive - and often a leadership 

- role in many of them. These include the establishment of the Regional School 

Improvement Service, the Regional Social Services Hub for commissioning services 

for vulnerable adults requiring ‘low incident, high cost’ care and the National 

Procurement Service. 

These collaborations should lead to improve consistency, better resilience and, in 

the cases of the social services hub and the National Procurement Service, 

significant medium to long term financial savings. The Emergency Planning and 

Transport collaborations should improve planning and response and also deliver 

efficiencies. 

Some of the commitments in the COMPACT are ‘progressing’ rather than completed, 

but most of these are relatively minor and involve reviewing existing arrangements 

rather than committing to major change. 

Tudalen 89



1.6 Collaboration 

60 

In addition to the COMPACT, Denbighshire County Council is involved in a number 

of sub-regional collaborations, mainly with Conwy and Flintshire. These include the 

following: 

• Joint Local Service Board with Conwy 

• Joint Local Safeguarding Children Board with Conwy 

• Joint Procurement with Flintshire (currently developing a joint service) 

• Joint Emergency Planning with Flintshire (currently developing into a regional 

service) 

• Joint Emergency Duty Team (Social Services) with Flintshire and Wrexham 

• Mental Health Partnership with Conwy (currently developing into a regional 

partnership) 

• Procurement of Food Waste with Conwy and Flintshire 

• Youth Offending Services with Conwy 

Sub-regional collaborations are generally initiated by individual councils rather than 

the Welsh Government, whose approach has been to develop regional 

collaborations. These collaborations are working well, and the council will continue to 

look for opportunities where sub-regional collaboration can either improve the 

resilience of a service and/or save money. 

However, there have been some setbacks with sub-regional collaboration, most 

notably the decision by both Denbighshire and Conwy not to pursue the merger of 

their Highways and Infrastructure Services. This resulted in the deletion of the joint 

Head of Highways and Infrastructure post.  Denbighshire and Conwy also decided 

not to pursue further integration of their Public Protection Services. 

Ironically, the decision not to pursue the merger of Highways and Infrastructure 

actually led to efficiency savings because Denbighshire decided to merge the 

Highways and the Environment Services, leading to immediate senior management 

savings and the potential for improved efficient use of resources within the council. 

Tudalen 90



Adroddiad i:   Y Cyngor 
 
Dyddiad y cyfarfod: 8 Hydref 2013 
 
Aelod Arweiniol:  Cynghorydd Bobby Feeley 
 
Awdur yr adroddiad: Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Moderneiddio a Lles  
 
PWNC:   Polisi a Phanel Diogelu Corfforaethol Bwriedig 
 
1 Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?   
 
Mae’r adroddiad yn cynnig mabwysiadu Polisi Diogelu Corfforaethol a sefydlu 
Panel Diogelu Corfforaethol aelodau/swyddogion ar y cyd. 
 
2 Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 
 
Mae Sir Ddinbych wedi ceisio mabwysiadu agwedd ragweithiol tuag at sicrhau 
cydymffurfiad gyda’i gyfrifoldebau diogelu, gan gefnogi’r Cyfarwyddwr 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol statudol, sy’n bennaf gyfrifol am hyn. Ond, er 
iddynt ymdrin â hyn mewn amryw o wahanol ffyrdd, ni allwn fod yn hyderus bod 
arfer diogelu cadarn wedi’i chynnwys yn holl swyddogaethau’r Cyngor.  Hefyd, 
bydd swyddogaethau Bwrdd Diogelu amlasiantaeth, gan gynnwys 
swyddogaethau craffu, yn cael eu cynnal yn amlach ar lefelau isranbarthol a 
rhanbarthol. Bydd hyn, yn ei dro, yn rhoi rhagor o gyfrifoldeb ar y Cyngor i 
sicrhau bod ei systemau mewnol yn gweithio yn dda.  
 
3 Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 
 
3.1 Cytuno i fabwysiadu’r Polisi Diogelu Corfforaethol (wedi’i atodi)  
3.2 Cytuno ar sefydlu Panel Diogelu Corfforaethol gyda’r cylch gorchwyl a 
ddisgrifiwyd yn Atodiad 8. 
33 Cadarnhau bod hyfforddiant diogelu yn ofyniad gorfodol ar yr holl aelodau 
etholedig o fewn 12 mis o gychwyn yn y swydd. 
 
4 Manylion am yr adroddiad  
 
Cyflwyniad 
 
4.1 Yn draddodiadol, mae diogelu wedi’i ystyried fel cyfrifoldeb y gwasanaethau 
cymdeithasol yn bennaf, ond gan gydnabod swyddogaeth bwysig Addysg. Mae 
sicrhau bod gan y Cyngor fesurau diogelu effeithiol i amddiffyn pobl yn parhau i 
fod yn un o gyfrifoldebau craidd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol, 
sydd â “chyfrifoldeb terfynol na ellir ei rannu am faterion diogelu” yn y Cyngor 
(Canllawiau Statudol ar Swyddogaethau a Chyfrifoldebau Cyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 2009). 

Eitem Agenda 8

Tudalen 91



 
4.2 Roedd yr esboniad ynglŷn â sut y bydd y cyfrifoldeb hwn yn cael ei gyflawni, 
mewn sefydliad amlswyddogaeth cymhleth, yn llai clir, ac nid sicrhawyd 
swyddogaeth gorfforaethol ar wahân erioed. Mae adroddiadau awdurdodol olynol 
yn ystod y 10 mlynedd diwethaf (Waterhouse, Laming, Sir Benfro, gan enwi dim 
ond rhai)- yn ei gwneud yn hollol glir bod heriau i gadernid trefniadau diogelu yn 
codi mewn amryw o wahanol lefydd, a bod rhaid i ddiogelu fod yn "Fater i Bawb”. 
Ond, er ein bod yn gynyddol ymwybodol o’r cyfrifoldebau sydd gan Benaethiaid 
Gwasanaeth ac aelodau – o ran rheoli gwybodaeth neu iechyd a diogelwch, nid 
yw hyn yn wir mewn perthynas â diogelu.  Ni fydd llawer yn dod ar draws 
materion yn aml iawn. Ond, gall effaith gweithredu yn anghywir fod yn llawer 
uwch ac mae'r posibilrwydd o ddod ar draws mater diogelu yn cynyddu gyda 
phoblogaeth sy'n heneiddio a gwell mynediad at y rhyngrwyd a chyfryngau 
cymdeithasol. 
 
4.3 Mae enghreifftiau o faterion diogelu byw (achosion penodol neu faterion 
polisi) sydd wedi codi yn Sir Ddinbych yn y 12 mis diwethaf yn cynnwys AD, 
mewn perthynas â phrosesau cyflogaeth diogel, trefnau a sicrwydd, ysgolion, 
cludiant ysgol, trwyddedu, y wasg a chysylltiadau cyhoeddus (defnyddio 
delweddau), y gwasanaethau hamdden, yn ogystal â’r Gwasanaethau Oedolion 
a Phlant. Ac nid yw ein cyfrifoldebau yn gorffen gyda’n gwasanaethau ein hunain 
– mae hefyd yn gyfrifoldeb arnom i wybod y gallwn fod â hyder yn nhrefniadau 
diogelu'r sefydliad y byddwn yn comisiynu, caffael trefnau diogelu ganddynt 
neu'n rhannu cyfrifoldebau diogelu â nhw, a chyfrifoldeb cyhoeddus i wneud 
rhywbeth am sefydliadau rydym yn gwybod sy’n darparu gwasanaethau, ond 
rydym yn amau sydd ddim wedi sefydlu trefniadau cadarn.   
 
4.4 Yn Sir Ddinbych, yn ystod y 10 mlynedd diwethaf, rydym wedi datblygu sawl 
agwedd at gynnal proffil corfforaethol a throsolwg ar gyfer materion diogelu, fel a 
ganlyn:  
 

- Yn 2004, cytunodd y Cabinet ar Fframwaith Atebolrwydd Corfforaethol, ôl 
Climbie/Laming, oedd yn nodi cyfrifoldebau unigol ar gyfer diogelu plant. 
Mae hwn wedi’i ddiweddaru wedi hyn, a gofynnwyd i’r Penaethiaid 
Gwasanaeth a’r Aelodau Arweiniol ganfod bylchau ac arfer da. Er ei fod 
yn ddefnyddiol, ychydig o dystiolaeth sydd ei fod wedi bod yn ddogfen fyw 
sydd wedi cymell arferion. 

- Mae’r Tîm Rheoli Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ac Addysg (SSEMT), sydd 
wedi’i sefydlu ers sawl blwyddyn, wedi cadw golwg yn ar faterion diogelu, 
ar ran yr Uwch Dîm Arweiniol. 

- Ers 2009, mae Bwrdd Lleol Diogelu Plant Sir Ddinbych wedi ei gwneud yn 
ofynnol i bartneriaid gwblhau “archwiliadau a28” blynyddol (o’r 
dyletswyddau a nodwyd yn a28 Deddf Plant 2004). Ar gyfer Sir Ddinbych, 
mae hwn wedi cynnwys y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol, Addysg, y 
Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid a Thai - ond nid, er enghraifft, AD neu’r 
Gwasanaethau Hamdden 

Tudalen 92



- Mae rhaglen barhaus o hyfforddiant ymwybyddiaeth diogelu plant ac 
oedolion corfforaethol wedi’i chynnal ers 2009. Mae hyfforddiant Aelodau 
wedi bod yn orfodol ers 2012, ond nid oes cydymffurfiaeth 100% wedi bod 
â’r hyfforddiant hwn. 

- Ar ôl cyhoeddi adroddiadau AGGCC/Estyn ar y cyd ar y trefniadau diogelu 
yng Nghyngor Sir Penfro yn 2011, datblygwyd Cynllun Gweithredu 
Diogelu Corfforaethol sy’n parhau i gael ei fonitro gan SSEMT. Mae hwn 
wedi bod yn ymbarél ar gyfer gwaith da iawn yn Sir Ddinbych, gan 
gynnwys gweithredu archwiliadau hunanasesu mewn ysgolion, datblygu 
dull hunanasesu ar gyfer contractau sector gwirfoddol, adolygu trefniadau 
ar gyfer cyfarfodydd rhan IV (honiadau o gamdriniaeth broffesiynol), 
adolygiad diogelu sylweddol, cludiant i’r ysgol a threfniadau trwyddedu 
tacsis, a rhaglen waith fanwl iawn ar bolisïau, trefnau a chydymffurfiaeth 
AD (parhaus)  

 
4.5 Mae elfen dameidiog ac elfen o oportiwnistiaeth am y gwaith hwn, a theimlir 
bod angen i ni fabwysiadu agwedd fwy systematig a strwythuredig. 

 
Cynnig 

 
4.6 Mae fersiwn drafft wedi’i atodi o Bolisi Diogelu Corfforaethol a Chanllawiau yn 
seiliedig yn helaeth ar yr un a fabwysiadwyd yn ddiweddar yng Ngwynedd.  
Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth hefyd i agwedd tebyg a fabwysiadwyd yn Ynys Môn yn 
ddiweddar. Mabwysiadwyd y polisi yng Ngwynedd yn dilyn yr arolwg Estyn ac o 
ganlyniad i’r gofynion a nodwyd gan yr Arolygiaeth.  
 
4.7 Mae’r cynnig yn cael ei gyflwyno oherwydd y byddai’r agwedd yn darparu 
datblygiad rhesymegol i’r gwaith rydym wedi’i wneud eisoes gyda’r Fframwaith 
Atebolrwydd Corfforaethol ac ar y Cynllun Gweithredu Diogelu Corfforaethol.  
 
4.8 Nod y polisi a’r canllawiau yw sefydlu dull strwythuredig ar gyfer sicrhau bod 
diogelu yn fater sy’n cael ei ystyried gan bob gwasanaeth yn y Cyngor, yn 
ogystal â gan bob aelod etholedig.  
 
4.9 Agweddau allweddol y polisi a’r canllawiau yw: 
 
- mae’n cynnwys plant ac oedolion 
- mae’n seiliedig ar ddiogelu, ac nid amddiffyn yn unig  
- mae’n cynnwys y syniad bod Rheolwyr Dynodedig ym mhob gwasanaeth yn 
ymdrin â materion diogelu (ar ôl cael yr hyfforddiant priodol) 
- daw Rheolwyr Dynodedig ynghyd gydag uwch swyddogion ac aelodau 
arweiniol i ffurfio Panel Diogelu Corfforaethol sy’n atebol i’r Cabinet. Disgwylir i’r 
Panel Corfforaethol lunio Adroddiad Blynyddol ar gyfer rhoi gwybod yn fewnol a 
rhoi gwybod i’r BLlDP. 
- disgwylir i bob gwasanaeth sefydlu polisïau a threfnau diogelu sy’n ymdrin â’u 
maes busnes nhw.  

Tudalen 93



- mae’n ymdrin â chyfrifoldebau aelodau etholedig  
- mae’n cynnwys data craidd i bwrpasau rhoi gwybod. Mae hyn yn cynnwys rhai 
o’r Dangosyddion Perfformiad arferol, ond hefyd data AD allweddol (gwiriadau 
CRB, cydymffurfio â geirdaon) a % y cynghorwyr sydd wedi bod i hyfforddiant 
diogelu). Bydd peth gorgyffwrdd yma gyda rhoi gwybod am y Cynllun 
Corfforaethol a bydd angen i’r data ddatblygu i sicrhau ei fod yn ychwanegu 
gwerth at drefnau rhoi gwybod presennol. 
 
4.10 Mae’r atodiadau hefyd yn darparu 
 
- gwybodaeth sylfaenol am arwyddion o gamdriniaeth a llwybrau atgyfeirio – sy’n 
cysylltu â threfnau diogelu plant ac oedolion 
- adran ddefnyddiol ar y Cod Ymddygiad a threfnau gwaith diogel 
- adran sy’n nodi’r gefnogaeth hyfforddiant i’w rhoi i ddechrau.  Byddai angen 
datblygu hyn dros amser hefyd 
- croesgyfeirio gyda’n Polisïau Recriwtio Diogel (AD) 
- canllawiau ar gyfer cynghorwyr ar gyswllt diogel 
- ymdrin â honiadau o gamdriniaeth broffesiynol (hefyd yn cysylltu â threfnau 
diogelu plant ac oedolion) 
 
4.11 Er bod hyn yn creu dogfen sylweddol, mae’r pecyn yn darparu agwedd 
gredadwy tuag at sicrhau bod diogelu yn bryder corfforaethol. Byddai’r pecyn yn 
meithrin cysondeb agweddau ac atebolrwydd ac yn cael ei deilwra i’r materion 
sy’n wynebu gwasanaethau penodol.   
 
5 Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
 
Un o flaenoriaethau corfforaethol Sir Ddinbych yw sicrhau bod pobl ddiamddiffyn 
yn cael eu diogelu ac y gallant fyw mor annibynnol ag sy’n bosibl. 
 
6  Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
 
Bydd y prif oblygiadau o ran cost wedi’u rhannu yn dri – amser swyddogion i 
wneud gwaith y Rheolwr Dynodedig a hyfforddi Rheolwyr Dynodedig, cefnogaeth 
weinyddol ar gyfer y Panel Diogelu Corfforaethol ac arian ar gyfer hyfforddiant i 
sicrhau y gall staff ac aelodau etholedig fynd i hyfforddiant ar lefel briodol i 
ddiwallu eu swyddogaeth a’u gofynion. Mae eisoes adnoddau yn y system sy’n 
ymateb i faterion diogelu pan fyddant yn codi.  Yn y rhan fwyaf o achosion, bydd 
y trefniadau arfaethedig yn golygu ail ganolbwyntio ymdrechion yn hytrach na 
chreu gwaith cwbl newydd. Mae’r Gwasanaethau Plant wedi cytuno i roi 
cefnogaeth ar gyfer gweithredu Panel Diogelu Corfforaethol. 
 
7 Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb a gynhaliwyd 
am y penderfyniad? 
 

Tudalen 94



Gall mabwysiadu’r polisi a’r trefniadau’r panel gael effaith gadarnhaol, yn 
enwedig ar gyfer pobl hŷn a phobl anabl. Ni nodwyd unrhyw effeithiau negyddol. 
 
8 Pa ymgynghori a gynhaliwyd gyda’r Pwyllgorau Archwilio ac eraill? 
 
Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i’r adroddiad yn y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol ar 4 
Medi. Roedd y Pwyllgor yn llwyr gefnogol i fabwysiadu’r Polisi, y canllawiau a’r 
Panel. Cafodd ei ystyried hefyd gan y Cabinet yn ei gyfarfod 24 Medi 2013. 
 
Yn ogystal â chodi rhai materion ynglŷn â chysondeb mewnol y ddogfen, sydd 
wedi cael eu datrys, gwnaeth aelodau awgrymiadau penodol ynglŷn ag 
ychwanegiadau i’r polisi/ eitemau ar gyfer y rhaglen waith, yn enwedig yn 
ymwneud â chyngor a chanllawiau arfer da ar y mater o dechnoleg / cyfryngau 
cymdeithasol. Derbynnir hyn a chynigir fod gwaith yn cael ei wneud ar bolisi 
sengl yn cynnwys goblygiadau cyfreithiol, AD a diogelu. 
 
Awgrymodd y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu Corfforaethol y dylid adolygu’r Polisi / 
canllawiau / Panel Diogelu ar ôl 3 blynedd. Ychwanegwyd dyddiad adolygu 
ffurfiol at flaen y Polisi. 
 
9 Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid. 
 
Ni ddylai mabwysiadu’r Polisi a chreu’r Panel greu costau ychwanegol sylweddol, 
ond bydd rhaid ariannu unrhyw gostau ychwanegol o adnoddau presennol.  
 
10 Pa risgiau sy’n bodoli ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 
lleihau? 
 
Y brif risg gyda’r cynnig yw ei fod yn ymarfer biwrocrataidd o gydymffurfio. Ond, y 
risg fel arall yw nad oes gennym agwedd systematig i sicrhau bod gofynion 
diogelu wedi’u hystyried ar gyfer pob maes gwasanaeth yn y Cyngor. Gellir 
lliniaru’r risg o fod yn rhy fiwrocrataidd trwy ganolbwyntio ar drefnau ac arferion 
rhoi gwybod sy’n ddeheuig ac yn ychwanegu gwerth at wasanaethau, yn ogystal 
â sicrhau gwell atebolrwydd. 
 

11 Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 
 
a. 28 Deddf Plant 2004 

Tudalen 95



Tudalen 96

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



1  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Denbighshire 

County Council 

 

 

Policy and 

Guidelines 
Safeguarding Children & Adults 

 
 
 

 
 

 

                                      Draft  

                                      September 2013 

                                     Review date 

                                     September 2016 
 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 97



2 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

 
1.  INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1.      One of Denbighshire Council’s corporate priorities is to ensure that vulnerable 

people are protected and are able to l ive as independently as 

possible. 
 
1.2. As a Council, we believe that every child and adult has a right to be safe from 

harm. The Council acknowledges its role and responsibilities to provide definite 

guidance for staff, Councillors, partners and those people whom we serve in this key 

field. 
 
1.3.      “Safeguarding” is everybody’s business in every Service within the Council.   Whilst 

Social Services is the Lead Service for dealing with enquiries regarding allegations / 

concerns that children and adults may be suffering significant harm, everyone has 

a responsibility to safeguard the welfare of children, young people and adults, 

whatever the role of the individual. 
 
1.4.     “Safeguarding” is a wider concept than the protection of children and adults and 

deals with the promoting of: 

 
• physical, emotional and mental health; 

• protection from harm and neglect; 

• education, training and leisure; 

• contribution to society; 

• social and economic well-being. 

 
 
1.6.      Although every organisation working with children, young people and adults 

should be committed to safeguarding and promoting their welfare, a number 

of organisations have statutory roles or duties: 

 
• under Section 28 of the Children Act 2004, Denbighshire Council has a duty 

to ensure that it undertakes its functions in a way that safeguards and 
promotes the welfare of children; 

• under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, it is Denbighshire 

Council’s duty to ensure that every reasonable step is taken to protect 

adults and prevent crime and disorder when it undertakes its functions. 

 

Welsh Government also proposes to strengthen duties relating to adult protection 

in the forthcoming Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Bill. 
 

 
 

2.  PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT 
 

The  purpose  of  this  document  is  to  introduce  the  Council’s  “Policy  and  

Guidelines  for Safeguarding Children and Adults”. 

Tudalen 98



3 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

 
This document will be submitted to the Denbighshire Council Cabinet on 24th 
September, 2013 and to full Council on 8th October, 2013. Every member of staff of 
the Council and every Councillor will then receive a copy of this document. 

 
2.1.  Objectives and Principles of the Policy and Guidelines 

 
2.1.1 The following are the objectives of the Safeguarding Policy and Guidelines: 

 
• to highlight how Denbighshire Council undertakes its legal commitments in 

the field of safeguarding children and adults; 

• to give assurance to members of the public, service users, councillors, 

employees and people working on behalf of the Council that there are 

clear arrangements in place to safeguard and protect children and adults; 

• that Council staff and councillors have clear guidelines for  when a child or 

adult may be at risk of harm. 

 
2.1.2    As a Council we believe that it is always unacceptable for a child or an adult to 

be abused or harmed in any way. This is reflected in the following principles which 
form the basis of the Policy and Guidelines: 

 
• Every child and adult (whatever their background, culture, age, disability, 

gender, ethnicity, religious belief) has a right to participate in a safe society 
without any violence, fear, abuse, bullying and discrimination; 

Every child and adult has the right to be protected from harm, 

exploitation and abuse; 

• we as a Council will put the welfare of children and adults centrally in our 
policies and procedures; 

• As a Council we will work closely in partnership with children, their parents, 
carers and adults and other agencies to safeguard and promote the welfare 
of children and adults; 

• Respect the rights, wishes, feelings and privacy of children and adults by 

listening to them and minimising any risks that may affect them; 

• Invest in preventative work and early intervention and try to avoid situations 

where abuse or allegations of abuse or harm may occur. 

 
2.2.  Outcomes 

 
2.2.1    This Policy and Guidelines reflect the Council’s commitment to safeguard 

children and adults and to protect them from being abused when they receive 

services arranged and provided by or on behalf of the Council. 
 
2.2.2    When the Guidelines are introduced, we will measure the impact  regularly 

i n  o r d e r  t o achieve the following high level outcomes: 

 
• a clear understanding amongst staff, councillors and those working on 

behalf of the Council of the policies and guidelines for safeguarding children 

and adults; 

• robust corporate and departmental procedures in place to ensure 

compliance with the Policies and Guidelines introduced here; 

• clear  and  access ib le   communication  arrangements  in  place  across  

the organisation, including information about the key officers in each Service 

who are responsible for children and adult safeguarding issues; 

• consistency between these guidel ines and the procedures which are 

operational on an all- Wales basis and associated protocols for safeguarding 

children and adults ; 
Tudalen 99



4 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

• that staff and councillors receive information and training regarding the 

guidelines and that this is a continuous and permanent arrangement within  

 the organisation. 
 

 
 

3.  RESPONSIBILITES AND DUTIES 
 
3.1.      Every Councillor, every member of staff, every volunteer and every contracted 

service provider has a responsibility to adhere to the procedures and guidance set 
out in this policy. 

 
3.2.     By following the correct procedures and guidance, it is possible to ensure that the 

appropriate steps are implemented to deal with any allegation or concern, 
services are planned and delivered in a way which safeguards children and 
adults and staff are able to conduct themselves safely. 

 
3.3.     Every member of staff, councillor, volunteer and service provider has a responsibility 

in the field of safeguarding. It is very important to highlight this. 
 
3.4.      This means that every Service within the Council has a key role to play and 

has to take full ownership of the safeguarding field. It follows that there is a 

need to ensure that there are clear arrangements and procedures in place 

within each Service in the Council to ensure that investigations into allegations / 

concerns that children and adults may be suffering substantial harm receive due 

consideration. In addition, every service needs to understand where safeguarding 

issues are most likely to arise in their particular service and ensure they have 

appropriate policies, procedures and guidance in place to manage these well. 

 
3.5.      This document draws together the corporate policies and guidelines in the field 

of safeguarding children and adults and it will operate as a framework for the 
procedures of every Service in the Council. 

 
 

4.  FUNCTIONS OF KEY OFFICERS AND MEMBERS 
 

The Chief Executive has the general responsibility for ensuring that there is an 
effective safeguarding policy and procedures for children and adults in place and 
that they are implemented. 

 
He is also responsible for the development of effective corporate governance and 

satisfying all the statutory  requirements  However,  there  are  some  Key  Officers  

who  are  worth  highlighting because of their responsibilities in the safeguarding 

field: 
 
    4.1.  Statutory Director (Social Services)  
         Current postholder:            Sally Ellis 
 
 

4.1.1    The Statutory Director (Social Services) has the final and indivisible responsibility for 

safeguarding issues. She is responsible for ensuring that the Council has 

appropriate safeguarding measures to protect children and young people, adults 

and vulnerable older people and she is responsible for reporting at a corporate 

level to councillors on their effectiveness. 
 
4.1.2 The Director is responsible for the following: 

 
• supervising the process of implementing, monitoring and improving the 

safeguarding and protection procedures for children and adults; 

• ensuring that there are robust reporting arrangements and processes for Tudalen 100



5 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

safeguarding children and adults and to report at corporate level and to 
Members; 

• ensuring the effectiveness of the Local Safeguarding 

Children Board; 

• ensuring that lessons are learned as a result of serious case reviews and 

that they are applied  as  necessary  by   every   agency,  

acknowledging  that  the   effectiveness  of arrangements are dependent 

on the quality of the contribution of every agency; 

• raising the profile, supporting the policy and ensuring that the Council 
complies fully with the Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and 
Adults; 

• ensuring that every member of staff of Social Services understands and 
implements high standards in terms of identifying risks and safeguarding 
practices; 

• promoting more awareness amongst the public of issues relating to 
safeguarding children and adults and ensuring social work practices evolve 
in light of appropriate research; 

• raising standards in social work practice by means of professional 
supervision, training and other opportunities to learn and reflect so that staff 
working in the safeguarding field are supported appropriately; 

• submitting  observations,  in  her  statutory  role,  on  Cabinet  reports  
dealing  with  the safeguarding field. 

 
4.1.3  Whilst every member of staff has a responsibility to safeguard and promote 

the welfare of children and adults, the Statutory Director is the Senior Officer in the 

Council with the final and indivisible accountability for this. 
 
4.2.  Lead Director for Children and Young People 

Current Post Holder: H y w y n  W i l l i am s   
 
4 .2.1    The Children Act (2004) places a responsibility on every local authority in 
Wales to appoint a lead director for children and young people services and to 
appoint a specified lead member for children and young people services. The role 
of the Lead Director in Wales does not change the arrangements of an executive 
authority or change accountability for services. The Lead Director for Children and 
Young People’s Services in Wales has three main roles: 

 
• Firstly, the Lead Director will be responsible for promoting partnership when 

planning for children and young people corporately across the 

departments of the local authority and across the authority and its partners; 

• Secondly, the Lead Director will offer the required leadership to ensure that 

a high profile is given within the local authority to planning in partnership 

thereby promoting strategic change for children and young people in the 

field; 

• Thirdly, the Lead Director is responsible for ensuring that the local authority 
implements the United Nations’ Convention on the Rights of the Child. 

 
4.2.2 This responsibility is in addition to, but independent of any executive 

responsibility the Lead Director has for a specific service or a group of services 
that could be associated with any appropriate Director within the Corporate 
Executive Team. 

 
4.3.  Designated Managers within Every Service 

 
4.3.1   Every Service within the Council will be required to nominate a “Designated 

Manager” for dealing with safeguarding children and adults issues. 
 

Tudalen 101



6 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

4.3.2 The Designated Managers are responsible for: 

 
• Acting as a key  source  of advice and support for other staff in the 

Service on all safeguarding issues; 

• Being familiar with Denbighshire Council’s Co rpo ra te  Policy and 

Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults along with the All Wales 

Child Protection Procedures and the Policy and Proecdure for the Protection 

of Vulnerable Adults; 

• ensuring that there are effective internal procedures to deal with    

concerns within the Service by working closely with Social Services to 

achieve this; 

•  representing the Service on the Council’s Corporate Panel for Safeguarding           
Children and Adults;  

• ensuring that the process of complying with this Policy and Guidelines is 
monitored by reporting regularly to the Corporate Safeguarding Panel; 

• attending the relevant training for “Designated Managers”. 

 
4.3.3. Any member of staff with concerns regarding the behaviour of a colleague 

towards children or an adult should contact the Designated Manager within the 
Service immediately. 

 
4.3.4 The Designated Managers for each Service are as follows: 

 
Department Contact 

School Improvement Wayne Wheatley  

Customers and Education Support Wayne Wheatley 

Human Resources tbc 

Finance and Assets tbc 

Legal and Democratic Services tbc 

Housing and Regeneration tbc 

Communications, Marketing and 
Leisure 

Roger Ellerton 

Tudalen 102



7 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

Social Services (Adults) Nerys Tompsett 

Social Services (Children) Sue Trehearn 

Business Planning and Performance tbc 

Environment and Highways tbc 

Planning and Public Protection tbc 

Business Transformation and ICT tbc 

 
 

4.3.5 If allegations are made against a “Designated Manager”, the individual should refer 

their concerns to the line manager of the Designated Manager. 
 
4.4.  All Heads of Service 

 
4.4.1   All Heads of Service – through their Management Teams – will be jointly responsible 

for ensuring that all the statutory requirements in terms of safeguarding and 

promoting the welfare of children and adults receive due consideration. This 

includes the quality, content and frequency of training provided and maintaining 

sufficient staff training records. 
 
4.4.2  All Heads of Service must ensure that their staff are a p p r o p r i a t e l y  

checked through the D i s c l o s u r e  a n d  B a r r i n g  S e r v i c e  procedures and 

that their staff conform to the  Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children 

and Adults. All Heads of Service must establish arrangements to ensure that 

they comply with the requirements of this policy and the Council’s Criminal 

Records Policy. All Heads of Service must ensure that records are kept of every 

check that is made by the Disclosure and Barring Service. 
 
4.4.3    All Heads of Service  are  expected to co-ordinate the process of preparing 

a Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults in their Service. It is 

expected that this Policy is prepared in order to highlight the Service’s 

arrangements for responding to issues that could arise in the safeguarding field. It 

will be a requirement for the Policy to fully comply with the Corporate Policy 

and Guidelines.  Every Service Policy and Guidelines will be in place by the end of 

March 2014.               
 
4.4.4    It will be a requirement for every Service in the Council to report on their 

Safeguarding Policies and Guidelines to the Corporate Panel for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults. 

Tudalen 103



8 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

 
4.4.5   The Council’s Senior Leadership Team meets on a fortnightly basis. At these 

meetings, any member can raise safeguarding issues.  
 

4.5.  Every  Line  Manager 
 
4.5.1    Every  Line Manager is responsible for ensuring that the staff for which they are 

responsible receive the training which they need, proportionate to their 

responsibilities. A refreshed Training Strategy will be prepared setting out which 

members of staff should receive safeguarding training and to what level. A priority 

will be the training of Designated Safeguarding Managers in each service.  
 
4.6.  Every Member of Staff and Volunteers (including school governors) 

 
4.6.1    Every member of staff and volunteers are responsible for undertaking their 

duties in a manner which safeguards and promotes the welfare of children and 

adults. They must also act in a way which protects them against false allegations of 

abuse as far as possible and in accordance with this policy. They must bring issues 

of concern regarding the safety and welfare of children and adults to the 

attention of the Designated Manager in their Service. 
 
4.7.  Contractors, Sub-contractors  or  Other   Organisations funded by  or  on  

behalf of Denbighshire Council 
 
4.7.1    Contractors, sub-contractors or other organisations funded by or on behalf of 

the Council are responsible for arranging checks through the Disclosure and 

Barring Service and the Independent Safeguarding Authority and for ensuring that 

their staff comply with regulatory and contractual arrangements relating to 

safeguarding children and adults. Some organizations are also required to 

undertake an annual self assessment of safeguarding arrangements, and to 

report outcomes, as part of contract monitoring arrangements. It is expected 

that this will apply to more organizations over time. Contractors are also 

responsible for informing relevant managers of the Council about any concerns 

they may have and to refer protection issues. 
 
4.8.  Detailed Guidelines 

 
4.8.1 A copy of “Signs of Abuse” is attached at Appendix 1 and the “Code of 

Conduct and Safe Working Practices” at Appendix 2. 
 
4.8.2.   Also, in Appendix 3, a statement is attached of the Council’s commitment to 

train staff (and Councillors) in the field of safeguarding. Appendix 4  cross 
refers to the Council’s detailed guidelines in relation to “Safe Recruitment”. 

 
5.  ROLE OF ELECTED MEMBERS 

 
5.1. Elected Members will receive the following information in the field of safeguarding: 

 
• The Lead Member for Social Care and Children’s Services and the Lead 

Member for Education will be standing members of the Corporate 

Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults. This Panel will receive 

information regarding the working practices and procedures of every 

Service in the Council, providing assurance that the Services are meeting 

their duties in accordance with the Corporate Safeguarding Policy and 

Guidelines. In addition, the Panel will receive information regarding the 

performance management arrangements of every Service, in order to show 

that they are discharging their duties in a manner which safeguards children 
Tudalen 104



9 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

and adults. 

 
Members of the Panel will have an important role in challenging information 

regarding the results of the performance management process across 

services from the perspective of safeguarding children and adults. It is also 

the duty of Members of this Panel to ensure that effective corporate policies 

and procedures are developed across the organisation. 
 

• The Lead Member for Social Care and Children’s Services and the Lead 

Member for Education, will report on the work of the Corporate Panel to all 

Cabinet Members on an annual basis. Every Cabinet Member will receive 

assurance from the Lead Member for Social Care and Children’s Services 

and the Lead Member for Education, that a clear work programme is in 

place and that the Council’s policies and procedures are robust in the 

safeguarding field. In addition, it must be reported that appropriate 

arrangements are in place to monitor the performance of every Service 

regarding reviewing and evaluating policies. In  the  Annual  Report,  there  

will  also  be  an  opportunity for  both L e a d  M e m b e r s  serving on the 

Corporate Panel to highlight any obstacles or concerns they may have in 

terms of the response or performance of any Service in the Council. 

 
Any lessons from Serious Case Reviews will also be identified to Cabinet as 
part of the Annual Report. 

 
• Members of the Pe r fo rmance  Scrutiny Committee will receive 

information regarding the work of the Corporate Safeguarding Panel 

through the Annual Report. This will provide an opportunity for Members to 

scrutinise and challenge Members of the Corporate Panel. Members of the 

Scrutiny Committee will receive information regarding the work programme 

of the Co rpo ra te  Panel, the progress against this work programme 

and the main messages stemming from the performance management 

arrangements. The observations of the Scrutiny Committee will steer and 

influence the priorities of the Corporate Panel’s work programme. 

 
• It i s  a  r e q u i r e m e n t  that every Councillor attends training in the 

field of safeguarding children and adults.  A register will be kept of those 

attending and this will be reported as part of the performance monitoring 

arrangements co-ordinated by the Co rpo ra te  Panel. The training will 

raise awareness amongst Denbighshire Councillors of this Policy and 

Guidelines and increase their understanding of the safeguarding 

procedures which exist within the Council. 

 
5.2. A copy of the "Good Practice Guidelines for Councillors - Safe Contact with  

Children and Vulnerable Adults" is in Appendix 5. 
 

 
 

6.  CLARITY REGARDING THE REFERRAL PROCESS 
 
6.1.      Any member of staff with concerns regarding the safety of an individual, or the 

behaviour of a colleague towards children or an adult should contact the 
Designated Manager within the Service immediately. 

 
6.2       If a Councillor (or any member of the public) has concerns regarding the 

safety of an individual,   then  the  First Contact Team  (Social  Services)  

should  be   contacted immediately on 01824 712 900 during office hours 

(8.30am to 5pm Monday to Thursday, 8.30 am to 4.30 pm Friday). 

 Tudalen 105



10 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

6.3. The Social Services Out-of-Hours Team should be  contacted on 0 8 4 5  

0 5 3  3 1 1 6  i f the issue arises after 5.00pm, Monday to Friday and on 

weekends and Bank Holidays. 

 

6.4. The Police must be contacted immediately if the child or adult is in danger. 
 
6.5.  If the Designated Manager is unavailable, then the matter must be referred to 

the F i r s t  C o n t a c t Team (details as noted  above). It is crucial not to delay. 
 
6.6.    A copy of the “Referral Procedure” is in Appendix 6. Also, a copy of the detailed 

guidelines in relation to “Dealing with Allegations of Professional Abuse” is in 

Appendix 7. 
 

 
 

7.  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
7.1.  Corporate Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults 

 
7.1.1    On a corporate level, the responsibility for undertaking an overview of the 

children and adults safeguarding arrangements has been delegated to the 
Corporate Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults by Cabinet. 

 
7.1.2    The main responsibilities of the Panel are to ensure that robust arrangements for 

safeguarding children and adults are in place within Denbighshire Council. 
 
7.1.3 The Panel will act on a Strategic level in order to: 

 
• assure relevant Lead Members that the Council’s procedures are robust 

where matters of safeguarding children and adults are concerned; 
• Bring together interdepartmental work in the safeguarding field and 

ensure effective corporate communication; 

• Support the functions and duties of the Statutory Director within the Council; 
• Resolve  any  possible  barriers  that  could  prevent  having  effective  

and  successful procedures in place; 
• Identify any gaps in corporate policies and guidelines and ensure they are 

addressed, working appropriately with the LSCB and the Adult Protection 
Committee 

• Ensure that appropriate training is available for officers and members 
• Receive and consider information about trends in relation to allegations 

of professional abuse, and adopt action plans to respond should the need 
arise; 

• Receive  and  challenge  information  about  c o r p o r a t e  

s a f e gua r d i ng  pe r f o rmance  and  the  progress  against  work  

programmes commissioned  

• Consider and understand the implications of Serious Case Reviews and 

ensure that the Council responds effectively to recommendations within 

such reviews; 

• Accept and challenge the Annual Report of the Statutory Director; 

• Approve the Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding of every Service in the 

Council and receive information about the performance management 

arrrangements of every service in relation to their safeguarding responsibilities 

• Produce an Annual Report for CET, Cabinet, and the appropriate Scrutiny 

Committee 

 
7.1.4    The Panel has a key role to play in ensuring that every Service undertakes its duties 

in accordance with the Council’s Safeguarding Policy and Guidelines.  The Panel 

also ensures that every Service has a performance management system in place 

to show that they are undertaking their functions in a manner which safeguards Tudalen 106



11 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

children and adults. 
 
7.1.5 The Panel meets on a quarterly basis. The  Membership  of  the Panel  includes  

Designated  Managers  for  the  field  of safeguarding children and adults in every 

Service within the Council.  The Panel is a key method of ensuring that the 

Designated Managers collaborate and share information across the Council. 

They also deal with identifying any gaps in the Council’s procedures in the 

safeguarding field along with submitting recommendations to the Corporate 

Panel regarding updating or amending the Council’s Policy in this field. A copy of 

the Panel’s terms of reference is in Appendix 8. The Panel is serviced by Children 

and Family Services. 
 
7.1.6   Cabinet receives an annual report from this Panel. The Corporate Executive Team 

also receives the annual report, with more frequent reporting on an as required 

basis. This provides assurance to the Chief Executive that safeguarding is receiving 

its due attention within the Council. 
 

7.1.7 The Panel complements the role of the Local Safeguarding Children Board and the Denbighshire 

Adult Protection Committee. These focus on ensuring that robust multi-agency arrangements are in 

place to safeguard children and vulnerable adults and that key partners have appropriate 

safeguarding systems in place. The role of the Denbighshire Corporate  Panel for Safeguarding 

Children and Adults is to ensure effective oversight of  safeguarding across the wide range of services 

which the Council provides and commissions. On their own, the current multi- agency arrangements 

for children and adults cannot provide sufficient depth of assurance to meet the needs of complex 

organisations, especially given increased public expectations and expectations from regulators.  

 
7.3.  Denbighshire Council’s Performance Scrutiny Committee 

 
7.3.1   The Council’s Performance Scrutiny Committee wi l l  have the ro le of  

scrutinising and challenging the work and performance of the Corporate Panel for 

Safeguarding Children and Adults on an annual basis. It is considered that this is 

crucial so that Committee Members gain experience and understanding in the 

field and become completely aware of the breadth and depth of the Panel’s 

work and the corporate arrangements. 
 
7.4.  The Council's Corporate Plan 2012 - 2017 

 
7.4.1    The Council’s Corporate Plan sets out the strategic direction for the Council’s 

work over the n e x t  f i v e  years and identifies clear priorities and actions to 

respond to these priorities. An Annual Delivery Plan is also produced to enable 

monitoring on regular basis. 
 
7.4.2    O n e  o f  t h e  p r i o r i t i e s  w i t h i n  t h e  P l a n  i s  t h a t  “ V u l n e r a b l e  

P e o p l e  a r e  p r o t e c t e d  a n d  a b l e  t o  l i v e  a s  i n d e p e n d e n t l y  

a s  p o s s i b l e . ”  R e g u l a r  p r o g r e s s  r e p o r t s  a r e  s u bm i t t e d  t o  

C a b i n e t  a n d  a  s e t  o f  h i g h  l e v e l  i n d i c a t o r s  h a s  a l s o  b e e n  

a g r e e d . T h e s e  a r r a n g em e n t s  w i l l  c omp l em e n t  r e p o r t i n g  t o  

t h e  C o r p o r a t e  Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults.. 
 

 

8.  REPORTING, MONITORING AND REVIEWING 
 
8.1.      The Corporate Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults’ Annual Report will 

draw attention to the Council’s performance in complying with the Corporate 

Policy and Guidelines. The Annual Report will be submitted to the Corporate 

Executive Team, the Cabinet and to the  Performance Scrut iny 

Committee. In addition, on behalf of the Council as a whole, the Tudalen 107



12 

Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults – 
Draft Version 

 

 

Safeguarding Panel will report to the Conwy and Denbighshi re Local 

Safeguarding Children Board as part of requirements under s28 of the Children Act 

2004. 
 
8.2.      It is proposed to submit the Annual Report every June. Specific attention will be 

given initially to the following Performance Indicators. It is anticipated that this 

dataset will evolve over time to better capture the breadth of safeguarding activity: 
# POVA referrals completed in the period 

# child protection referrals in the period 

% of staff commencing in post with two references and a DBS check 

% of staff receiving safeguarding training as they receive induction 

% of Child referrals during the year where a decision is made within one working day 

(SCC/006) 

% of initial assessments completed during the year with evidence that a Social Worker has 

seen the child 
(SCC/011a) 

% of child protection reviews held within the statutory timetable during the year (SCC/034) 

% of initial assessments completed within 7 working days (SCC/042a) 

% of adult clients with a care plan on 31 March whose care plans should have been 

reviewed that were reviewed during the year (SCA/007) 

% of Councillors attending safeguarding training 

% of adult protection referrals completed during the year, the percentage where the 

risk has been managed (SCA/019) 

% of referrals re-referred within 12 months  

 

 
 

8.3.      The Corporate Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults will receive a quarterly 

report noting the performance of indicators in the safeguarding field and work 

programme progress. The Local Safeguarding Children Board already receives 

core data on a regular basis. Any concerns regarding underperformance/slippage 

will require a clear action plan to respond to the concerns. Safeguarding will also 

be a potential “line of enquiry” in service challenges. 
 
8.4.      This Safeguarding Policy will be reviewed annually or if any amendments occur in 

legislation or in consideration of changes in working practices which may stem 

from incidents or allegations. 
 
8.5.      Further details are included in Appendix 9 regarding the method the Council will 

use to measure impact and monitor effectiveness. 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 – Signs of Abuse 
Appendix 2 – Code of Conduct and Safe Working Practices 

Appendix 3 – Safeguarding Training 
Appendix 4 – Safe Recruitment 
Appendix 5 – Good Practice Guidelines for Councillors: Safe Contact with Children 
and Vulnerable Adults 
Appendix 6 – The  Referral Process 
Appendix 7 – Dealing with Allegations of Professional Abuse 

Appendix 8 – C o r p o r a t e  Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults Terms of 

Reference 
Appendix 9 – Measuring Impact and Monitoring 

Tudalen 108



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

Signs of Abuse 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 109



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 

Signs of Abuse 

 

 

This policy relates to both children and adults.  They both have their individual codes of practice and 

relevant staff need to be familiar with these documents. 

 

Children in Need 

 

Abuse and neglect are forms of maltreatment of a child.  Somebody may abuse or neglect a child either 

directly by inflicting harm, or indirectly, by failing to act to prevent harm.  Children may be abused in a 

family or in an institutional or community setting; by those known to them; or, more rarely, by a stranger.  

They may be abused by an adult or adults, or another child or children. 

 

There are four types of child abuse.  They are defined in the All Wales Child Protection Procedures and 

Welsh Government guidance Safeguarding Children: Working Together Under the Children Act 2004 as 

follows: 

 

Physical abuse 

Physical abuse may involve hitting, shaking, throwing, poisoning, burning or scalding, drowning, suffocating, 

or otherwise causing physical harm to a child. Physical harm may also be caused when a parent or carer 

fabricates the symptoms of, or deliberately induces, illness in a child. 

 

The physical signs of abuse may include: 

 

• unexplained bruising, marks or injuries on any part of the body 

• multiple bruises- in clusters, often on the upper arm, outside of the thigh  

• cigarette burns  

• human bite marks 

• broken bones  

• scalds, with upward splash marks 

• multiple burns with a clearly demarcated edge. 

 

N.B. Most children will collect cuts and bruises as part of the rough-and-tumble of daily life.  Injuries should 

always be interpreted in light of the child’s medical and social history, developmental stage and the 

explanation given.  Most accidental bruises are seen over bony parts of the body, e.g. elbows, knees, shins, 

and are often on the front of the body.  Important indicators of physical abuse are bruises or injuries that 

are either unexplained or inconsistent with the explanation given, or visible on the ‘soft’ parts of the body 

where accidental injuries are unlikely, e g, cheeks, abdomen, back and buttocks. 

 
Tudalen 110



 

 

Changes in behaviour that can also indicate physical abuse: 

 

• fear of parents being approached for an explanation 

• aggressive behaviour or severe temper outbursts 

• flinching when approached or touched 

• reluctance to get changed, for example in hot weather  

• depression or withdrawn behaviour 

• running away from home. 

 

Emotional Abuse 

Emotional abuse is the persistent emotional maltreatment of a child such as to cause severe and persistent 

adverse effects on the child’s emotional development.  It may involve conveying to children that they are 

worthless or unloved, inadequate, or valued only insofar as they meet the needs of another person.  It may 

feature age or developmentally inappropriate expectations being imposed on children.  It may involve 

causing children frequently to feel frightened or in danger, or the exploitation or corruption of children.  

Some level of emotional abuse is involved in all types of maltreatment of a child, though it may occur alone. 

 

Changes in behaviour which can indicate emotional abuse include: 

 

• neurotic behaviour e.g. sulking, hair twisting, rocking 

• being unable to play 

• fear of making mistakes 

• sudden speech disorders 

• self-harm 

• fear of parent being approached regarding their behaviour 

• developmental delay in terms of emotional progress 

 

Sexual Abuse 

Sexual abuse involves forcing or enticing a child or young person to take part in sexual activities, not 

necessarily involving a high level of violence, whether or not the child is aware of what is happening.  The 

activities may involve physical contact, including assault by penetration (for example, rape or oral sex) or 

non-penetrative acts such as masturbation, kissing, rubbing and touching outside of clothing.  They may also 

include non-contact activities, such as involving children in looking at, or in the production of, sexual images, 

watching sexual activities, encouraging children to behave in sexually inappropriate ways, or grooming a 

child in preparation for abuse (including via the internet). 

 

The physical signs of sexual abuse may include: 

 

• pain or itching in the genital area 

• bruising or bleeding near genital area 

• sexually transmitted disease 

• vaginal discharge or infection 

• stomach pains Tudalen 111



 

 

• discomfort when walking or sitting down 

• Pregnancy 

 

Changes in behaviour which can also indicate sexual abuse include: 

 

• sudden or unexplained changes in behaviour e.g. becoming aggressive or withdrawn 

• fear of being left with a specific person or group of people 

• having nightmares 

• running away from home 

• sexual knowledge which is beyond their age, or developmental level 

• sexual drawings or language 

• bedwetting 

• eating problems such as overeating or anorexia 

• self-harm or mutilation, sometimes leading to suicide attempts 

• saying they have secrets they cannot tell anyone about 

• substance or drug abuse 

• suddenly having unexplained sources of money 

• not allowed to have friends (particularly in adolescence) 

• acting in a sexually explicit way towards adults 

 

Neglect 

Neglect is the persistent failure to meet a child’s basic physical and/or psychological needs, likely to result in 

the serious impairment of the child’s health or development.  It may involve a parent or carer failing to 

provide adequate food, shelter and clothing, failing to protect a child from physical harm or danger, or the 

failure to ensure access to appropriate medical care or treatment. It may also include neglect of, or 

unresponsiveness to, a child’s basic emotional needs. 

 

The physical signs of neglect may include: 

 

• constant hunger, sometimes stealing food from other children 

• constantly dirty or ‘smelly’ 

• loss of weight, or being constantly underweight 

• inappropriate clothing for the conditions. 

 

Changes in behaviour which can also indicate neglect may include: 

 

• complaining of being tired all the time 

• not requesting medical assistance and/or failing to attend appointments  

• having few friends 

• mentioning being left alone or unsupervised 

 

These definitions and indicators are not meant to be definitive, but only serve as a guide to assist you.  It is 

important too, to remember that many children may exhibit some of these indicators at some time, and that 
Tudalen 112



 

 

the presence of one or more should not be taken as proof that abuse is occurring.  There may well be other 

reasons for changes in behaviour such as a death or the birth of a new baby in the family or relationship 

problems between parents/carers.  In assessing whether indicators are related to abuse or not, Social 

Services will always want to understand them in relation to the child’s development and context. 

 

Adults in Need of Protection 

 

Categories of Abuse 

There are many ways in which a vulnerable person may be abused.  It is not unusual for an abused adult to 

suffer more than one kind of abuse.  Accordingly, the impact of abuse and its seriousness for the individual 

must be evaluated in every case. 

 

In safe Hands identifies five main categories of abuse: 

• Physical 

• Sexual 

• Financial 

• Emotional or Physiological 

• Neglect 

 

Physical Abuse 

Physical abuse is the unnecessary infliction of any physical pain, suffering or injury by a person who has 

responsibility, charge, care or custody of, or who stands in a position of or expectation of trust to, a 

vulnerable person.  Physical abuse may also be perpetrated by on vulnerable adult upon another. 

 

Sexual Abuse 

Adult sexual abuse refers to the direct or indirect involvement of a vulnerable adult in sexual activity to 

which they are unwilling or unable to give informed consent, or which they do not fully comprehend, or 

which violates the social taboos of family roles, such as incest.  Sexual abuse may also be perpetrated by one 

vulnerable adult upon another. 

 

Any sexual activity that is not freely consenting is criminal.  Where there is an abuse of trust, sexual activity 

may appear to be with consent, but is unacceptable because of the differences in power and influence 

between the people involved. 

 

Sexual abuse includes the involvement in prostitution or ‘sex trafficking’ of vulnerable adults who do not 

have the capacity to consent. 

 

Emotional or Psychological Abuse 

Emotional or psychological abuse is the infliction of mental suffering by a person in a position or expectation 

of trust upon a vulnerable person.  Emotional / psychological abuse may also be perpetrated by one 

vulnerable adult upon another. 

 

Emotional and psychological abuse includes bullying, which is typically deliberate, hurtful behavior repeated 
Tudalen 113



 

 

over time, which can include physical abuse but often is verbal (name-calling and threats).  It can undermine 

self-confidence, may cause the victim to become more isolated and sometimes leads to self-harm. 

 

Emotional and psychological abuse, including bullying and harassment, can be very subtle, for example 

taking the form of ignoring or excluding the victim.  Such abuse may be direct, such as by not responding to 

the person, or indirect, such as by giving unfair preference to another person.  Emotional and psychological 

abuse may be cumulative, possibly building up over months or even years.  It may involve one or more 

person and may be part of the culture within any institution, organization or service. 

 

Another example of psychological abuse is when a vulnerable adult is incited, induced or exploited to 

commit a crime or abuse.  Examples of this include inciting to steal, to perform acts of violence and commit 

sexual crimes.  There have also been examples of vulnerable adults being exploited to commit acts of radical 

extremism. 

 

In determining whether emotional and psychological abuse has taken place, it is the impact on the 

vulnerable adult that counts.  Individual actions may not seem significant and may even be a one-off, but if 

they are part of a wider pattern of abuse experienced by the vulnerable adult the impact on them may be 

significant.  Therefore, the wider context in which action is experienced by the vulnerable adult must always 

be considered in determining whether or not abuse has occurred. 

Financial or Material Abuse 

Financial or material abuse is any theft or misuse of a person’s money, property or resources by a person in 

a position of, or expectation of, trust to a vulnerable person.  Common forms of financial abuse are misuse 

by others of a vulnerable adult’s state benefits or undue pressure to change wills.  Financial / material abuse 

may also be perpetrated by one vulnerable adult upon another. 

 

Neglect 

Neglect is the failure of any person for whom there is an expectation of trust and /or the responsibility, 

charge, care or custody of a vulnerable person to provide that degree of care which a reasonable person in a 

like position would provide. 

 

Neglect may be criminal or non-criminal.  It may also be as a result of intentional or non-intentional acts or 

omissions. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 114



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 
 

Code of Conduct and Safe Working Practices 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 17 

Tudalen 115



20 

 

 

 
CODE OF CONDUCT AND SAFE WORKING PRACTICES 

 

 

 

1. This code of conduct is a statement and is a description of the professional 
standards of practice that are required from all Council staff when undertaking 
their day-to-day duties. 

 
2. The code of conduct reflects current practice and it is expected that 

employees can identify the following standards as those which they aim to 
emulate daily. 

 

3. It is anticipated that this code of conduct provides a better understanding for 

members of the public using Council services of what is expected of the 

Council’s staff and the manner in which the employer supports its staff to 

undertake work effectively and in a manner respectful of the needs of individuals. 
 

4. Every member of staff should give a good example in terms of behaviour to 

ensure that children and adults are protected and safeguarded.  The following 

guidelines provide details of examples of good practice which must be used, 

along with specific codes of conduct (e.g. Denbighshire Council’s codes of 

conduct), which could be relevant to roles, activities or specific events. 

 
� You should always be open for the public to scrutinise you when working 

with children and adults and you should avoid situations where a Councillor, 
member of staff, volunteer or service provider is with a child or children or 
vulnerable adult alone without anyone else to observe him or her; 

� You should follow the required process for reporting incidents, e.g. an 
incident of health and safety importance; 

� Children and adults have a right to privacy, equality, respect and dignity 
and a safe and positive environment; 

� Councillors, staff, volunteers and contracted service providers must give 
priority to the welfare and safety of the child or adult before concerns for 
performance; 

� If a child or adult arrives at an activity or service exhibiting signs or symptoms 
which cause you concern, you must act appropriately and follow the 
procedures outlined in the policy; 

� Be aware of the need to ensure safe practices when meeting children and 

adults. 

 
YOU SHOULD 

 

� Work in accordance with this safeguarding policy.   If in doubt, contact 

the Designated Safeguarding Manager in your Department; 

� Work in an open environment (e.g. you should avoid private situations or 
those which cannot be observed and encourage an open environment, i.e. 
no secrets); 

� Treat every child and adult fairly with respect and dignity; 

� Put the welfare of each child and adult first; 

� Ensure a safe and appropriate distance with participants (e.g. it is not 
appropriate to have a close relationship with a child or an adult); 

� Create an equal relationship based on trust which empowers children and 
adults to share in the decision making process; 

� Get the most current information about training and safeguarding issues; 

� Be an excellent example – this includes not smoking, drinking alcohol or 

swearing in the company of children and adults; 

Tudalen 116



21 

 

 

� Make sure that photographic or filming equipment is used appropriately 

and a parent or carer of the participants has given their permission; 

� Keep a record in writing of any injury which is sustained, along with 

any treatment administered in accordance with Council policy; 

 
YOU SHOULD NOT 

 

� Touch or allow inappropriate touching in any way, use force or 
inappropriate language or make suggestive sexual comments; 

� Make a child cry as a means of controlling him / her, or use any 
behaviour control techniques not authorised by the Council’s policy and 
procedures; 

� Ignore allegations made by a child or adult.  All allegations or disclosures of 

abuse by a child       or vulnerable adult should be reported immediately to 

Social Services or the Police.  

� Undertake tasks of a personal nature for children or adults which they 
could do for themselves; 

� Invite or permit children or an adult to come to your home where they will 

be alone with you; 

� Enter areas that have been specifically set-aside for the other sex; 

� Use the internet, an electronic device or a phone to access child 

pornography sites; 

 
5. An employee who breaches any condition of the above code of conduct will 

face an investigation and could face disciplinary steps which could lead to 
dismissal and the possibility of a criminal investigation if there is evidence of illegal 
activity. 

 
6. Volunteer services that breach the code of conduct will be suspended 

immediately.  If there is evidence of illegal activity, the name of the volunteer will 
be drawn to the attention of the relevant authorities and he /she could face a 
criminal investigation. 

Tudalen 117



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 
 

Training on Safeguarding 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 20 

Tudalen 118



23 

 

 

 
TRAINING ON SAFEGUARDING 

 

 
1. STATEMENT OF COMMITMENT 

 
1.1.      Denbighshire Council is committed to ensuring that all staff who work with 

children,  young people and adults undertake appropriate General Safeguarding 
awareness training. 

 
1.2.   Every member of staff who works with children,  young people and adults should 

have information on safeguarding issues, in order to ensure that our  workforce: 
 

" is aware of the principles of safeguarding; 

" can identify the need to refer; 

" knows how to deal with individual cases. 
 
1.3.   Priority is given in the Staff, including Designated Managers, and Councillors 

training programmes to develop an understanding of the Council’s Policy and 
Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults. 

 
2. CONTENT OF THE TRAINING 

 
2.1.      Every member of staff working with children, young people and adults should have 

information on safeguarding issues.  The training will make workers aware of the 
dist inction between safeguarding and child/adult protection. It wi l l  
also make workers aware of the definition of the types of abuse of children, 
young people and adults,  the  main  signs  and  indicators,  staff  implications  and  
their  personal  responsibility  to safeguard children and adults, and the procedures 
to follow should any worker have any concerns. 

 
2.2. There will be a need to refer to: 

 
"     The All Wales Child Protection Guidelines; 

" The Wales Interim Policy & Procedures for the Protection of Vulnerable Adults 
from Abuse (November 2010) [commissioned by the four Adult Protection Fora]  

� Older People's Commissioner for Wales 'Protection of Older People in Wales: 
A Guide to the Law' (John Williams, April 2011) 

 "  The function of the Conwy & Denbighshire Local Safeguarding Children Board. 

 
 
3. LEARNING OBJECTIVES 

 
By receiving the training, attendees will be able to: 

 
" Challenge  myths  and  stereotypes  associated  with  child and adult  

abuse  and  the  process  of safeguarding children and adults; 

" Ensure that the child’s and adult’s voices and rights are the principal      
consideration. 

 
Attendees will also: 

 
Legislation, policies and procedures: 

 
" Be aware of the legislation and the local and national policies which relate to 

safeguarding; 
Tudalen 119



24 

 

 

" Understand local and institutional policies and procedures which relate to 
safeguarding individuals who receive care, and how these are to be 
implemented in their work. 

 
Understand and identify different types of abuse: 

 
" Be able to note the main categories for abuse and neglect, and be able to 

identify the usual signs and symptoms associated with these; 

" Understand that individuals have the right to be safeguarded from abuse and 
neglect; 

" Understand that they need to ensure that their own actions or behaviour do 
not have a harmful effect on the individual in their care; 

 
Understand how to respond to suspicions of abuse or 
neglect: 

 
" Understand that they must report at once any suspicions of abuse or 

neglect, and know how and when they should inform the appropriate 
individual of these; 

" Know how important it is to continue to voice concerns if they are not 
addressed after they have been reported, and  how to do this; 

Understand the limitations of confidentiality and when to 
share information. 

 
4. PROVIDING THE TRAINING 

 
4.1. (It is suggested that :-) The Care Council for Wales approved All Wales 

Safeguarding Awareness Training (known formerly as Adult & Child Protection 
Awareness Training) will be provided: 
"           As part of the Induction programme - as a minimum staff will be made 

aware of their responsibilities in respect of safeguarding at Corporate, Service 
and Team level Induction. (There will be potential for access  to  e -  
l ea rn ing  through the Learning Hub on the Intranet if DCC renew the 
license). 

"         Staff who have direct / indirect contact with children or adults who have not 
received the A d u l t  &  C h i l d  P r o t e c t i o n  Aw a r e n e s s  training will 
need to undertake the All Wales Safeguarding Awareness Training; 

"  Staff will need to undertake Safeguarding refresher training on the 
appropriate level every three years [note that some staff will require this 
training at more frequent intervals than three years]. 

 
Note:  It is intended in the future to inc lude a l l  remain ing s taf f  i .e .  
those who do not  have d i rect  /  ind i rect  contact  w i th  adul ts  or 
ch i ldren in  the awareness t ra in ing. Currently the Corporate Adult and Child 
Protection Awareness half day course is targeted at staff who come into contact 
with Adults or Children as part of their daily responsibilities and duties . 

 
5. TARGETING THE TRAINING 

 
" Every member of staff who has direct/indirect contact with children and 

adults is required to undertake the All Wales Safeguarding Awareness 
Training on safeguarding children and adults. 

"          The training is compulsory and should be attended within 12 months of   
starting in post. 

" All posts requiring General Safeguarding awareness training, and who start 
in those posts for the first time in the Council’s employment, will be 
targeted from April 2014 onwards. 

" Ex i s t i ng  staff members w i l l  be  i den t i f i ed  who have not received Tudalen 120



25 

 

 

the appropriate training, in order to target and introduce the new training / 
programme. 

" As a priority, Designated Managers in each Service will receive the 
appropriate  Safeguarding Training outlining their roles and responsibilities 
as outlined in the Denbighshire Safeguarding Policy & Guidance. 

 
6. METHOD OF DELIVERING THE TRAINING 
 

6.1 Corporate / Departmental Induction  
 
As part of their initial Induction Training staff to be informed of their 
responsibilities to protect children, young people and adults in line with 
the Denbighshire Policy and Guidance – Safeguarding Children & 
Adults.  
 
6.2 All Wales Safeguarding Awareness ½ day Training  
 
For all staff, except Designated Managers, who have direct / indirect 
contact with children and adults. 
 
Training to be delivered by DCC Workforce Development staff (or a 
training provider) at service area venues as identified by the 
Designated Managers. 
 
Learning Outcomes: 
 
This training will give the opportunity for participants to: 

• Know their own role in relation to safeguarding adults and 
children and young people from harm, abuse and neglect 

• Understand how individuals are protected from harm, abuse 
and neglect 

• Know how to recognise different types of harm, abuse and 
neglect 

• Understand what actions to take if they have concerns about 
abuse of a child or adult 

 
6.3 Designated Manager Training 
 
 1 day Training to be delivered by DCC Workforce Development staff 
(or a training provider) 
 
Learning Outcomes; 
 
This training will give the opportunity for participants to: 

• Know their own role in relation to safeguarding adults and 
children and young people from harm, abuse and neglect 

• Understand how individuals are protected from harm, abuse 
and neglect 

• Know how to recognise different types of harm, abuse and 
neglect 

• Understand what actions to take if they have concerns about 
abuse of a child or adult 

• Understand their role in acting as a key source of advice and 
support for other staff in the Service on all safeguarding issues; 

• Become familiar with Denbighshire Council’s Policy and Tudalen 121



26 

 

 

Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and Adults along with the 
All Wales Child Protection Procedures and the Policy & 
Procedure for the Protection of Vulnerable Adults; 

• Ensure that there are effective internal procedures to deal with 
concerns within the Service by working closely with Social 
Services to achieve this; 

• Understand their role in representing the Service on the 
Council’s Corporate Panel for Safeguarding Children and 
Adults; 

• Understand their role in ensuring that the process of complying 
with this Policy and Guidelines is monitored regularly to the 
Corporate Safeguarding Panel 

 
 
6.4 Refresher Training for all staff 
 
Content, frequency and method of delivery of refresher training will 
need to be agreed. 
 

7. MEASURING THE IMPACT OF THE TRAINING 
 

7.1. The Council’s Services will develop a ‘Measuring Impact Programme’ using the DCC 
Corporate Evaluation methodology. NB. This will need resourcing from within each 
service area by admin support to the Designated Manager. 

 

7.2. Impact can also be measured through: 
 

" Evaluation Forms for the training – completed by attendees; 

" The Council’s Procedure i.e.  Staff Appraisal Scheme / Supervision Policy. 
 
7.3. The impact will be reviewed by the Corporate Panel, and changes recommended 

to the training in light of the experience/feedback of the managers/attendees of the 
training if required. 

 
8. TIMETABLE 

 

" Include as part of Corporate Induction from September 2013 

" Adult & Child Protection Awareness training to recommence in October 2013 
to be replaced by the All Wales Safeguarding Awareness Training 
programme from February 2014 or earlier once fully approved by the Care 
Council for Wales. - Frequency tbc – but move to service areas training. 

" Designated Manager training to take place January 2013 
"     Safeguarding training programme will be included in the 2014-15   
        development programme for Elected Members. (sessions already held for  
           new members in 2013) 
 

8.1 The  aim  of  the  new  procedure  is  to  reconcile  arrangements  for  the  General  
Safeguarding awareness training across the Council. 

 
8.2      More specialized training for particular occupational groups, and multi-agency 

training under the Safeguarding Boards for Children/Adults, already takes place and 
will continue. 

 

Tudalen 122



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 4 
Safe Recruitment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 25 

Tudalen 123



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and 
Adults – Draft Version 

28 

 

 

 
 
SAFE RECRUITMENT 
 

Ensuring that the Council only employs people who are suitable is a key activity in safeguarding the 
public. Carefully checking the credentials of potential employees is critical. 
 
Denbighshire has detailed policies and procedures relating to Safe Recruitment, for example covering 
 

- Disclosure of Offences and Criminal Records checks 
- Applicants with previous convictions 
- Checking the past employment histories of specific groups 

of employees 
- Seeking and giving references 
- interviewing 

 
These policies and procedures are available on the intranet at 
http://intranet-ad/sorce/apps/sorce_doc_manager/Actions/view_doc.aspx?docid=1218&revid=1234 
and all recruiting managers must be familiar with them. They must also ensure required records are 
maintained. Regular reports on indicators of Safe Recruitment will be generated and reported to the 
Corporate Safeguarding Panel. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 124



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 5 
 

Good Practice Guidelines for 

Councillors: Safe Contact with Children 

and Vulnerable Adults 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 27 

Tudalen 125



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

29 

 

 

 

 

GOOD PRACTICE GUIDELINES FOR COUNCILLORS 
- SAFE CONTACT WITH CHILDREN AND VULNERABLE ADULTS 

 

 

 

1. These guidelines are a statement and description of the standards of conduct 

expected from all members of the Council when having contact with children or 

vulnerable adults* in their office as a Councillor. 
 

2. The guidelines are supplementary to, and do not replace, the Members’ Code 

of Conduct. The Members Code of Conduct remains relevant whenever a 

member acts in his/her role as elected member, and also at any time in relation to 

not bringing the office or the Council into disrepute. 
 

3. Some of the requirements of the Code are: 

 
� To show respect to others and be mindful of them; 

� To address equal opportunity for everyone, regardless of their gender, 
race, disability, sexual orientation, age or religion; 

� Not to disclose confidential information without consent; 

� Not to behave in a manner which would bring your office or the Council into 

disrepute; 

� To report any behaviour likely to be criminal by another member or 
employee to the appropriate authority; 

� Not to use your position inappropriately to cause someone advantage or 

disadvantage. 

 
4. Members may come into contact with children and vulnerable adults through 

their position on a committee or working group, or through their role as local 

member. They may also come into contact with them when representing the 

Council on external bodies or taking part in events arranged by the Council. 

Every member of the Council has a corporate parent responsibility for looked after 

children, and every member also has a responsibility to follow good practice for 

safeguarding children and vulnerable adults. 
 
5. The aim of these guidelines is to reflect current practice and it is expected that 

members identify the following standards as those which they aim to reach daily. 
 
6. It is expected that these guidelines give a better understanding to members of 

the public of what is expected by councillors when they come into contact with 
them. 

 
7. Every councillor should give a good example in terms of behaviour to ensure 

that children and vulnerable adults are protected and safeguarded. The 
guidelines below give details of examples of good practice that must be used. 

 

YOU SHOULD 
 

� Become familiar with the Council’s safeguarding policies and guidelines 
and the current procedures for reporting incidents etc.; 

� Attend training on safeguarding children and vulnerable adults; 

� Follow a recognised process for reporting incidents, e.g. an incident of 
health and safety importance; 

� Be open to public scrutiny at all times when working with children and 
young people, and try and avoid situations where you are alone with a 
child or children or vulnerable adult, with nobody to observe you; 

� Respect children and adults’ right to privacy, equality, respect and dignity Tudalen 126



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

29 

 

 

and a safe and positive environment; 

� Place the child or adult’s welfare and safety above other considerations; 

� Create an equal relationship based on trust which empowers children and 

adults to share in the decision-making process; 

� Be an excellent example for children and vulnerable adults. 
 

YOU SHOULD NOT 
 

� Touch or allow inappropriate touching in any way, use force or 
inappropriate language or make suggestive sexual comments; 

� Ignore allegations made by a child or vulnerable adult; all allegations or 

disclosures of abuse by a child  or vulnerable adult should be reported 

immediately to Social Services or the Police. 

� Invite or allow children or a vulnerable adult to come to your home where 
they will be alone with you; 

� Enter areas in the Council’s buildings that have been specifically allocated 
for the opposite sex; 

� Use the internet, electronic device or phone to access child pornography 

sites; 

� Spread confidential information concerning individual cases to anyone 
unless through recognised reporting procedures. 

 
 

 

 

*  A vulnerable  adult  is  a  person  over  18 years  of  age  who  cannot  look  after 

himself/herself,  or protect himself/herself 

Tudalen 127



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 6 
 

Referral Procedure 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 30 

Tudalen 128



 

 

 

Referral Procedure 
 
 
 
 
Recognition and Referral 

Suspicion about abuse may take the form of ‘concerns’ rather than ‘known facts’.  Safeguarding concerns 

can arise in many different contexts, including when they are already known to the social services. Concerns 

can and should be shared with social services through a referral, using the standard referral form available 

on the Denbighshire website.  All referrals should be sent to the firstcontactteam@denbighshire.gov.uk. 

 

While concerns will not necessarily trigger an investigation, they help to build up a picture, along with 

concerns from other sources, which may indicate that they may be suffering harm. 

 

In cases of alleged or suspected abuse by a professional or individual employee, the action should also be 

guided by the procedures contained in Part 1V of the All Wales Child Protection Procedures, the wales 

Interim Policy and Procedures and Denbighshire’s own procedures on professional abuse and whistle 

blowing (See Appendix 7). 

 

Making the referral 

Referrals should be made to social services as soon as a problem, suspicion or concern about a child 

becomes apparent, and certainly within 24 hours.  Outside office hours, referrals should be made to the 

social services emergency duty service or the police.  All telephone referrals or referrals made in person 

should be confirmed in writing within two working days, preferably using the standard referral form.  The 

first contact officer/duty social worker taking the referral should be given as much of the following 

information as possible by the referrer: 

 

� The nature of the concerns; 

� How and why those concerns have arisen; 

� The full name, address and date of birth (or age) of the child / adult of concern; 

� The names, addresses and dates of birth/ages of family members, along with any other names which 

they use or are known by; 

� The names and relationship of all those with parental responsibility / guardian or carer roles, where 

known, should be recorded; 

� The name, address & date of birth of parent’s partner; 

� The name, address and date of birth of any other adults living in the household; 

� The names of other professionals involved with the family, including for example the name of the 

child’s school and GP; 

� Any information you have on the child’s developmental needs / adults care needs and his/her 

parents or caregivers ability to respond to these needs within the context of the wider family and 

environment; 

� Any information affecting the safety of staff: 

� In the case of vulnerable adults the capacity and risks of the individual concerned need to be 

considered 

31 

Tudalen 129



 

 

 

Individual employees, professionals and independent contractors, should be aware that they cannot remain 

anonymous when making a referral.  However, members of the public may remain anonymous, if they wish 

to. 

 

The individual employee or professional making the referral may be asked to do some or all of the following 

tasks, and should be prepared and willing to do them:_ 

 

� Contribute to a strategy discussion or strategy meeting; 

� Assist in the child protection section 47 enquiries / POVA Adult Investigation; 

� Attend the child protection / adult protection conference; 

� Provide a written report for the conference; 

� Contribute to the assessments. 

 

It is the responsibility of individual employees and professionals to ensure that their child protection 

concerns are taken seriously and followed through.  Each individual employee and professional is 

accountable for his or her own role in the protection process, and if an individual employee or professional 

remains concerned they should re-refer and/or bring the matter to the immediate attention of the children 

or adults senior manager or in their absence the person deputising for their function with responsibility for 

protection.  In all such situations, the individual employee or Professional’s own line manager and named 

professional for child protection should be informed. 

Denbighshire Social Services 

During office hours* tel. 01824 712 900 

Out-of-hours tel. 0845 053 3116 

*Office hours 8.30am to 5.00pm Mon- Thu, 8.30am to 4.30pm Fri. 

Police tel. 0845 607 1002 

If you need Police assistance in an EMERGENCY, you should always dial 999 

NSPCC tel. 0808 800 5000. 

You do not need to know everything about the child / adult of concern and what is happening - just to be 

worried, or feel that everything is not right. 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       32 

Tudalen 130



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 7 
 

Dealing with Allegations of Professional Abuse 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        33
Tudalen 131



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

 

 

Dealing with Allegations of Professional Abuse 
 

 

Managing Allegations against Workers, Carers and Volunteers who have Contact with Children 

Guidance and good practice 

Final version 

Date of Policy June 2013 

Author of 

Document 

Sue Trehearn 

Adapted from 

Flintshire’s policy  

Revised by Sue Trehearn 

Date of review June 2014 

Contents 

1. Introduction  

2. Threshold  

3. Roles and Responsibilities  

4.  General Considerations in Response to Allegations and Concerns of Abuse  

5.  Initial Response to an Allegations or Concern  

6.  Strategy Meeting  

7.  Conduct of Section 47 Enquiry  

8.  Second and Subsequent Strategy Meeting  

9.  Concluding Strategy Meeting  

10. Substantiated Concerns  

11. Informing the Independent Safeguarding Authority  

12. Unsubstantiated Allegations  

13. Unfounded or False Allegations  

14. Allegations Against Staff in Their Personal Lives  

15. Disciplinary Process  

16. Sharing Information for Disciplinary Purposes 

      34 Tudalen 132



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

1. Introduction 

 

Children / vulnerable adults can be subjected to abuse by those who work with them in any and 

every setting.  All allegations of abuse or maltreatment of children / vulnerable adults by a 

professional, staff member, foster carer or volunteer must therefore be taken seriously and 

treated in accordance with agreed procedures.  Local Safeguarding Children Boards  and Local 

Adult Protection Committees have responsibility for ensuring that there are effective inter-

agency procedures in place for dealing with allegations against people who have contact with 

children / vulnerable adults and for monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of those 

procedures. 

These procedures must be followed by all organisations providing services for children / 

vulnerable adults and staff or volunteers who work with or care for children / vulnerable adults.  

Any organisations who commission services for children / vulnerable adults must ensure that 

their arrangements with those services are consistent with the requirements in this procedure.  

These procedures are based on the framework for dealing with allegations of abuse made 

against a person who works with children in Working Together to Safeguard Children under the 

Children Act 2004 (Welsh Assembly Government, 2006) and the All Wales Child Protection 

Procedures (2008) and more recent guidance to managing allegations against foster carers.  In 

relation to adults the procedures are based on the framework for dealing with allegations of 

abuse against vulnerable adults contained within the Wales Interim Policy and Procedure for the 

Protection of Vulnerable Adults from Abuse (Nov 2010). 

Compliance with these procedures will help to ensure that allegations of abuse are dealt with 

expeditiously; consistent with a thorough and fair process and Conwy and Denbighshire’s 

Safeguarding Board will establish systems and processes to monitor and evaluate the 

effectiveness of these procedures. 

2. Threshold 

These procedures should be applied when there are concerns that any person who works with 

children / vulnerable adults, either in a paid or unpaid capacity i.e. any employee, foster carer, 

clergy, childminder or volunteer, where the adult is in a position of trust in relation to the child 

and family, has: 

• Behaved in a way that has harmed a child / vulnerable adult, or may have harmed a child 

/ vulnerable adult 

• Possibly committed a criminal offence against or related to a child / vulnerable adult 

• Behaved towards a child or children / vulnerable adult in a way that indicates s/he is 

unsuitable to work with children / vulnerable adults.  

It can be very difficult to determine what may fall into ‘unsuitable to work with children / 

vulnerable adults’ although all employers have a responsibility to set personal and professional 

boundaries for staff and to be explicit about what behaviours are unacceptable and will impact 

on their employment.  What constitutes unsuitability will vary depending upon the context and 

nature of the work undertaken although as a starting point, it is useful to consider whether the  

       35 Tudalen 133



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

alleged behaviour has: 

• harmed or may have harmed a child / vulnerable adult 

• contravenes or continues to contravene any safe practice guidance given by their 

organisation or regulatory body 

• exploits or abuses their position of power 

• acts in an irresponsible manner which any reasonable person would find alarming or 

questionable 

• demonstrates a failure to understand or appreciate how his/her own actions or those of 

others could adversely impact upon the safety and wellbeing of a child or young person / 

vulnerable adult 

• demonstrates an inability to make sound professional judgements which safeguard the 

welfare of children / vulnerable adults 

• fails to understand or recognise the need for clear personal and professional boundaries 

in their work 

• behaves in a way in his/her personal life which could put children / vulnerable adults at 

risk of harm 

• has been the subject of a criminal investigation that could impact on the safety of 

children / vulnerable adults 

• has been subject to enquiries under local protection procedures  

• behaved in a way which undermines the trust and confidence placed in them by their 

employer 

These behaviours should be considered within the context of the four categories of abuse i.e. 

Physical Abuse, Sexual Abuse, Financial Abuse, Emotional Abuse and Neglect.  These include 

concerns relating to inappropriate relationships between members of staff and children / young 

people / vulnerable adults. 

Restraints in schools often come up as an ‘allegation’ when teachers do not ring parents to 

explain that there has been a restraint in school that day.  Careful unpicking of such allegations 

is indicated sooner rather than later and attention should be paid to the current restraint 

guidance permitted in different professional settings before reaching a decision on the most 

appropriate way forward. 

3. Roles and Responsibilities 

Conwy and Denbighshire Safeguarding Children Board / Denbighshire Adult Protection Committee  

       36 

Tudalen 134



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

 

will identify a named Senior Officer in each local authority with overall responsibility for: 

• Ensuring that the organisation deals with allegations in accordance with these procedures 

• Resolving any inter-agency issues 

• Liaising with the LSCB / DAPC on the subject 

 

 Local authorities should designate an officer to: 

 

• Be involved in the management and oversight of individual cases 

• Provide advice and guidance to employers and voluntary organisations 

• Liaise with Police and other agencies 

• Monitor the progress of cases to ensure that they are dealt with as quickly as possible 

consistent with a thorough and fair process 

 

Within Denbighshire this will ordinarily be the Service Manager for Safeguarding in Children’s 

Services and Specialist Services Service Manager in Adult Services 

 

 Employers should identify: 

 

• A Designated Senior Manager to whom allegations or concerns should be reported 

• A deputy to whom reports should be made in the absence of the Designated Senior 

Manager or where that person is the subject of the allegation or concern 

 

The Detective Inspector in the Public Protection Unit (PPU) will: 

 

• Have strategic oversight of the local police arrangements for managing allegations against 

staff and volunteers 

• Liaise with the LSCB / DAPC on the issue 

• Ensure compliance 

 

Each PPU should designate a Detective Sergeant/s to: 

 

• Liaise with the Safeguarding Manager in Social Care  

• Take part in Strategy Discussion/Meetings  

• Review the progress of cases in which there is a Police involvement  

• Undertake an investigation  

• Share information as appropriate, on completion of an investigation or related 

prosecution 

 

4. General Considerations in Response to Allegations and Concerns of Abuse  

 

Confidentiality 

Every effort should be made to maintain confidentiality and guard against publicity while an 

      37  
Tudalen 135



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

 

allegation is being investigated or considered.  Apart from keeping the child, vulnerable adult, 

parents, carers / representatives and accused person up to date with progress of the case, 

information should be restricted to those who have a need to know in order to protect and 

facilitate enquiries, and manage related disciplinary or suitability processes.  The Police should 

not provide identifying information to the press or media, unless and until a person is charged, 

except in exceptional circumstances e.g. an appeal to trace a suspect.  In such cases, the reasons 

should be documented and partner agencies consulted beforehand. 

 

Support 

The organisation together with Children's or Adult Social Care and/or the Police, where they are 

involved, should consider the impact on the child / vulnerable adult concerned, ensure the child 

/ vulnerable adults immediate safety or provide support as appropriate.  Liaison between the 

agencies should take place in order to ensure that the child's needs are addressed.  The member 

of staff should:  

 

• Be treated fairly and honestly and helped to understand the concerns expressed and 

processes involved  

• Be kept informed of the progress and outcome of any investigation.  The person 

responsible for this will be identified at the first Strategy Meeting  

• If suspended, be advised to contact their union representative and be kept up to date 

about events in the workplace.  Human Resources should be consulted at the earliest 

opportunity in order that appropriate support can be provided via the organisation's 

occupational health or employee welfare arrangements. 

 

Suspension 

Suspension is a neutral act and it should not be automatic.  There could be an option for 

redeployment to a post where there would be no contact with children / vulnerable adult.  

Suspension should be considered in any case where:  

 

• There is cause to suspect a child is at risk of Significant Harm, or 

• The allegation warrants investigation by the Police, or  

• The allegation is so serious that it might be grounds for dismissal  

 

The possible risks to children / vulnerable adults should be evaluated and managed in respect of 

relevant others in the accused member of staff's home, work or community life.  If a Strategy 

Meeting is to be held, (see Section 6 - Strategy Meeting) or if Children's / Adult’s Social Care or 

the Police are to make enquiries, the Safeguarding Manager should canvass their views on 

suspension and inform the employer.  Only the employer, however, has the power to suspend an 

accused employee and they cannot be required to do so by a local authority or police.  If a 

suspended person is to return to work, the employer should consider what help and support 

might be appropriate e.g. a phased return to work and/or provision of a mentor, and also how 

best to manage the member of staff's contact with the people concerned, if still in the 

workplace. 

 

      38 Tudalen 136



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

        

Resignations and Compromise Agreements 

        

Every effort should be made to reach a conclusion in all cases even if:  

 

• The individual refuses to cooperate, having been given a full opportunity to answer the 

allegation and make representations  

• It may not be possible to apply any disciplinary sanctions if a person's period of notice 

expires before the process is complete  

 

'Compromise agreements' should not be used i.e. where a member of staff agrees to resign 

provided that disciplinary action is not taken and that a future reference is agreed. 

 

        Organised Abuse 

 Investigators should be alert to signs of organised or widespread abuse and/or the involvement 

of other perpetrators or institutions.  They should consider whether the matter should be dealt 

with in accordance with the guidance in Safeguarding Children: Working Together Under the 

Children Act 2004 (Sec 9.22 – 9.25) and / or the Wales Interim Policy and Procedure for the 

Protection of Vulnerable Adults from Abuse (Nov 2010) which, if applicable, will take priority.  

 

      Whistle-Blowing 

       All organisations must ensure they have a robust whistle blowing policy that all workers, carers 

and volunteers are aware of.  They should feel confident to voice concerns about the attitude or 

actions of colleagues.  If a worker, carer or volunteer believes that a reported allegation or 

concern is not being dealt with appropriately by their organisation, s/he should report the 

matter to the Safeguarding Manager. 

 

Timescales 

       It is in everyone's interest for cases to be dealt with expeditiously, fairly and thoroughly and for 

unnecessary delays to be avoided.  The target timescales provided in these procedures are 

realistic in most cases, but some cases will take longer because of their specific nature, or 

complexity.  Where this is the case, the timescales for progression should be recorded, progress 

regularly reviewed and the child or young person / vulnerable adult and the worker, carer or 

volunteer kept informed. 

 

For fostering situations there may be a parallel need to review carers approval at the next 

available fostering panel. 

 

5. Initial Response to an Allegation or Concern 

An allegation against or concerns about a worker, carer or volunteer may arise from a number of 

sources e.g. a report from a child, a concern raised by another adult in the organisation, a 

complaint by a parent or carer, or information arising from a disciplinary hearing. 

The member of staff who has received the allegation or who has a concern about a colleague 

must immediately report this to his/her Designated Senior Manager or deputy in his/her absence 

     39 Tudalen 137



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

or where the Designated Senior Manager is the subject of the allegation (see section 3). 

The member of staff should:  

• If the allegation has come from a child, reassure the child that s/he was right to report it  

• Make a written record of the information (where possible in the child/adult's own 

words), including the time, date and place of incident(s), persons present and what was 

said  

• Sign and date the written record and pass immediately to the Designated Senior Manager  

 

The member of staff should not: 

• Investigate or ask leading questions if seeking clarification 

• Make assumptions or offer alternative explanations  

• Promise confidentiality, but give assurance that the Information will be shared on a 'need 

to know' basis only so that the matter can be investigated in order to keep other children 

/ vulnerable adults safe. 

 

Initial Action by the Designated Senior Manager 

When informed of a concern or allegation, the Designated Senior Manager (see section 3) should 

not investigate the matter or interview the member of staff, child / vulnerable adult concerned 

or potential witnesses. He/she should:  

• Obtain written details of the concern/allegation, signed and dated by the person 

receiving the allegation (not the child/adult making the allegation)  

• Countersign and date the written details  

• Record any information about times, dates and location of incident(s) and names of any 

potential witnesses  

• Record discussions about the child / vulnerable adult and/or member of staff, any 

decisions made, and the reasons for those decisions  

• If the child  / vulnerable adult has sustained an injury, consider the need to have her/him 

medically examined. In this instance parent/carer must be notified and reason given as to 

why medical required.  

 

If the Designated Senior Manager decides that no further action is required the reason for that 

decision must be recorded and the written record sent to the Safeguarding Manager. 

If the allegation meets the criteria in section 2, the Designated Senior Manager should report it 

to the Intake and Assessment Team within 1 working day.  Referral should not be delayed in 

order to gather information and a failure to report an allegation or concern in accordance with 

these procedures is a potential disciplinary matter.  Where a Designated Senior Manager is 

unsure about how to proceed or cannot determine whether the criteria are met, there should be 

consultation with the Service Manager for Safeguarding.  In their absence a member of the Social 

Care Senior Management Team should be contacted.  The referral in respect of children who  

      40 Tudalen 138



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

may be at risk of significant harm in association with the referral will be dealt with in compliance 

with Section 3 of the All Wales Child Protection Procedures / Wales Interim Policy and Procedure for 

the Protection of Vulnerable Adults from Abuse (Nov 2010).  The contact should be made with the 

Duty Manager of the Intake and Assessment Team in Social Service for Children or Adults as 

relevant. 

If an allegation requires immediate attention, but is received outside normal office hours, the 

Designated Senior Managers should consult the Emergency Duty Team or local Police and inform 

the Safeguarding Manager as soon as possible.  

If a Police officer receives an allegation, s/he should, without delay, report it to the Designated 

Detective Sergeant on the FPU (see section 3).  The Detective Sergeant should then immediately 

inform the Safeguarding Manager and a preliminary strategy discussion undertaken to ensure 

that immediate safeguards are in place, whether the referral falls within this procedure and 

whether any immediate briefings to management are required.  

Any allegation made to Children's or Adult’s Social Services should be immediately reported to 

the Safeguarding Manager or equivalent. 

Any allegation or concern received by a Regulatory Authority must be reported to the 

Safeguarding Manager within 1 working day.  Similarly the Safeguarding Manager should be 

contacted within 1 working day about any cause for concern that a Regulatory Authority may 

identify while carrying out its duties. 

Initial Consideration by the Designated Senior Manager and the Local Authority Designated 

Officer (Safeguarding Manager) 

There are up to 3 strands in the consideration of an allegation:  

• A police investigation of a possible criminal offence  

• Social Services for Children / Adult enquiries and/or assessment about whether a child / 

vulnerable adult is in need of protection or services  

• Consideration by an employer of disciplinary action  

The Safeguarding Manager and Designated Senior Manager should consider first whether further 

details are needed and whether there is evidence or information that establishes that the 

allegation is false or unfounded.  Care should be taken to ensure that the child / vulnerable adult 

is not confused as to dates, times, locations or identity of the member of staff. 

If the allegation is not demonstrably false and meets the criteria as in section 2, the Safeguarding 

Manager, in consultation with the referrer, should consider the need for a Strategy Meeting.  

Reasons for not convening a Strategy Meeting should be recorded.  

The Designated Senior Manager and the Safeguarding Manager should agree how and when the 

member of staff is informed of the allegation.  Consideration must be given to informing the 

parent/carer at the earliest opportunity.  The Safeguarding Manager and Designated Senior 

Manager should agree what information they are given to ensure that the disciplinary or 

investigative processes are not impeded. 

      41 
Tudalen 139



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

The Police must be consulted about any case in which a criminal offence may have been 

committed.  If the threshold for Significant Harm is not reached, but a Police investigation might 

be needed, the Safeguarding Manager should immediately inform the police and consider the 

need for a Strategy Discussion/Meeting. 

The Regulatory Authority should be informed of any allegation or concern made against a 

member of staff in any day care establishment for children under 8, a registered childminder, a 

foster carer, prospective adopter, or member of staff in a residential care facility.  They should 

also be invited to take part in any subsequent Strategy Discussion/Meeting. 

In circumstances where there remains disagreement between the referring agency and the 

Safeguarding Manager the case should be referred immediately to the Head of Social Services for 

Children for a decision or if an adult Head of Adult and Business Services.  

6. Strategy Meeting 

If the criteria are met for further investigation, a Strategy Meeting must be arranged within 48 

hours where at all possible, given capacity issues for chairs and attendees.  The reason for delays 

should be clearly recorded in the minutes.  The Strategy Meeting will be convened by the 

Safeguarding Unit and chaired by the Safeguarding Manager or in their absence, a senior 

manager from Children’s / Adult’s Social Care.  A record will be made of the meeting and 

decisions will be made available to the child/parents, vulnerable adult / representative and the 

alleged perpetrator at the conclusion of the investigation.  This information will also be shared 

with regulating bodies.  The following should be considered to attend the Strategy Meeting: 

• Safeguarding Manager (Chair) 

• Service Manager for Intake and Assessment and or designated investigating officer 

• Relevant social worker and his/her manager (if an open case) 

• Detective sergeant (FPU)  

• Designated Senior Manager for the employer concerned 

• Senior Nurse (Child / Adult Protection) 

• Education representative 

• Human Resources representative 

• Legal adviser where appropriate 

• Senior representative of the employment agency, church or voluntary organisation 

if applicable 

• Manager and family placement worker from the fostering service provider (including 

independent foster services) when an allegation is made against a foster carer  

• Manager from the residential service when an allegation is made against a residential 

worker 

• A representative of the Regulatory Authority where applicable 

• Consultant  Paediatrician 

• Where a child / adult is placed or resident in the area of another authority, 

representative(s) of relevant agencies in that area 

• Complaints Officer if the concern has arisen from a complaint 

• Children and Family Court Advisory and Support Service when involved (CAFCASS)  

42 

 
Tudalen 140



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

• Health representative 

• A representative from the Social Services for Adults Safeguarding Unit (where 

appropriate) 

• CSSIW (where the concern is about a foster carer, childminder or care provider) 

The representative must be at a level of sufficient authority to speak on behalf of their 

organization and ensure that the organisation acts in accordance with the recommendations of 

the meeting. 

Where the representative of an organisation is implicated through an accusation of collusion or 

failure to respond to previous complaints, it is inappropriate for him/her to attend the Strategy 

Meeting. 

The Strategy Meeting must: 

• Decide whether there should be a Section 47 Enquiry and/or Police investigation and 

consider the implications 

• Consider the current allegation in the context of any previous allegations or concerns  

• Where appropriate, take account of any entitlement by staff to use reasonable force to 

control or restrain children, e.g.  Section 550a Education Act 1996 in respect of teachers 

and authorized staff 

• Consider whether a complex abuse investigation is applicable  

• Plan enquiries if needed, allocate tasks and set time-scales  

• Decide what information can be shared, with whom, when and how. 

• Consider whether there is a need to convene an initial child / adult protection conference 

if there are concerns about the Professional’s behaviour towards their own children. 

 

 The Strategy Meeting must also: 

• Ascertain whether the member of staff has contact with children / vulnerable adults 

in any other setting. 

• Ensure that arrangements are made to protect the child / children / adult involved and 

any other children / vulnerable adults affected, including taking emergency action 

where needed 

• Examine whether relevant information that may exist in parallel processes is required 

and relevant–such as a finding of fact within care proceedings. 

• Ensure that all children / vulnerable adults who may be affected, directly or 

indirectly, are identified and considered and provided with support. This would 

include children / vulnerable adults within the member of staff's own family. 

• Consider what support should be provided to the member of staff and others who 

may be affected. Also consider by whom and how this should be provided. 

• Ensure that investigations are sufficiently independent  

• Make recommendations where appropriate regarding suspension, or alternatives to 

suspension 

• Identify a lead contact Manager within each agency who will be responsible for co-

ordinating the investigation. 

43 Tudalen 141



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

• Agree timescales for reviewing investigations and monitoring progress  

• Consider issues for the attention of senior management e.g. media interest, 

        resource implications 

• Consider reports for consideration of barring 

• Consider notifying the Chief Executive/Senior Officer of the employing 

agency  

• Consider whether any parallel disciplinary process can take place and 

agree protocols for sharing information 

• Consider whether Children / Adult Safeguarding Procedures need to be followed.   

• Consider what steps need to be taken in relation to establishments where it is felt that 

abuse has pervaded the whole staffing group with the involvement and collusion of 

managers. 

• Where appropriate consider the wider implications for the organisation e.g .policy and 

procedures and staff training deficits. 

All Strategy Meetings should be recorded and minutes circulated within 5 working days of the 

Strategy Meeting. 

When requests for copies of minutes from Part 4 meetings are made by the subject of the 

meeting advice should be sought from the legal department in all cases as decisions need to 

be made on a case by case basis and clearly recorded. 

7. Conduct of Enquiry 

Once a decision has been made at the first Strategy Meeting, to initiate an enquiry, the member 

of staff must be contacted and told the nature of the allegation, how the enquiries will be 

conducted and his/her co-operation sought ,unless this prejudices any aspect of the 

investigation, e.g. criminal enquiries. The meeting will agree how this will be done. 

The enquiry should take into account any signs or patterns, which could suggest the abuse may 

be more widespread than it appears and whether it involves other perpetrators or institutions. 

During the course of the enquiries, the Strategy Meeting Chair must be provided with regular 

progress reports from the investigating officers on a minimum 4 weekly basis. 

Any investigation must be conducted in accordance with the All Wales Child Protection 

Procedures. 

If the child, young person or vulnerable adult needs to be formally interviewed, the interview 

must take place in accordance with the Joint Children's Social Care and Police Protocol on 

Investigating Child Abuse involving only trained staff and video equipment or the adult 

equivalent. 

If a Police investigation is to be conducted, the Police should set a date for reviewing its progress 

and consulting the Crown Prosecution Service about continuing or closing the investigation or  

      44 

Tudalen 142



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

charging the individual.  Wherever possible, this should be no later than 4 weeks after the 

Strategy Meeting. 

The evidence gathered in the investigation, including written material, audio or video recordings 

with the child and other relevant people, may be referred to in all strands of the investigation 

(Section 47 Enquiry, criminal investigation, complaint investigation and disciplinary procedures) 

although a Court Order may be required for evidence to be released.  The evidence will remain 

the possession of the investigating agencies in accordance with the Joint Social Care and Police 

Protocol on Investigating Child Abuse.    

Decisions regarding the disclosure of such evidence must be considered carefully in   conjunction 

with the relevant Human Resources procedures. 

8. Second and Subsequent strategy Meetings 

In addition to the issues addressed at the first Strategy Meeting, subsequent meetings should be 

held to review  

• Progress and results of enquiries 

• Therapeutic and support needs of the child or children / vulnerable adult(s) 

• Support needs of the child’s parents/carers, the worker, carer or volunteer 

 

9. Outcome Strategy Meeting 

The existing guidance highlights the duty of this meeting to decide on the balance of 

probabilities as to whether the concerns are substantiated.  This discussion would normally 

precede any decision by the employer to invoke disciplinary procedures. 

All the members of the Initial Strategy Meeting will need to attend.  Additional relevant persons 

may be invited to attend by agreement with the Chair.  This may include, where appropriate, 

contracts managers. 

The alleged perpetrator or representative and the alleged victim and parents will not be 

permitted to attend. 

The meeting is responsible for considering the following issues: 

• Results of the Section 47 enquiry / POVA enquiry – Is the allegation substantiated, 

unsubstantiated, inconclusive, unfounded or false? 

• Are there any outstanding concerns which require any Police/Children’s / Adult’s Services 

procedures? 

• Are there any outstanding protection or support issues for the alleged victim? 

• Are there any outstanding protection issues for other potential victims? 

• Are there any outstanding disciplinary issues? 

45 
Tudalen 143



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

• Are there any other children / vulnerable adults with whom the alleged perpetrator has a 

professional relationship? 

• Have all protection issues for the children / vulnerable adults of the alleged perpetrator 

been addressed? 

• The requirement for notification to the Independent Safeguarding Authority. 

• The identification of the persons responsible for informing the child/parent/carers and the 

alleged perpetrator of the outcome 

• Whether the matter should be referred to the Fostering or Adoption Panels, Welsh 

Government Independent Investigation Service for Schools (SERVOCA), CSSIW or CAFCASS 

Where the concerns are substantiated and individuals lose their position as a result of concerns, 

a referral should be made to the ISA (see section 11) and any other bodies nominated by the 

guidance and procedures. The employer responsible for informing such bodies or undertaking 

internal disciplinary action must inform the Safeguarding Manager in writing that such actions 

have been undertaken. 

10. Substantiated Concerns 

Where abuse or harm is confirmed on the balance of probability, the parents and child / 

vulnerable adult and /or representative must be informed – who should do this will be 

confirmed at the outcome meeting. The Chair will write to the alleged perpetrator informing 

them of the outcome of the investigations.  

A disciplinary hearing should then be arranged by the employer within the relevant disciplinary 

code. 

Should the need for a Child Protection / Adult Protection Conference have been identified, this 

will be organised by the relevant team and the Safeguarding Unit. 

 

11. Informing the Independent Safeguarding Authority (ISA) 

Where the concerns are substantiated, relevant information should be passed to the ISA by the 

relevant Senior Manager where the person is employed.  Organisations must confirm in writing 

to the Safeguarding Manager that this has  been completed. 

12. Unsubstantiated Allegations 

Where, following initial enquiries, it is concluded that there is insufficient evidence to determine 

whether the allegation is substantiated, or the allegation is not substantiated, the relevant 

Designated Senior Manager/Employer will consider what if any, further action should be taken. 

The member of staff/volunteer with be informed of the outcome in writing by the Chair. 

Consideration must be given to any support the member of staff may need, particularly if s/he is 

returning to his/her post following suspension. 

       46 Tudalen 144



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

The child / vulnerable adult and his/her parents/carers must be informed of the outcome. Who 

will do this will be identified at the Outcome meeting. 

 

13. Unfounded or False Allegations 

If an allegation is determined to be unfounded the employer, in consultation with the 

Safeguarding Manager, should refer the matter to Children / Adult Social Care to determine 

whether the child / vulnerable adult is in need of services and/or might have been abused by 

someone else. 

 

14. Allegations against staff in their personal lives 

If an allegation or concern arises about the conduct of a member of staff outside of his/her work 

with children / vulnerable adults and this may present a risk to children / vulnerable adults for 

whom the member of staff is responsible, the general principles outlined in these procedures 

will still apply. 

In some cases, al allegation of abuse against someone closely associated with a member of staff, 

e.g. partner, member of the family or other household member, may present a risk to a child / 

children / vulnerable adults for whom the member of staff is responsible. In these circumstances 

the meeting should consider: 

• The ability and/or willingness of the member of staff to adequately protect 

• Whether measures need to be put in place to ensure their protection 

• Whether the role of the member of staff is compromised. 

15. Disciplinary Process 

The meeting will consider whether disciplinary action is appropriate in all cases where: 

• No further action is required under Child / Adult Protection Procedures 

• The employer or Safeguarding Manager is informed by Police or the CPS that a criminal 

investigation and any subsequent trial is complete or that an investigation is to be closed 

without charge or a prosecution discontinued. 

The discussions should consider any potential misconduct or gross misconduct on the part of 

the member of staff and take into account: 

• Information provided by the police and /or social care 

• The result of any investigation or trial 

• The different standard of proof in disciplinary and criminal proceedings 

 Where the initial evaluation decides that the allegation does not involve a possible criminal 

offence it will be dealt with by the employer who should institute appropriate action within 3 

        47 
Tudalen 145



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

working days. 

 If disciplinary action is required, and further investigation is not required, the disciplinary hearing 

should be held within 15 working days. 

 Where further investigation is required by the employer the aim of the investigation is to obtain, 

as far as possible, a fair, balanced and accurate record in order to consider the appropriateness of 

disciplinary action and/or the individuals suitability to work with children / vulnerable adults. Its 

purpose is not to prove or disprove the allegation. 

 The Safeguarding Manager should be informed of the outcome of disciplinary action, including 

any training plan with timescales. 

16. Sharing information for Disciplinary Purposes 

Wherever possible, the Police and Children / Adult Social Care should during the course of their 

investigations obtain consent to provide the employer and or the Regulatory Authority with 

evidence for disciplinary purposes. If the police or the CPS decide not to pursue a charge, or 

decide to administer a caution, or the person is acquitted, the Police should pass relevant 

information to the employer without delay. 

If the person is convicted, the Police should inform the employer straight away so that 

appropriate action can be taken. 

 

17. Record Keeping 

Employers should keep a clear and comprehensive summary of the case record on a person’s 

confidential personnel file and give a copy to the individual.  

The record should include details of what the allegation was, how the allegation was followed up 

and resolved, the decisions reached and the action taken.  

The record will provide accurate information for any future reference and provide clarification if 

a future CRB disclosure reveals an allegation that did result in a prosecution or conviction.  This 

record will prevent unnecessary re-investigation if the allegation should resurface. 

Minutes of Strategy Meetings will be held at the Children’s Safeguarding Unit / Adult 

Safeguarding Unit as appropriate. 

 
 

 

 

. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48 

Tudalen 146



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 8 
 

Terms of Reference Corporate Panel for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       49 

 

Tudalen 147



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and 
Adults – Draft Version 

 

 

       51 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE CORPORATE PANEL: SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN AND ADULTS 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1.      Section 28 of the Children Act 2004 places a duty on local authorities to make 

arrangements to ensure that they fulfil their functions in a way which considers the 

need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children. 
 

1.2.      The following reflects the ‘Statutory Guidelines on the Functions and Accountability 

of Directors of Social Services’ [published by the Welsh Assembly Government – June 

2009]. Although every member of staff has a responsibility to safeguard and 

promote the welfare of children, it is the Statutory Director of Social Services who 

remains the senior officer in the council with full and final accountability for 

safeguarding children. 
 

1.3.      The following does not change the Constitution of Denbighshire Council.   The 

intention is to reinforce existing reporting arrangements. 
 

2.   TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE D E N B I G H S H I R E  C O U N C I L  C O R P O R A T E  

P A N E L  F O R  S A F E G U A R D I N G  C H I L D R E N  A N D  A D U L T S  
 
2.1.      The aim of the Panel is to ensure that robust arrangements for the safety of 

children and adults are in place within Denbighshire Council. 
 

2.2. The Panel will act on a Strategic level in order to: 

 

• assure relevant Lead Members that the Council’s procedures are robust 

where matters of safeguarding children and adults are concerned; 
• Bring together interdepartmental work in the safeguarding field and 

ensure effective corporate communication; 

•  Support the functions and duties of the Statutory Director within the Council; 
•  Resolve  any  possible  barriers  that  could  prevent  having  effective            

and  successful procedures in place; 
• Identify any gaps in corporate policies and guidelines and ensure they are 

addressed, working appropriately with the LSCB and the Adult Protection 
Committee 

• Ensure that appropriate training is available for officers and members 
• Receive and consider information about trends in relation to allegations of 

professional abuse, and adopt action plans to respond should the need arise; 

• Receive  and  challenge  information  about  c o r p o r a t e  

s a f e gua r d i ng  pe r f o rmance  a nd  the  progress  against  work  

programmes commissioned  

• Consider and understand the implications of Serious Case Reviews and 

ensure that the Council responds effectively to recommendations within such 

reviews; 

• Accept and challenge the Annual Report of the Statutory Director; 

• Approve the Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding of every Service in the 

Council and receive information about the performance management 

arrrangements of every service in relation to their safeguarding responsibilities. 

• Produce an Annual Report for CET, Cabinet, and the appropriate Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

3. CHAIRING 
 

3.1. Cabinet member 
 Tudalen 148



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding Children and 
Adults – Draft Version 

 

 

       51 

 

 

 

4. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS 
 

4.1. Meetings every quarter 

 

 

 

5. GOVERNANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

5.1.      The Corporate Panel is accountable to Denbighshire Council Cabinet.  The Chair 

has the right to refer matters to the Cabinet if not satisfied. 
 

5.2   Business Management [i.e. creating a work programme, meeting agendas, 

secretariat, central communication point, organising additional professional 

advice if needed] through the function of Head of Children and Family Services. 
 

6. MEMBERSHIP 
 

 

Name Title 

Cllr Bobby Feeley Lead Member, Social Care and Children’s Services 

Clle Eryl Williams Lead Member, Education 

Sally Ellis Director of Social Services 

Hywyn Williams Lead Member, Children and Young People 

Karen Evans Chief Education Officer 

Leighton Rees Head of Children and Family Services 

Phil Gilroy Head of Adult and Business Services 

Designated Managers 1 from each service 

Tudalen 149



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 9 
 

Measuring Impact and Monitoring 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Tudalen 150



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

MEASURING IMPACT AND MONITORING 
 

1. In order to ensure that the procedures contained in the corporate safeguarding 
policy are fully complied with across the Council, and that their implementation 
secures a positive effect on the lives of children, young people and adults, it is vital 
to ensure that the following steps happen: 

 
� It  is  essential  that  the  policy  is  communicated  effectively  to  all  

members  of  staff, councillors, volunteers, children, parents, carers and 
anyone else who is affected; 

� There are responsibilities for the Designated Safeguarding Managers in the 
Departments to ensure that all their staff are familiar with the policy and 
supplementary procedures; 

� Every Department in the Council has a responsibility to develop a 

safeguarding policy that is specific to their own service, highlighting how 

their internal guidelines will comply with the corporate policy and taking into 

consideration the National Guidelines in the field of child protection and the 

protection of vulnerable adults; 

� There are individual responsibilities on all members of staff, councillors and 

volunteers to advocate and promote the policy to establishments or 

partners, and to ensure that the Council’s values and principles in the 

safeguarding field are communicated clearly to children, their parents, 

carers and to the public; 

� Ensure  that  every  Department  develops  quality assurance processes  

in  order  to  examine compliance with the policy and procedures regularly 

and report to the Strategic Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults on 

any successes, failures or improvement programmes within their 

departments; 

� Ensure that information on every allegation of professional abuse is 

reported to the Corporate Panel for Safeguarding Children and Adults as 

well as to the Local Safeguarding Children Board; 

� Ensure that every department reflects safeguarding as a main priority in 
their individual business plans, and ensure that every activity takes 
safeguarding issues into account as a matter of procedure; 

� Ensure that every department develops local indicators in the 
safeguarding field, and reports on a quarterly basis to the corporate 
performance monitoring procedure; 

� Secure feedback from the Council’s staff with regard to activity in the 
safeguarding field and how their line managers support them to undertake 
these duties; 

� Ensure through participation and engagement events that children, 
young people and adults feel safe in every aspect of their lives and that 
the Council’s activities in the safeguarding field contribute to their feeling of 
being safe; 

� Ensure  that  self assessment takes  place  regularly  in  schools  in order  to  
improve safeguarding practice at all schools; 

Ensure that a composite annual review is submitted to the Local 

Safeguarding Children Board on the Council’s activity in the safeguarding 

field; 

� Ensure that a training programme is available at every level which will be 
filtered to every member of staff in accordance with their needs, and also 
ensure that refresher training takes place regularly; 

� Ensure that an annual report is submitted to the Corporate Executive Team 
which will provide information on any safeguarding concerns, activity, 
feedback from serious case review and progress against the action plan; 

� Ensure that any service commissioned by or on behalf of the Council 

complies fully with the safeguarding expectations set in the agreement with 

the partners, and that it is monitored regularly. 
 

Tudalen 151



Policy and Guidelines for Safeguarding 
Children and Adults 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      52 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 152



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Corporate Safeguarding Policy and Panel  

September 2013 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 153



 

1 

Corporate Safeguarding Policy and Panel 
 

Contact: 
 

Sally Ellis, Modernisation and Wellbeing 

Updated: September 2013 
 

  
 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A new or revised policy 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

To ensure the Council takes a consistent approach to the implementation of 
safeguarding arrangements across all services and that appropriate safeguarding 
procedures are in place reflecting the circumstances of every service 

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

Yes <If no, briefly summarise the reasons for this decision here, 
and skip ahead to the declaration at the end> 

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

1) Discussion of issues arising from proposed olicy at SSEMT (Social Services 
and Education Management Team), at CET and SLT 
2) Consideration of groups typically likely to be impacted by the proposed policy 
3) Identification of those most likely to be impacted 
4) Checking of policy area and issues against the Equality Impact Assessment 
Toolkit 

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 

Tudalen 154



 

2 

(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

The proposal is most likely to have positive impact on vulnerable older people and 
those with disabilities as it will lead to increased awareness of safeguarding 
issues across the council and these are two groups where safeguarding issues do 
arise 

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

None 

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

No No negative impacts are expected on any groups with 
protected characteristics 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
<Please Select> <If yes please complete the table below. If no, please explain 

here> 

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Unrestrict editing to insert additional rows> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: 30.09.2013 
 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Tudalen 155



 

3 

<Sally Ellis 21.09.13 
 
 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Tudalen 156



 
Cynllun Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cyngor Sir   

 
 
 

Cyfarfod Eitem (disgrifiad / teitl) Pwrpas yr adroddiad A oes 
angen 
penderfy
niad gan 
y Cyngor 
(oes/nac 
oes) 

Awdur - Aelod 
Arweiniol a swyddog 
cyswllt 

 
Briffio’r 
Cyngor - 
Cyllideb  
21 Hydref 
 

 
Wedi’i gadw ar gyfer gweithdy cyllideb i’r Cyngor cyfan 

 
Cyng. Julian 
Thompson-Hill / Paul 
McGrady 

       

5 Tachwedd       

 1 Datblygiad Cyfleusterau 
Arfordirol y Rhyl / Prestatyn: 
Achos Busnes 

Ystyried achos busnes ar 
gyfer datblygu cyfleusterau 
arfordirol.  

OES Jamie Groves / 
Alastair McNab / Tom 
Booty 

 2 Strategaeth Uchelgais 
Economaidd a Chymunedol 
Drafft 

Ystyried cymeradwyo'r 
Strategaeth yn dilyn 
ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus 

Oes Cyng. Hugh Evans / 
Rebecca Maxwell 

 3 Deddf Delwyr Metel Sgrap 2013 Ystyried trefn rheoleiddio 
ddiwygiedig ar gyfer delio 
mewn metel sgrap a 
diwydiannau datgymalu 
cerbydau. 

Oes Cyng. David Smith / 
Graham Boase / Nicky 
Jones  

E
item

 A
genda 9

T
udalen 157



 
Cynllun Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cyngor Sir   

Cyfarfod Eitem (disgrifiad / teitl) Pwrpas yr adroddiad A oes 
angen 
penderfy
niad gan 
y Cyngor 
(oes/nac 
oes) 

Awdur - Aelod 
Arweiniol a swyddog 
cyswllt 

      

Briffio’r 
Cyngor -  
18 Tachwedd  

1 Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru Ystyried materion yn 
ymwneud â’r corff newydd a 
rheoli adnoddau naturiol 

Amh. Rebecca Maxwell 

 2 Materion Bioamrywiaeth  Ystyried gofynion 
deddfwriaethol 
bioamrywiaeth a chamau 
gweithredu CSDd 

Amh. Cyng. Huw Jones / 
Elizabeth Webster / 
Huw Rees 

 3 Comisiynydd Pobl Hŷn Cymru Rhoi briff i’r Aelodau ar waith 
y Comisiynydd 

Amh. Cyng. Bobby Feeley / 
Sally Ellis 

 4 Briffio Risg  Briffio Aelodau ar adnabod a 
rheoli risg (ar gais y Pwyllgor 
Llywodraethu Corfforaethol) 

Amh. Cyng. Barbara Smith/ 
Alan Smith 

      

3 Rhagfyr 1 Diweddariad ar y gyllideb ddrafft 
2014 / 15 

Ystyried diweddariad ar y 
gyllideb sy’n datblygu 

Nac oes Cyng. Julian 
Thompson-Hill / Paul 
McGrady 

 2 Strategaeth Tai Lleol Cytuno ar y Strategaeth Tai 
Lleol 

Oes Cyng. Hugh Irving / 
Peter McHugh / Sue 
Lewis 
 

 3 Asesiad o Anghenion Llety Gofyn i’r Cyngor fabwysiadu Oes Cyng. Hugh 

T
udalen 158



 
Cynllun Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cyngor Sir   

Cyfarfod Eitem (disgrifiad / teitl) Pwrpas yr adroddiad A oes 
angen 
penderfy
niad gan 
y Cyngor 
(oes/nac 
oes) 

Awdur - Aelod 
Arweiniol a swyddog 
cyswllt 

Sipsiwn a Theithwyr Gogledd 
Cymru (GTANA) 

GTANA Gogledd Cymru Irving/Peter 
McHugh/John 
Sweeney 

 4 Rheolau'r Weithdrefn 
Gontractau: Diwygiedig 

Ystyried diwygiadau i’r 
Rheolau 

Oes Cyng Julian 
Thompson-Hill / Lisa 
Jones 

      

Briffio’r 
Cyngor - 
Cyllideb 
9 Rhagfyr 

Ar gadw ar gyfer gweithdy cyllideb Cyngor cyfan Cyng Julian 
Thompson-Hill / Paul 
McGrady 

      

Briffio’r 
Cyngor 
27 Ionawr  

1 Hyfforddiant Cyfryngau 
Cymdeithasol 
(Angen awr – cyntaf ar y 
rhaglen os yw’n bosibl) 

Sesiwn fer ar gyfer aelodau 
ar ddefnydd cyfryngau 
cymdeithasol 

Amh. Sue License / Eleri 
Woolford 

 2 Moderneiddio  
(angen 2 awr) 

Rhoi cyflwyniad i’r Aelodau 
ar y rhaglen Foderneiddio 

Amh. Julie Horman 

      

4 Chwefror      

      

25 Chwefror 1 Cynllun Canllawiau Cynllunio Gofyn am gymeradwyaeth i Oes Graham Boase 

T
udalen 159



 
Cynllun Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cyngor Sir   

Cyfarfod Eitem (disgrifiad / teitl) Pwrpas yr adroddiad A oes 
angen 
penderfy
niad gan 
y Cyngor 
(oes/nac 
oes) 

Awdur - Aelod 
Arweiniol a swyddog 
cyswllt 

Atodol ar gyfer Ysbyty Gogledd 
Cymru  

fabwysiadu’r CCA 

      

8 Ebrill      

      

Briffio’r 
Cyngor 
28 Ebrill 

     

      

13 Mai 
CYFARFOD 
BLYNYDDOL 

     

 

 
Nodyn i swyddogion – Dyddiad Cau Adroddiadau i’r Cyngor Llawn 
 

Cyfarfod Dyddiad Cau Cyfarfod Dyddiad Cau Cyfarfod Dyddiad Cau 

      

Medi  27 Awst Hydref 24 Medi Tachwedd 22 Hydref 
 
Rhaglen Waith y Cyngor.doc 

T
udalen 160


	Rhaglen
	4 DYDDIADUR Y CADEIRYDD
	5 Cofnodion
	7 ADOLYGIAD PERFFORMIAD BLYNYDDOL 2012-13
	ANnn Perf Review EIA
	Ann Perf REPORT

	8 POLISI DIOGELU CORFFORAETHOL
	Safeguard Policy Guidelines
	Safeguard Policy EIA

	9 RHAGLEN GWAITH I™R DYFODOL Y CYNGOR SIR

